
City Council Meeting 
Agenda 
 

August 22, 2023 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 

Mayor 
Amy Bublak 

 City Manager 
 Council Members Reagan M. Wilson 
Kevin Bixel Rebecka Monez  City Clerk 
Cassandra Abram Pam Franco   Julie Christel 
     Vice Mayor  City Attorney 
 George A. Petrulakis 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 
This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 
 

2. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS 
 

A. Proclamation Ray Garcia – Retirement 
 

B. Proclamation Keith Humphries - Retirement 
  

C. Presentation Jeffrey Lewis – Mobile Medical Clinic Update  
 

D. Appointment Parks, Arts and Recreation Commission 
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will be 
allowed three (3) minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked 
to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter.  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that 
the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments or questions from members of the public, provide a 
reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 

 

SPEAKER CARDS:  To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available for 
any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment.  Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City Clerk 
or Police Officer.  
 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to other 
languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City Clerk’s 
Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and services.  Please 
allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council on 
any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s consideration 
of the item.  Members of the public will be allowed three (3) minutes for comments. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public inspection 
in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before 
the meeting. 

E. Briefing Qualifications for City Grant Recipients

http://www.cityofturlock.org/
JChristel
Typewritten text
Amendment No. 108/21/2023



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2023 

 
Next City Council Resolution: 2023-195                                                      Next Ordinance: 1307-CS 

Page 2 
 

4. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving the 
consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 

A. Motion: Accepting Weekly Demands of 08/03/2023 in the amount of $650,912.50, 08/10/2023 
in the amount of $2,050,299.80, EFT Payments of March 2023 in the amount of $6,666,009.64 
and the Investment and Cash Report for July 2023 
 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the 08/08/2023 Regular Meeting of the City of Turlock City 
Council 

 

C. Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project Nos. 22-001 and 22-017 "Wayside Drive 
Reconstruction and Sewer Replacement Project" and authorizing the City Engineer to file a 
Notice of Completion (Schulze) 

 

D. Motion: Approving the Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with SB Builders, 
LLC, conditioned upon construction of improvements for the Crowell subdivision (VTSM 2021-
01, Development Project No. 22-028) 4510 Crowell Road (APN 071-002-012), developed by 
Modesto Roselle, LLC (Schulze) 
 

E. Motion: Approving the final map for Enterprise Park (Development Project No. 7061) located 
at 1100 West Glenwood Avenue (APN 044-017-080, 081, 082), developed by Julan 
Development Group (Schulze)  

 

F. Resolution 2023-XXX: Reaffirming the Proclamation of a Local Emergency in Response to a 
continuing Unsheltered Homeless Crisis (UHC) within the City of Turlock and Confirming Rules 
and Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued on July 13, 2021 (Eddy) 
 

G. Resolution 2023-XXX: Approving the purchase of replacement Dell Servers and installation 

services from The REDESIGN Group under the National Association of State Procurement 

Officials (NASPO) Contract No. 7-15-70-34-004, without compliance to the formal bid 

procedure in accordance with Section 2-7-08(b)(5) of the Turlock Municipal Code, in an 

amount not to exceed $335,191.13 paid from fund 242 “Computer Replacement” account 242-

00-000-204.51015_002 - Network Servers and appropriate $15,191.13 from Fund 242 

unallocated reserves to account 242-00-000-204.51015_002 - Network Servers (Showalter) 
 

H. Resolution 2023-XXX: Adopting the City of Turlock Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fund 450 “SRWA 

Operations” Budget in the amount of $580,000 in Revenue and Expenses (Moreno) 
 

6. FINAL READINGS  
 

None 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

A. Finding that Perfect Union has complied in good faith with terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement between Perfect Union and the City of Turlock for the operation of a 
cannabis retail dispensary at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard, Stanislaus County APN 088-
007-025 (Werner) 

 
 
 
 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Amended



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2023 

 
Next City Council Resolution: 2023-195                                                      Next Ordinance: 1307-CS 

Page 3 
 

 
 

Recommended Action: Resolution 2023-XXX: Finding that Perfect Union has complied in 
good faith with terms and conditions of the Development Agreement between Perfect Union 
and the City of Turlock for the operation of a cannabis retail dispensary at 2500 N. Golden 
State Boulevard, Stanislaus County APN 088-007-025 

 

B. Finding that Fire House has complied in good faith with terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement between Fire House and the City of Turlock for the operation of a 
cannabis retail dispensary at 1601 W. Main Street, Stanislaus County APN 089-015-006 
(Werner) 

 

Recommended Action: Resolution 2023-XXX: Finding that Fire House has complied in good 
faith with terms and conditions of the Development Agreement between Fire House and the 
City of Turlock for the operation of a cannabis retail dispensary at 1601 W. Main Street, 
Stanislaus County APN 089-015-006 
 

8. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Approving Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of the Master Agreement 
with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (Sacramento, California office) in the amount of 
$436,855.00 to be funded by Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads,” account number 115-10-
115.43366_001 “Design Roads” for Professional Services for the City of Turlock’s Roads 
Initiative Program under City Project No. 23-052 “Mark Thomas Task Order No. 2 for Roads 
Program - Geer Road (30%)” (Schulze) 

 

Recommended Action: Resolution 2023-XXX: Approving Amendment No. 2 for Task Order 
No. 2 under the terms of the Master Agreement with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 
(Sacramento, California office) in the amount of $436,855.00 to be funded by Fund 115 
“Measure A – Roads,” account number 115-10-115.43366_001 “Design Roads” for 
Professional Services for the City of Turlock’s Roads Initiative Program under City Project No. 
23-052 “Mark Thomas Task Order No. 2 for Roads Program - Geer Road (30%)” 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 
City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s request. 
 

A. We Care Program Update (Maris Sturtevant) 
 

B. Upcoming Ad-Hoc Committee Meetings Update (Wilson) 
 

10. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 

11. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of interest.  
The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
 

13. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Julie Christel, City Clerk for the City of Turlock, certify that I caused to be posted a copy of the City of Turlock City Council 
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Tuesday, August 22, 2023 at City Hall, 156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California, 95380 on 
Thursday, August 17, 2023. 
 

  /s/ Julie Christel, City Clerk        Dated: August 17, 2023 



JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 2A



JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 2B



 

Agenda Item 2C 

 

Presentation 

 

Mobile Medical Clinic Update
Jeffrey Lewis



 PARKS, ARTS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

Number of Vacancies = 1 
 

Appoint One (1) Commission to Term Expiring on 12/31/25 
 

 
One (1) Applicant: 

• John Snoke 
 
The application for the above-mentioned applicant can be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
 
MAYOR BUBLAK’S RECOMMENDED APPOINTMENTS: 
 
Reappoint John Snoke to the Parks, Arts & Recreation Commission for a term expiring on 
12/31/25. 
 
 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 2D



 

Agenda Item 2E 

 

Briefing

 

Qualifications for City Grant
Recipients



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

AP - Accounts Payable
Check
139243 08/01/2023 Open Utility Management 

Refund
CABRALES, LUCY $184.20

Account Type Account Number Description Transaction Date Transaction Type
Single Family Res Metered 001087-002 MOVE OUT CREDIT 08/01/2023 Refund
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
119 - American Rescue Plan Act 119.11000 (Cash) $0.27
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $183.93

139244 08/01/2023 Open Utility Management 
Refund

JARDINE, RANDY $124.00

Account Type Account Number Description Transaction Date Transaction Type
Single Family Res Metered 194409-004 MOVE OUT CREDIT 08/01/2023 Refund
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $124.00

139245 08/01/2023 Open Utility Management 
Refund

KEARLEY, MICHAEL $142.62

Account Type Account Number Description Transaction Date Transaction Type
Single Family Res Metered 001033-002 MOVE OUT CREDIT 08/01/2023 Refund
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $142.62

139246 08/01/2023 Open Utility Management 
Refund

MONJES, MELISSA $85.82

Account Type Account Number Description Transaction Date Transaction Type
Single Family Res Metered 001392-001 MOVE OUT REFUND 08/01/2023 Refund
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $85.82

139247 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable A-Z BUS SALES INC $2,787.08
Invoice Date Description Amount
INVSAC7898 06/30/2023 PARTS FOR BUSES $1,462.98
INVSAC8369 06/30/2023 PARTS FOR BUSES $16.89
INVSAC8370 06/30/2023 PARTS FOR BUSES $496.09
INVSAC9146 07/27/2023 BUS PARTS $623.16
INVSAC8717 07/11/2023 BUS PARTS $187.96
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $2,787.08

139248 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ALL STAR TROPHY & SIGN LLC $380.19
Invoice Date Description Amount
071323 07/20/2023 WINDOW DECALS $380.19
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $380.19

139249 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ALLEGIANCE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY, 
LLC

$1,568.24

Invoice Date Description Amount
INV26 07/12/2023 ALLEGIANCE - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $1,088.03
INV14 07/11/2023 ALLEGIANCE - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $70.61
INV13 07/11/2023 ALLEGIANCE - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $409.60
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 1 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=255538','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=255539','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=255540','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=255541','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256286','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256287','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256288','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5A



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $1,568.24

139250 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable AMERICAN MESSAGING $12.71
Invoice Date Description Amount
R1061876XH 08/01/2023 Acct #R1-061876 - Fire Department $12.71
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $12.71

139251 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Aramark Uniform Services $171.98
Invoice Date Description Amount
25615612 06/28/2023 SRWA Supplies - Jackets $171.98
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $171.98

139252 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable AT&T MOBILITY $289.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
6865X07272023 07/19/2023 287307496865 / PD SIU Modem $43.23
4173X07272023 07/19/2023 287310834173 / SIM CARDS FOR WQC $246.15
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $43.23
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $246.15

139253 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable BALSWICK'S TIRE SHOP INC $771.68
Invoice Date Description Amount
01-211952 06/30/2023 BALSWICK - PARTS $771.68
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $771.68

139254 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Biddle Consulting Group, Inc. $2,195.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
75916 07/21/2023 CRITICALL LICENSE RENEWAL 10/22/23-10/21/24 $2,195.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,195.00

139255 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting 
Engineers, Inc.

$9,675.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
73883R 06/30/2023 SR06, 23-030 RWQCF In Plant Waste Line 

Repair6/5/23-6/30/23
$9,675.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $9,675.00

139256 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable BONANDER TRUCKS $3,708.31
Invoice Date Description Amount
267522 07/12/2023 Vehicle 1041PP $811.67
267316 06/30/2023 PARTS $277.45
267255 06/30/2023 PARTS $1,299.22
267228 06/30/2023 PARTS $482.62
267236 06/30/2023 PARTS $58.79
267239 06/30/2023 KEY $91.88
267217 06/30/2023 KEY $686.68
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,118.08
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $811.67

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 2 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256289','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256290','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256291','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256292','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256293','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256294','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256295','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $778.56

139257 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable BRADY WORLDWIDE INC $3,889.37
Invoice Date Description Amount
9353534092 06/30/2023 BBP37,QWERTY-NA DECAL MACHINE $3,889.37
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
505 - Fleet 505.11000 (Cash) $3,889.37

139258 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CDW LLC $2,034.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
KJ30605 06/30/2023 Surface for Fire Marshall $1,963.85
KG31655 06/30/2023 Vertical Mouse - IT $70.89
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,963.85
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $70.89

139259 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS $335.09
Invoice Date Description Amount
1238873072223 07/22/2023 SENIOR CENTER WIFI $154.91
0461088071823 07/18/2023 8203 13 001 0461088 / City Hall $180.18
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $154.91
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $180.18

139260 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CRIMETEK SECURITY, INC. $17,775.52
Invoice Date Description Amount
67873 07/02/2023 Unarmed Private Security Services for Transit-7/1/23 - 

7/2/23
$1,088.64

67891 07/05/2023 Unarmed Private Security Services for Transit-7/3/23 - 
7/5/23

$4,082.40

67892 07/09/2023 Unarmed Private Security Services for Transit-7/7/23 - 
7/9/23

$1,624.00

67917 07/23/2023 Unarmed Private Security Services for Transit-7/10/23 
- 7/23/23

$7,620.48

67918 07/16/2023 Unarmed Private Security Services for Transit-7/10/23 
- 7/16/23

$3,360.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $17,775.52

139261 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CULLIGAN INC $37.25
Invoice Date Description Amount
Transit 06/30/23 07/01/2023 FY23-24 Water Softener Services for Transit-7/1/23 - 

7/31/23
$37.25

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $37.25

139262 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CUSTOM LOCKSMITH & ALARM 
INC

$1,610.77

Invoice Date Description Amount
0000047798 07/25/2023 LOCKSMITH SERVICES $1,610.77
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $1,610.77

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 3 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256296','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256297','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256298','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256299','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256300','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256301','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139263 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable DF ENGINEERING INC $31,722.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
24112 06/30/2023 SR05, 0828 Fulkerth Rd and Freway 99 Interchange 

Improv-6/30/23
$31,722.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
305 - Capital Facility Fees 305.11000 (Cash) $31,722.00

139264 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable DOCUSCRIPT, LLC $695.88
Invoice Date Description Amount
2297 06/30/2023 TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES FOR JUNE 2023 $695.88
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $695.88

139265 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable DUKE'S ROOT CONTROL INC. $16,425.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
11635 05/31/2023 SEWER LINE CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL $16,425.44
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $16,425.44

139266 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ECONOMIC & PLANNING INC $1,300.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
222062-8 06/30/2023 Turlock Maintenance Services - CFD June 2023 $1,300.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,300.00

139267 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Evolution Heating and Cooling $221.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
8204 07/06/2023 A/C repair at 831 Vermont Ave, Turlock $221.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $221.00

139268 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable FAST TRACK CAR WASH, 
MADRUGA BROS ENT INC

$675.50

Invoice Date Description Amount
28901 06/30/2023 CAR WASH SERVICES - JUNE 2023 $675.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $556.50
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $7.00
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $24.50
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $45.50
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $7.00
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $7.00
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $3.50
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $24.50

139269 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable GANT/LINE-X OF TURLOCK, WADE, 
ALLEN

$712.68

Invoice Date Description Amount
25773 07/25/2023 LINE X FOR 2023 F250 $712.68
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $712.68

139270 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable GILLIG LLC $1,312.66
Invoice Date Description Amount
41061801 07/11/2023 Transit - PARTS $858.27

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 4 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256302','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256303','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256304','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256305','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256306','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256307','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256308','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256309','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

41062604 07/13/2023 Transit - PARTS $454.39
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $1,312.66

139271 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable GOMES & SONS INC, JOE M $1,323.32
Invoice Date Description Amount
68005 07/25/2023 DEEP WELL OIL $1,323.32
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,323.32

139272 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable GRAINGER INC, W W $2,946.33
Invoice Date Description Amount
9775633697 07/19/2023 SRWA Supplies - Tool Bag $52.76
9776850936 07/20/2023 SRWA Supplies - Tool Bag & Scissor Lift Carts $2,893.57
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $2,946.33

139273 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable HD SUPPLY INC, DBA 
USABLUEBOOK

$4,794.13

Invoice Date Description Amount
INV00049494 06/20/2023 STOCK # 351025 $281.29
INV00057068 06/27/2023 STOCK #36810 $799.05
292362 03/08/2023 Credit for Inv 276115 ($625.43)
298027 03/14/2023 Credit for Inv 281027 ($830.46)
INV00036636 06/08/2023 STOCK #351025 $311.00
INV00036528 06/08/2023 STOCK #28236 $307.90
INV00036367 06/08/2023 STOCK #15596 $610.51
INV00032692 06/06/2023 STOCK #85427 $111.83
INV00043342 06/14/2023 STOCK #96744 $194.39
INV00042780 06/13/2023 STOCK 50401 $251.80
INV00043232 06/14/2023 STOCK 85415 $54.19
INV00072618 07/14/2023 STOCK #300127 $427.31
INV00078468 07/20/2023 STOCK #205014 $497.72
INV00026532 05/31/2023 SRWA Misc. Safety Equipment $4,714.33
SCN002412 05/31/2023 SRWA Misc. Safety Equipment - CREDIT Safety Flex 

Jacket 
($104.61)

SCN004404 05/31/2023 SRWA Misc. Safety Equipment - CREDIT nitrile gloves ($45.20)
FTI_CN001411 05/31/2023 SRWA Misc. Safety Equipment - CREDIT price adj ($2.37)
SCN003361 05/31/2023  SRWA supplies - Open Purchase Order CREDIT Gas 

Meters
($2,159.12)

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $758.31
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,632.79
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $2,403.03

139274 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable HOLT OF CALIFORNIA INC $162.95
Invoice Date Description Amount
K5814501 06/29/2023 DOCUMENT FEE $162.95
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $162.95

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 5 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256310','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256311','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256312','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256313','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139275 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable INDEPENDENT ELECTRIC INC $30.31
Invoice Date Description Amount
S106088568.001 07/19/2023 Contact cleaner $30.31
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $30.31

139276 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS 
INC

$1,158.49

Invoice Date Description Amount
39686826 07/18/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $87.81
39231402 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $130.10
39249509 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $102.92
39280005 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $90.08
39294246 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $102.92
39314038 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $124.81
39344223 06/30/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $123.30
39651985 07/14/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $92.34
39636183 07/13/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $129.34
39619072 07/12/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $88.57
39794193 07/26/2023 MARTIN MARIETTA - ASPHALT $86.30
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $1,158.49

139277 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable MME $969.22
Invoice Date Description Amount
011169 07/14/2023 WASHDOWN GUN $509.22
011076 07/11/2023 PARTS $460.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $969.22

139278 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Montrose Environmental Solutions, 
Inc.

$2,527.81

Invoice Date Description Amount
CINV-204078 06/30/2023 SRWA - Phase III Environmental Work for 2022-23 for 

June 2023
$2,527.81

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA - JPA 950.11000 (Cash) $2,527.81

139279 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable NAPA AUTO PARTS $190.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
806034 07/13/2023 NAPA - PARTS $138.64
806100 07/14/2023 NAPA - PARTS $52.10
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $138.64
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $52.10

139280 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE 
GROUP

$5,503.75

Invoice Date Description Amount
202307-2435 06/30/2023 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH JUNE 30, 

2023
$5,503.75

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $5,503.75

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 6 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256314','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256315','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256316','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256317','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256318','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256319','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139281 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable NEXT LEVEL PARTS INC $6,739.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
8577-404559 06/30/2023 ENG08-339 $186.35
8577-404560 06/30/2023 REF 678008 $88.39
677692 06/30/2023 Ref 677692 $206.33
8577-404444 06/30/2023 Ref 677783 $81.73
8577-404445 06/30/2023 WT04-517 $25.48
677749 06/30/2023 FR17-292 $714.89
8577-405128 07/10/2023 POL19-1342 $178.72
8577-404724 06/30/2023 REF 678310 $48.31
8577-404562 06/30/2023 REF 678011 $7.15
8577-405217 07/11/2023 WT07-584 $186.35
8577-405220 07/11/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $1,725.07
8577-405216 07/11/2023 POL18-1322 $3.79
8577-405218 07/11/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $745.39
8577-405369 07/12/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $69.09
8577-405410 07/13/2023 AD17-4508 PARTS $11.34
8577-405414 07/13/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $20.67
8577-405513 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $92.58
8577-405507 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $396.74
8577-405624 07/17/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $7.78
8577-405622 07/17/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $136.04
8577-405512 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $820.27
8577-405486 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $372.70
8577-405494 07/14/2023 POL16-1302 PARTS $88.39
8577-405539 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $186.35
8577-405554 07/14/2023 CAR QUEST - PARTS $328.33
8577-405433 07/13/2023 CAR PARTS $10.93
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $3,971.49
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $66.80
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $211.83
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $2,210.11
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $278.93

139282 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable O'DELL ENGINEERING, INC $15,665.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
3751218 06/30/2023 19-51 Design Services for Columbia Pool Improv-

6/5/23 - 6/30/23
$15,665.50

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
301 - Capital Improvements 301.11000 (Cash) $15,665.50

139283 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ON THE SPOT DESIGN $27.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
3593 06/21/2023 AD23-4868 $27.16
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $27.16

139284 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable OREILLY AUTO PARTS $1,342.80
Invoice Date Description Amount
2800-335923 07/03/2023 Vehicle # 584 $124.44
2800-334326 06/30/2023 WT04-517 $4.74

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 7 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256320','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256321','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256322','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256323','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

2800-333764 06/30/2023 TRA- PARTS $200.90
2800-336386 07/05/2023 Vehicle # 575 $149.24
2800-335101 06/30/2023 VEHICLE 4416 $50.77
2800-339483 07/14/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $95.56
2800-339381 07/14/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $32.55
2800-338997 07/13/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $211.13
2592-302929 07/15/2023 Vehicle # 1051PP $21.48
2800-340301 07/17/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $42.09
2800-339482 07/14/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $78.12
2800-340251 07/17/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $78.12
2800-338970 07/13/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $84.53
2800-337909 07/10/2023 POL19-1342 $54.01
2800-338240 07/11/2023 OREILLY - PARTS $20.63
2800-335024 06/30/2023 BLOWER MOTOR $87.99
2800-338299 07/11/2023 OREILLY - CAR PARTS $6.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $348.23
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $78.12
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $50.77
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $278.42
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $587.26

139285 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable P G & E $8.65
Invoice Date Description Amount
REC 7/26/23 07/26/2023 2749172768-4 / 144 S Broadway $8.65
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $8.65

139286 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable PAUL'S PAINT COMPANY $429.72
Invoice Date Description Amount
102902 07/26/2023 PAUL'S PAINT - GENERAL PAINT/SUPPLIES 

PURCAHSES
$349.34

102565 07/10/2023 PAUL'S PAINT - GENERAL PAINT/SUPPLIES 
PURCHASES

$80.38

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $429.72

139287 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Petrulakis Law & Advocacy, APC $33,410.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
1825 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10793 City of Turlock Roads Program $2,880.00
1826 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10762 City of Turlock Meetings City 

Council
$990.00

1844 10/31/2022 Matter 2022-10824 City of Turlock Claim Jammu Petro 
Food Inc

$145.00

1845 10/31/2022 Matter 2022-10857 City of Turlock Cannabis 
Evergreen

$775.00

1846 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10755 City of Turlock SRWA $480.00
1847 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10821 City of Turlock Lit - Anhar v. PRA $4,185.00
1848 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10754 City of Turlock Div. - Housing $150.00
1849 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10743 City of Turlock Homelessness 

Policy
$6,390.00

1850 10/31/2022 Matter 2022-10838 City of Turlock Cannabis NHC $1,237.50

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 8 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256324','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256325','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256326','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

1851 10/31/2022 Matter 2021-10742 City of Turlock General Municipal $16,177.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $33,410.00

139288 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Platt Electric Supply $518.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
4E79085 07/07/2023 MUNI SERVICES DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES $360.08
4F61784 07/19/2023 Conduit $69.94
4F64565 07/19/2023 MUNI SERVICES DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES $74.52
4F93639 07/25/2023 Flute $13.90
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $88.42
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $430.02

139289 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable REED INC, GEORGE $244.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
100304334 07/10/2023 REED - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $114.69
100303796 07/03/2023 REED - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $129.69
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $244.38

139290 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable River City Geoprof. dba Universal 
Eng. Sciences

$16,734.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
00696760 02/20/2023 SR 09, 20-013 Water and Sewer Main Extensions-

GSB-2/20/23
$10,041.00

00701664 03/27/2023 SR 09, 20-013 Water and Sewer Main Extensions - 
GSB-3/27/23

$6,693.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
421 - Water Line Construction 421.11000 (Cash) $16,734.00

139291 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ROBERTSON - BRYAN INC $7,183.75
Invoice Date Description Amount
15653.1 06/30/2023 NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE SERVICES 

THROUGH 6.15.23
$7,183.75

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $7,183.75

139292 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable ROLFE CONSTRUCTION, INC. $250,806.36
Invoice Date Description Amount
PP6/CP 20-13 06/30/2023 20-013 Water and Sewer Main Extensions -GSB- 

6/1/23-6/30/23
$250,806.36

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
412 - Sewer Construction 412.11000 (Cash) $125,403.18
421 - Water Line Construction 421.11000 (Cash) $125,403.18

139293 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 
CALIFORNIA, INC.

$1,537.57

Invoice Date Description Amount
3033165601 06/30/2023 VEHICLE 1601 $622.31
3033135525 06/30/2023 VEHICLE 1294 $281.06
3033305288 07/13/2023 RUSH - PARTS $317.10
3033330520 07/13/2023 POL18-1333 $317.10
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 9 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256327','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256328','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256329','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256330','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256331','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256332','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,537.57

139294 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable S-I INTERMEDIATE HOLDINGS, INC 
SEMITORR GROUP LLC

$56,504.81

Invoice Date Description Amount
5548635 05/12/2023 DIGESTER EQUIPMENT $8,671.50
5548842 05/15/2023 DIGESTER EQUIPMENT $27,023.59
5560438 07/19/2023 DIGESTER REPAIRS AND PREVENTATIVE 

MAINTENANCE 
$20,809.72

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $56,504.81

139295 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable SHARPENING SHOP $674.26
Invoice Date Description Amount
402511 07/14/2023 SHARPENING SHOP - VARIOUS EQUIPMENT $204.23
403191 07/26/2023 SHARPENING SHOP - EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES $165.89
402032 07/06/2023 SHARPENING SHOP - EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES $304.14
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $304.14
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $370.12

139296 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable SIEGFRIED ENGINEERING INC $41,396.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
45693 06/30/2023 23-033 Engineering Design Services Task Order 1-

6/1/23 -6/30/23
$41,396.35

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
115 - Measure A - Roads 115.11000 (Cash) $41,396.35

139297 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Sloan Sakai Yeung & Wong LLP $11,380.05
Invoice Date Description Amount
52402 06/30/2023 June 2023 Services, Matter # 3207/002 $7,827.55
52211 05/31/2023 May 2023 Services, Matter # 3207/002 $2,930.00
51879 04/30/2023 April 2023 Services, Matter # 3207/002 $622.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $11,380.05

139298 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable SOUTHERN TIRE MART $9,685.22
Invoice Date Description Amount
7320006485 07/12/2023 INSTALL NEW LOADER TIRES $7,883.38
7320006296 06/30/2023 TIRES $1,801.84
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $7,883.38
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $1,801.84

139299 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable STANISLAUS COUNCIL OF GOV $5,191.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
FY 2023/24 07/05/2023 FY 2023/24 StanCOG Dues $5,191.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $5,191.00

139300 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable STOMMEL INC DBA LEHR AUTO 
ELECTRIC

$404.96

Invoice Date Description Amount
SI89034 06/30/2023 PARTS $404.96

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 10 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256333','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256334','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256335','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256336','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256337','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256338','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256339','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $404.96

139301 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TID $18,900.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
29384 06/22/2023 Gomes Lake O&M 7/1/23 - 6/30/24 $18,900.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $18,900.00

139302 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TOLAR MANUFACTURING CO $1,677.22
Invoice Date Description Amount
14757 06/30/2023 Transit Center-Map Case $1,677.22
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $1,677.22

139303 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TOTLCOM - VOICE & DATA 
SYSTEMS

$447.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
321955 05/03/2023 Enhanced Mitel Reports $149.00
322063 05/31/2023 Enhanced Mitel Reports $149.00
322474 06/30/2023 Enhanced Mitel Reports $149.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $447.00

139304 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURF STAR $659.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
7286200-00 06/30/2023 V Belt $400.15
7289338-00 07/13/2023 TURFSTAR PARTS $259.42
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $400.15
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $259.42

139305 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK SCAVENGER/SWEEPING $26,608.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
06-2023 06/30/2023 June 2023 Street Sweeping $26,608.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $26,608.00

139306 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK UMPIRE GROUP $5,443.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2023-04 07/28/2023 Adult Softball Umpires - June 2023 $5,443.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $5,443.00

139307 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT $1,066.10
Invoice Date Description Amount
23USB131228 07/24/2023 California State Fee for Regulatory Costs 7/1/23-

6/30/24
$1,066.10

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,066.10

139308 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable UNITED RENTAL INC $399.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
221718726-001 07/06/2023 UNITED RENTAL - SCISSOR LIFT $174.89
221731338-001 07/06/2023 BLADE, DI, MSNRY GEN $224.85

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 11 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256340','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256341','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256342','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256343','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256344','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256345','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256346','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256347','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $174.89
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $224.85

139309 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable VERIZON WIRELESS $473.20
Invoice Date Description Amount
9939940211 07/18/2023 642482150-00001 UTILITY WELL SITES-SIM CARD 

USAGE(6/19-7/18/23)
$473.20

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $473.20

139310 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Victor M. Rivera DBA V. Rivera 
Concrete, Inc.

$4,080.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
1391 06/30/2023 SIDEWALK REPAIR 2490 CROWELL RD $4,080.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $4,080.00

139311 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable WILLEY PRINTING CO $2,346.26
Invoice Date Description Amount
147581 06/23/2023 Transit-Brochures Printing $1,831.28
147600 07/19/2023 Miranda Warning Scratch Pads $514.98
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $514.98
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $1,831.28

139312 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable WOOD RODGERS INC $6,129.51
Invoice Date Description Amount
171474 06/30/2023 Wellhead Treatment Through June 2023 $6,129.51
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $6,129.51

139313 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable AMERISOURCEBERGEN, MWI 
ANIMAL HEALTH 

$123.29

Invoice Date Description Amount
48927067 07/21/2023 TZED INJ FOR AC $123.29
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $123.29

139314 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable AMERISOURCEBERGEN, MWI 
ANIMAL HEALTH 

$54.31

Invoice Date Description Amount
48927100 07/21/2023 ROMPUN INJ FOR AC $54.31
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $54.31

139315 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable HERNANDEZ, LUZ $120.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2023-00234771 07/27/2023 A/C REFUND $120.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
203 - Animal Fee Forfeiture 203.11000 (Cash) $120.00

139316 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable IBARRA, MICHAEL, YADEGAR $65.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
IBARRA 03/20/2023 REIMBURSMENT FOR T2 $65.00

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 12 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256348','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256349','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256350','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256351','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256352','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256353','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256354','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256355','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $65.00

139317 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable MORGAN, MELANIE $1,105.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
13906859 07/26/2023 PLAY REFUND $1,105.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,105.00

139318 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable NAVARRO, FRANCISCO $340.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR#4841-PER DIEM 07/28/2023 CACC CONFERENCE, DALLAS, TX, 8/6/23-8/11/23 $340.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $340.00

139319 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Padilla, Arturo $80.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
388706 06/07/2023 Reimbursement for Certificate Renewal - 6/7/23 $80.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $80.00

139320 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable Pages Editorial Services $275.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
turlock2023 07/24/2023 Good News Health & Safety Newsletter $275.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $275.00

139321 08/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable PEREZ, DEVIN $185.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
PEREZ 03/13/2023 REIMBURSMENT FOR COLLECTION GRADE 1 $185.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $185.00

Type Check Totals: 79 Transactions $650,912.50
AP - Accounts Payable Totals

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 79 $650,912.50 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 79 $650,912.50 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 79 $650,912.50 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 13 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256356','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256357','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256358','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256359','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256360','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Total 79 $650,912.50 $0.00
Grand Totals:

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 79 $650,912.50 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 79 $650,912.50 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 79 $650,912.50 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 79 $650,912.50 $0.00

Monday, August 7, 2023Pages: 14 of 14user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/28/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/3/2023



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

AP - Accounts Payable
Check
139322 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable AT&T MOBILITY $4,189.54

Invoice Date Description Amount
5728X07272023 07/19/2023 287262975728 / IT & WQC $204.60
5677X07272023 07/19/2023 287262975677 / WQC/Utilities Phones/Data $994.29
4412X07272023 07/19/2023 995824412 / Aircards $2,990.65
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,680.26
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $1,009.10
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $479.73
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $20.45

139323 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable AT&T/SBC $65.82
Invoice Date Description Amount
RELAY 8/1/23 08/01/2023 Acct# 248 134-2929 655 9/ California Relay Srvc TDD $4.28
FIRE 8/1/23 08/01/2023 Acct# 233 841-5391 333 1/ Fire Dept $61.54
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $65.82

139324 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, 
RUUD & ROMO

$26,276.25

Invoice Date Description Amount
686159 06/30/2023 Legal Services June 2023 $26,276.25
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $24,586.93
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $1,039.08
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $650.24

139325 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable CA-NV SECTION AWWA $848.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
Timothy P Hartt 08/01/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Tim Hartt $106.00
Michael K Powell 08/01/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Michael Powell $106.00
Richard Quaresma 08/01/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Richard Quaresma $106.00
Alex Montez 08/01/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Alex Montez $106.00
Matthew Waggoner 08/01/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Matt Waggoner $106.00
Eric Heaslett 08/02/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Eric Heaslett $106.00
Ismael Contreras 08/02/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Ismael Contreras $106.00
Rene Gutierrez 08/08/2023 SRWA AWWA Membership - Rene Gutierrez $106.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $848.00

139326 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable CINCINNATI LIFE INS INC $419.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
4008899587 08/04/2023 JULY 2023 PREMIUMS $419.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $419.50

139327 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable COGDILL AND ASSOCIATES INC $5,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
June 26, 2023 06/28/2023 Appraisal Services - 506 S. Kilroy & 501 S. Walnut $5,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $5,000.00

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 1 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256488','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256489','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256490','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256491','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256492','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256493','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139328 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable CSG CONSULTANTS INC $720.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
B231080 06/01/2023  PLAN CHECK SERVICES FOR BP#20-0526 $720.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $720.00

139329 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable CSJVRMA $516,648.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
RMA 2024-0050 07/24/2023 2023/2024 1st Quarter Deposits $516,648.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $525.00
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $13.00
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $96.00
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $2.00
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $45.00
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $5.00
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $18.00
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $209.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $108.00
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $44.00
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $3.00
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $57.00
505 - Fleet 505.11000 (Cash) $5.00
512 - Casualty Insurance 512.11000 (Cash) $515,518.00

139330 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable FEDERAL EXPRESS $98.18
Invoice Date Description Amount
8-213-49170 08/04/2023 SHIPPING CHARGES FOR 8/4/23 $98.18
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $85.77
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $12.41

139331 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable FRANCHISE TAX BOARD $2,059.76
Invoice Date Description Amount
07312023WILSON 08/04/2023 7-15-23 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING $2,059.76
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,059.76

139332 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable FRANCHISE TAX BOARD $256.11
Invoice Date Description Amount
07312023GONZALEZ 08/04/2023 7-31-23 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING $256.11
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $256.11

139333 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable GDR ENGINEERING INC $15,463.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
28321 05/31/2023 SR09, 21-018 Lander Ave Rehabilitation-5/1/23 - 

5/31/23
$5,480.00

28367 07/31/2023 SR12, 20-002 SW Quadrant Road Rehabilitation- 
7/31/23

$8,150.00

28322 05/31/2023 SR01, 19-40 On Call Land Surveying Services-5/1/23 - 
5/31/23

$1,050.00

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 2 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256494','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256495','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256496','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256497','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256498','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256499','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

28246 04/30/2023 SR01, 19-40 On Call Land Surveying Services-4/1/23-
4/30/23

$783.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
218 - Measure L 218.11000 (Cash) $13,630.00
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $1,833.00

139334 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable GOMES & SONS INC, JOE M $36,534.28
Invoice Date Description Amount
68437 07/31/2023 CUST #24090 - Fuel Expense for 7/16/23-7/31/23 $34,393.36
68055 07/28/2023 Fuel for Fire #3 $2,436.30
68436 07/28/2023 Fuel for Fire #3 $2,140.92
68435C 07/28/2023 Fuel for Fire #3 - CREDIT FOR INV#68055 ($2,436.30)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $17,836.48
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $405.45
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $1,789.60
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $1,595.33
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $133.02
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $144.17
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $3,933.73
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $3,276.45
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $6,876.39
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $237.37
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $306.29

139335 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Granberg & Associates $20,125.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
62 06/30/2023 SRWA Contract General Manager for 2022-23 for June 

2023
$20,125.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA - JPA 950.11000 (Cash) $20,125.00

139336 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable GREEN HORIZON INC $760.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
38964 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-829/831 Vermont 

July 2023
$100.00

38965 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services- 570 JasonDr July 
2023

$80.00

38967 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-1205 Lambert July 
2023

$120.00

38970 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-573 Birchwood July 
2023

$120.00

38969 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-901 High St July 
2023

$120.00

38968 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-2065 Cody Dr July 
2023

$120.00

38966 08/01/2023 Landscape Maintenance Services-1827 Shadow Pk- 
July 2023

$100.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $640.00
256 - Stanislaus Housing Consortium 256.11000 (Cash) $120.00

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 3 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256500','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256501','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256502','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139337 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable HCI SYSTEMS INC $1,475.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
I0037122 04/28/2023 Service Order SV2302170043 $1,475.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,475.00

139338 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Inferrera Construction Mgmt Group, 
Inc

$37,082.29

Invoice Date Description Amount
23076 06/30/2023 SRWA - Construction Management 2022-23 for June 

2023
$37,082.29

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA - JPA 950.11000 (Cash) $37,082.29

139339 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. $63,668.02
Invoice Date Description Amount
47995R 06/30/2023 22-001 CM for Projects for 2022 Construction Rds 

Program-6/30/23
$63,668.02

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
115 - Measure A - Roads 115.11000 (Cash) $63,668.02

139340 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Mountain Cascade, Inc. $407,522.23
Invoice Date Description Amount
020 06/30/2023 18-69 Surface Water Distribution System Improv 

6/1/23-6/30/23
$407,522.23

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $407,522.23

139341 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable O'DELL ENGINEERING, INC $4,314.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
3751301 06/30/2023 19-51 Design Services for Columbia Pool Improv-

6/5/23-6/30/23
$4,314.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
301 - Capital Improvements 301.11000 (Cash) $4,314.00

139342 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable OLIVER THOMAS & HOLLIS 
INVESTIGATIONS, INC

$9,504.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
22535 06/30/2023 Oliver, Thomas, & Hollis Services 2.8.2023 $4,686.00
22607 06/30/2023 Oliver, Thomas, & Hollis Services 5.19.2023 $4,818.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $9,504.00

139343 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable P G & E $37.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
COLUMBIA 8/2/23 08/02/2023 6180280303-3 / 600 Columbia St $8.65
HIGH 8/2/23 08/02/2023 0221941093-9 / 595 High St $8.38
R.BOESCH 8/2/23 08/02/2023 4388605407-1 / 275 N Orange $20.35
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $37.38

139344 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable PROVOST AND PRITCHARD 
ENGINEERING GROUP

$35,693.64

Invoice Date Description Amount
102308 07/24/2023 City Wide Chlorination Project June 1 - June 30th 2023 $8,527.95

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 4 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256503','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256504','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256505','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256506','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256507','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256508','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256509','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256510','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

101966 06/30/2023 23-032 Engineering Design Services Task Order 1-
6/1/23 - 6/30/23

$27,165.69

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
115 - Measure A - Roads 115.11000 (Cash) $27,165.69
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $8,527.95

139345 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable SEEGERS PRINTING INC $1,715.19
Invoice Date Description Amount
0141758-IN 07/24/2023 Chlorination Bill Insert - August $1,715.19
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,715.19

139346 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable T I D $19.49
Invoice Date Description Amount
07/26/23 ShadowP 07/26/2023 Acct 5637003297 for 1827 Shadow Park $19.49
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $19.49

139347 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable THE MCCLATCHY COMPANY LLC $4,363.25
Invoice Date Description Amount
438353 07/02/2023 Utilities Maintenance Worker I 7/2/23-7/5/23 $539.00
438358 07/02/2023 Utilities Maintenance Worker I 7/2/23-7/5/23 $803.50
444687 07/16/2023 City Engineer 7/16/23-7/23/23 $861.50
415512 06/30/2023 Information Technology Technician 4/30/23-5/3/23 $533.00
415515 06/30/2023 Information Technology Technician 4/30/23-5/3/23 $774.50
417675 05/07/2023 Housing Program Manager 5.7.23-5.14.2023 $851.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $851.75
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $671.25
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $671.25
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $1,307.50
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $861.50

139348 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable THORSEN'S-NORQUIST, INC. $766.25
Invoice Date Description Amount
1138491 07/31/2023 901 High St- labor for HVAC issue $337.50
1138509 07/31/2023 901 High St- HVAC work -clean out $428.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $766.25

139349 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS INC $5,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
20213 07/31/2023 Consulting Services for July 2023 $5,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $2,500.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $2,500.00

139350 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK CITY TOW INC $40.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
128790 06/23/2023 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 6/23/23 $40.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $40.00

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 5 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256511','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256512','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256513','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256514','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256515','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256516','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139351 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK JOURNAL $165.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
344303 08/02/2023 Public Notice for 7/6/23 Planning Commission Meeting $165.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $165.00

139352 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK SCAVENGER CO INC $741,565.77
Invoice Date Description Amount
JUN 2023 TRUE UP 08/10/2023 JUNE 2023 TRUE UP $390,068.97
JUL 2023 TRUP UP 08/10/2023 JULY 2023 JULY TRUE UP $351,496.80
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $741,565.77

139353 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable UTILITY TELECOMP GROUP LLC $1,323.93
Invoice Date Description Amount
0128444230801 08/01/2023 Acct #128444 - Public Safety internet service $733.71
0131803230801 08/01/2023 Acct #131803 - Transit Center telephone $590.22
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $733.71
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $590.22

139354 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Viking Shred, LLC $296.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
51130994 07/11/2023 CITY WIDE SHREDDING - JULY 2023 $296.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $266.00
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $30.00

139355 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable WINTON-IRELAND STROM AND 
GREEN INSURANCE

$3,072.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
970001 08/01/2023 Add: WT23-875 2023 Ford F250 $113.00
962902 07/10/2023 Add Police & SRWA Vehicles, Inc Buses $2,959.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,135.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $113.00
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $361.00
450 - SRWA - Operations 450.11000 (Cash) $463.00

139356 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable BLANC, KEVIN $216.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4829 PER DIEM 07/14/2023 CHIA, LAS VEGAS, 8/15/23 - 8/18/23 - BLANC $216.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $216.00

139357 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable D.A. WOOD CONSTRUCTION $2,246.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
METER #14759390 06/30/2023 HYDRANT METER #14759390 PERMIT REFUND $2,246.57
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,471.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) ($224.43)

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 6 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256517','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256518','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256519','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256520','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256521','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256522','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256523','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

139358 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable DUSEL, JOSEPH $350.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4847 PER DIEM 08/08/2023 POST MGMT. COURSE #24-2 MODULE A, SANTA 

CRUZ, 8/20/23-8/25/23
$350.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $350.00

139359 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable Garcia, Raymond $445.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
Prof Dev FY23/24 08/01/2023 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FY 23/24 $445.35
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $222.67
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $222.68

139360 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable IBARRA, MICHAEL $65.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
IBARRA 08/08/2023 REIMBURSEMENT FOR T2 $65.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $65.00

139361 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable IBARRA, MICHAEL $320.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
PER DIEM 4845 08/04/2023 MITCH'S BACKFLOW CLASS, SACRAMENTO CA, 

08/20/23-08/25/23
$320.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $320.00

139362 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable NAVARRO , FRANCISCO $216.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4829 PER DIEM 07/14/2023 CHIA, LAS VEGAS, 8/15/23 - 8/18/23 - NAVARRO $216.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $216.00

139363 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable RUCKER, GREG $320.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
PER DIEM 4845 08/04/2023 MITCH'S BACKFLOW CLASS, SACRAMENTO CA, 

08/20/23-08/25/23
$320.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $320.00

139364 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable SINGH, JAGDEV $99,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
EP23-094E 08/05/2023 IMPROVEMENT SECURITY 905 FLOWER STREET $99,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $99,000.00

139365 08/10/2023 Open Accounts Payable SLIFERT, LYDIA $34.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
BL #502503 08/08/2023 REFUND BL OVERPAYMENT $34.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $34.00

Type Check Totals: 44 Transactions $2,050,299.80
AP - Accounts Payable Totals

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 7 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256524','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256525','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256526','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256527','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256528','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256529','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256530','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256531','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Open 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00

Grand Totals:
Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount

Open 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 44 $2,050,299.80 $0.00

Tuesday, August 15, 2023Pages: 8 of 8user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 8/4/2023 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2023



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

AP - Accounts Payable
EFT
4962 03/02/2023 Open Accounts Payable Cypress Title Corporation $373,159.60

Invoice Date Description Amount
573Birchwood-Pur 03/02/2023 Purchase of 573 Birchwood Way, Turlock CA $373,159.60
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $93,159.60
256 - Stanislaus Housing Consortium 256.11000 (Cash) $280,000.00

4963 03/02/2023 Open Accounts Payable OLD REPUBLIC TITLE CO $438,088.63
Invoice Date Description Amount
1827 Shadow Park 03/02/2023 Purchase of 1827 Shadow Park Dr $438,088.63
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $158,088.63
256 - Stanislaus Housing Consortium 256.11000 (Cash) $280,000.00

5028 03/21/2023 Open Accounts Payable CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc $3,316,765.09
Invoice Date Description Amount
31 Rev 00 03/09/2023 SRWA - Design Build Contract 2022-23 for February 

2023
$3,316,765.09

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA - JPA 950.11000 (Cash) $3,316,765.09

5029 03/24/2023 Open Accounts Payable COHNREZNICK LLP $50,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
03/17/23 03/23/2023 Housing Services - Retainer $50,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $20,000.00
256 - Stanislaus Housing Consortium 256.11000 (Cash) $20,000.00
625 - Successor Agency - LMI 625.11000 (Cash) $10,000.00

5130 03/24/2023 Open Accounts Payable US BANK-VISA $103,072.04
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/22/2023X9452 03/24/2023 Procurement Card Charges - 3/22/23 Statement $103,072.04
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $103,072.04

5307 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $40.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
817327431 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - RETIREE $40.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $40.00

5308 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $1,524.97
Invoice Date Description Amount
817327430 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - TAPO $1,524.97
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $1,524.97

5309 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $712.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
817327425 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - FIRE $712.57
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $712.57

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 1 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=246796','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=246797','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=248363','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=249071','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=250083','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256365','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256366','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256367','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5310 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $1,112.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
817327423 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - TCEA $1,112.40
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $1,112.40

5311 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $241.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
817327420 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - MGMT $241.35
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $241.35

5312 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $74.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
817330529 03/13/2023 CLAIMS FEBRUARY 2023 - CITY OF TURLOCK $74.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $74.50

5313 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $15.33
Invoice Date Description Amount
817293386 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - CITY OF TURLOCK $15.33
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $15.33

5314 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $81.76
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305422 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - RETIREES $81.76
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $81.76

5315 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $10.22
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305423 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - TMAPS $10.22
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $10.22

5316 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $189.07
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305425 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - FIRE $189.07
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $189.07

5317 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $51.10
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305426 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - CONFIDENTIAL $51.10
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $51.10

5318 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $66.43
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305427 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - MGMT $66.43
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $66.43

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 2 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256368','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256369','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256370','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256371','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256372','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256373','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256374','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256375','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256376','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5319 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $771.61
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305428 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - TCEA $771.61
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $771.61

5320 03/13/2023 Open Accounts Payable VISION SERVICE PLAN CA $434.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
817305424 03/13/2023 PREMIUMS MARCH 2023 - TAPO $434.35
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $434.35

5321 03/07/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $285,717.78
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/07/2023 2/28/23PR-CALPERS $285,717.78
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $285,717.94
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) ($0.16)

5322 03/23/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $279,316.73
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/23/2023 3/15/23PR-CALPERS $279,316.73
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $279,316.75
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) ($0.02)

5323 03/01/2023 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $6,263.02
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE005405948 03/31/2023 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 2/17/23-2/23/23 $6,263.02
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $6,263.02

5324 03/01/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $103,065.51
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/21/23-2/27/23 03/31/2023 UMR CLAIMS FOR 2/21/23-2/27/23 $103,065.51
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $103,065.51

5325 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable CA SDU $2,649.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $2,649.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,649.50

5326 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable GOLDEN ONE CREDIT UNION $5,574.31
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-GOLDEN 1 CU $5,574.31
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $5,574.31

5327 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $190,974.59
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-FEDERAL TAXES $190,974.59
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $190,974.59

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 3 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256377','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256378','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256379','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256380','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256381','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256382','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256383','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256384','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256385','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5328 03/06/2023 Open Accounts Payable STATE OF CALIFORNIA - PR TAXES $56,967.99
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/2/23PR 03/06/2023 2/28/23PR-STATE TAXES $56,967.99
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $56,967.99

5329 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $5,203.60
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-TAPO DUES $5,203.60
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $5,203.60

5330 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $2,875.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-TCEA DUES $2,875.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,875.50

5331 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable TMAPS $250.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-TMAPS DUES $250.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $250.00

5332 03/03/2023 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $71.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR-BENEVO 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-TCEA BENEVOLENCE DUES $71.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $71.00

5333 03/06/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $1,903.99
Invoice Date Description Amount
8/31/22PR-CORR 03/06/2023 8/31/22PR-D ANTHIENY & M DIAZ RETRO CANINE $1,903.99
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $1,885.41
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $18.58

5334 03/06/2023 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $156.17
Invoice Date Description Amount
8/31/22PR-CORR 03/06/2023 8/31/22PR-R GARCIA $156.17
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $156.17

5335 03/06/2023 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $88,050.80
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/06/2023 2/28/23PR-ICMA $88,050.80
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $88,050.80

5336 03/08/2023 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $10,747.21
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE005415350 03/08/2023 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 2/24/23-3/2/23 $10,747.21
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $10,747.21

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 4 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256386','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256387','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256388','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256389','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256390','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256391','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256392','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256393','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256394','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5337 03/08/2023 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $14,850.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR-RHS 03/08/2023 2/28/23PR-TAPO RHS DUES $14,850.44
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $14,850.44

5338 03/08/2023 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $8,554.97
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR-RHS 03/08/2023 2/28/23PR-TFRA RHS DUES $8,554.97
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $8,554.97

5339 03/08/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $151,310.27
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23-3/6/23 03/08/2023 UMR CLAIMS FOR 2/28/23-3/6/23 $151,310.27
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $151,310.27

5340 03/09/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $183.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
1/31/22PR-CORR 5 03/09/2023 1/31/22PR-CALPERS CORRECTION TO 

UNDERPAYMENT ON 2/11/22
$183.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $183.01
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) ($0.01)

5341 03/15/2023 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $7,838.12
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE005418263 03/15/2023 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 3/3/23-3/9/23 $7,838.12
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $7,838.12

5342 03/14/2023 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $11,819.78
Invoice Date Description Amount
1/15/23PR-GROSSM 03/14/2023 1/15/23PR-C GROSSMAN RHS $11,819.78
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $11,819.78

5343 03/15/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $121,479.29
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/7/23-3/13/23 03/15/2023 UMR CLAIMS FOR 3/7/23-3/13/23 $121,479.29
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $121,479.29

5344 03/16/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR ($972.34)
Invoice Date Description Amount
FEB23 COBRA REF 03/16/2023 UMR FEBRUARY COBRA REFUND ($972.34)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) ($972.34)

5345 03/16/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR ($5,892.00)
Invoice Date Description Amount
FEB23 RET REFUND 03/16/2023 UMR FEBRUARY 2023 RETIREE REFUND ($5,892.00)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) ($5,892.00)

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 5 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256395','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256396','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256397','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256398','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256399','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256400','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256401','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256402','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256403','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5346 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable CA SDU $2,555.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $2,555.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,555.00

5347 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable GOLDEN ONE CREDIT UNION $5,574.31
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-GOLDEN 1 CU $5,574.31
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $5,574.31

5348 03/21/2023 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $88,503.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/21/2023 3/15/23PR-ICMA $88,503.40
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $88,503.40

5349 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $170,894.54
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-FEDERAL TAXES $170,894.54
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $170,894.54

5350 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable STATE OF CALIFORNIA - PR TAXES $50,525.14
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-STATE TAXES $50,525.14
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $50,525.14

5351 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $5,133.60
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-TAPO DUES $5,133.60
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $5,133.60

5352 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $2,956.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-TCEA DUES $2,956.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,956.50

5353 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $5,331.48
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-TFRA DUES $5,331.48
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $5,331.48

5354 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK CITY FIRE INC $420.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-FIRE INC DUES $420.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $420.00

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 6 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256404','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256405','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256406','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256407','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256408','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256409','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256410','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256411','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256412','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

5355 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK HEALTH & FITNESS 
CENTER, INC, DBA BRENDA 
ATHLETIC

$215.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-TURLOCK HEALTH CLUB $215.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $215.00

5356 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $73.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR-BENEVO 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-TCEA BENEVOLENCE DUES $73.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $73.00

5357 03/21/2023 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $14,857.77
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR-RHS 03/21/2023 3/15/23PR-TAPO RHS DUES $14,857.77
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $14,857.77

5358 03/21/2023 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $8,561.39
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/15/23PR-RHS 03/21/2023 3/15/23PR-TFRA RHS DUES $8,561.39
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $8,561.39

5359 03/22/2023 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $7,889.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE005422954 03/22/2023 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 3/10/23-3/16/23 $7,889.40
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $7,889.40

5360 03/22/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $418.78
Invoice Date Description Amount
APR 23 CUSTODIAL 03/22/2023 UMR APRIL 2023 CUSTODIAL AND BANKING FEE $418.78
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $418.78

5361 03/22/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $115,974.24
Invoice Date Description Amount
APR 23 PREM 03/22/2023 UMR APRIL 2023 HEALTH PREMIUMS $115,974.24
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $115,974.24

5362 03/22/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $176,581.63
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/14/23-3/20/23 03/22/2023 UMR CLAIMS FOR 3/14/23-3/20/23 $176,581.63
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $176,581.63

5363 03/23/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $136.96
Invoice Date Description Amount
9/30 & 10/15/22 03/23/2023 9/30/22 & 10/15/22PR-CALPERS-V MOSHI $136.96
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $136.93

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 7 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256413','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256414','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256415','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256416','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256417','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256418','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256419','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256420','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256421','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $0.03

5364 03/24/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $45,987.14
Invoice Date Description Amount
11/30/22PR-HOL 03/24/2023 11/30/22PR-CALPERS-PD HOLIDAY CASH OUTS $45,987.14
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $45,986.98
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $0.16

5365 03/24/2023 Open Accounts Payable UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
OF AMERICA

$21,089.65

Invoice Date Description Amount
APRIL 2023 03/24/2023 UNUM LTD AND LIFE INSURANCE FOR APRIL 2023 $21,089.65
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $21,089.65

5366 03/29/2023 Open Accounts Payable UMR $103,369.21
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/21/23-3/27/23 03/29/2023 UMR CLAIMS FOR 3/21/23-3/27/23 $103,369.21
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $103,369.21

5367 03/31/2023 Open Accounts Payable INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $181,857.17
Invoice Date Description Amount
3/31/23PR 03/31/2023 3/31/23PR-FEDERAL TAXES $181,857.17
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $181,857.17

5368 03/20/2023 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $425.24
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR-RETRO 03/20/2023 2/28/23PR-CALPERS-RETRO CORRECTION-DHAMI $425.24
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $425.24

5369 03/06/2023 Open Accounts Payable INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $97.92
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR-DURAN 03/06/2023 2/28/23PR-FEDERAL TAXES-DURAN $97.92
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $97.92

5370 03/31/2023 Open Accounts Payable Optum Bank, Inc. $21,210.92
Invoice Date Description Amount
2/28/23PR 03/03/2023 2/28/23PR-HSA EE & ER $10,631.50
3/15/23PR 03/20/2023 3/15/23PR-HSA EE & ER $10,579.42
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $21,210.92

Type EFT Totals: 69 Transactions $6,666,009.64
AP - Accounts Payable Totals

EFTs Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 8 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256422','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256423','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256424','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256425','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256426','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256427','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=256428','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00

Grand Totals:
EFTs Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount

Open 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 69 $6,666,009.64 $0.00

Friday, August 4, 2023Pages: 9 of 9user: Connysue Stow

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 3/1/2023 - To Payment Date: 3/31/2023









City Council Meeting Minutes 
August 8, 2023 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Bublak called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
Present: Councilmembers Cassandra Abram, Rebecka Monez, Kevin Bixel, Vice Mayor Pam 

Franco, and Mayor Amy Bublak. 
Absent: None  
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

None None None 8B 8A 

 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

 

Motion: Approval of Agenda as posted as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Vice 
Mayor Franco and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
 

2. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS 
 

A. Proclamation Certificate of Appreciation – Golden Valley Health Centers (Bublak) 
 
Mayor Bublak presented a certificate of appreciation to Golden Valley Health Centers. 

 

B. Presentation Certificate of Achievement – Turlock Little League 
 
Mayor Bublak presented a certificate of achievement to members of the Turlock Little League 
Teams – Turlock American Little League 11U All Stars and Turlock American Little League 
10Y All Stars. 
 

C. Presentation We Care Program Update (Maris Sturtevant) 
 
This item was pulled. 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

D. Appointment Measure A Citizen Oversight Committee 
 
Mayor Bublak recommended the appointment of Linda Gatton to the Measure A 
Citizen's Oversight Committee. 
 
Action: Motion by Mayor Bublak, seconded by Councilmember Monez, appointing Linda Gatton 
to the Measure A Citizen’s Oversight Committee.  Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote: 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5B



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 2 
 

 
3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mayor Bublak opened public participation and the following members of the public spoke: 
 
Curtis (no last name given) 
John Gebelein 
Milt Trieweiler 
Lori Smith 
Ron Bridegroom 
Ron Puffer 
Debra Koftinow 
Becky Arellano 
Kathy Russell 
Mary Jackson 
 
With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public participation. 
 

4. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE 
 
Motion: Waiving reading of all ordinances on the agenda, except by title as motioned by Vice Mayor 
Franco, seconded by Councilmember Abram and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Mayor Bublak announced that Consent Item 5D, 5G, 5H would be pulled for separate 
consideration. 
 
A. Resolution 2023-184: Accepting Weekly Demands of 07/20/2023 in the amount of 

$1,507,678.47, 07/27/2023 in the amount of $1,797,869.11 and the EFT Payment Register for 
February 2023 in the amount of $7,299,855.99 
 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the 07/25/2023 Regular Meeting of the City of Turlock City 
Council 

 

C. Resolution 2023-185: Approving an agreement with Chemtrade Chemicals Corporation under 
Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC) cooperative agreement Bid No. 01-2023 “For Supply 
and Delivery of Aluminum Sulfate,” for a period of one (1) year, in an amount not to exceed an 
annual compensation of $200,000, funded in the Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA) 
operations budget fund 450 “SRWA Operations” account number 450-53-550.44005 
“Chemicals” (Goodman) 
 

D. Item pulled for separate consideration 
 
E. Resolution 2023-186: Authorizing the investment of monies in the Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) (Moreno) 
 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 3 
 

F. Resolution 2023-187: Approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
Stanislaus County Office of Education, the City of Turlock, and the Turlock Unified School 
District authorizing the acceptance of an allocation of funds and execution of a grant MOU to 
implement the After-School Education and Safety (ASES) Program for the 2023-2024 school 
year (Schulze) 

 

G. Item pulled for separate consideration 
 

H. Item pulled for separate consideration  
 

I. Resolution 2023-190: Authorizing the City Manager to execute applications and contracts, 
along with any other documents necessary to apply for and accept grant funds administered 
by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District for the Public Benefit Grants Program 
(Hedden) 

 
  Action: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Abram, to adopt the 

Consent Calendar as amended, and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
5D. Rejecting all bids submitted for City Project No. 21-044 "Pedretti Park Lighting Improvements" 

(Schulze) 
 
 Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and the following individual spoke: 
 
 Ron Bridegroom 
 Ron Puffer 
 Milt Trieweiler 
 

With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 
 

Director Schulze responded to questions from the public. 
 

Action: Motion: Rejecting all bids submitted for City Project No. 21-044 "Pedretti Park Lighting 
Improvements" as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Vice Mayor Franco, and 
carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Abram 
Councilmember 

Bixel 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
5G. Approving Amendment No. 3 to an Agreement between the City of Turlock and Joe Gomes 

and Sons, Inc. for card-lock fueling services for gasoline and diesel fuel for all City owned 
vehicles and equipment, increase the annual compensation amount to $1,000,000, and in a 
total amount not to exceed $5,400,000, if all renewal periods are exercised, to City account(s) 
46031  (Moreno) 

 
 Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and the following individual spoke: 
 
 Milt Trieweiler 
 Ron Puffer 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 4 
 

 Ron Bridegroom 
 

With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 
 

Director Moreno responded to questions from the public and from the City Council. 
 

Action: Resolution 2023-188: Approving Amendment No. 3 to an Agreement between the City 
of Turlock and Joe Gomes and Sons, Inc. for card-lock fueling services for gasoline and diesel 
fuel for all City owned vehicles and equipment, increase the annual compensation amount to 
$1,000,000, and in a total amount not to exceed $5,400,000, if all renewal periods are 
exercised, to City account(s) 46031as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Vice 
Mayor Franco, and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Abram 
Councilmember 

Bixel 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
5H. Approving the Tentative Agreement updating the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) 

between the City of Turlock and Turlock Firefighters, Local # 2434 (FIRE) covering the period 
of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024 with no appropriation needed for $255,362 in Fund 110 
for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 due to salary savings; appropriating $26,693 from unassigned 
reserve in Fund 118 “Measure A” for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to 118-30-300 “Measure A Fire 
Operations” to various salary and benefit accounts; appropriating $485,331 from unassigned 
reserve in Fund 110 “General Fund” for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 to 110-30-300 “Fire Operations” 
to various salary and benefit accounts; appropriating $49,147 from unassigned reserve in Fund 
118 “Measure A” for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 to 118-30-300 “Measure A Fire Operations” to 
various salary and benefit accounts (Dhami) 

 
 Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and the following individual spoke: 
 
 Ron Puffer 
 Milt Trieweiler 
 

With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 
 

Director Dhami and Director Moreno responded to questions from the public and from the City 
Council. 

 
Action: Resolution 2023-189: Approving the Tentative Agreement updating the Memorandum 
of Understanding (“MOU”) between the City of Turlock and Turlock Firefighters, Local # 2434 
(FIRE) covering the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024 with no appropriation needed 
for $255,362 in Fund 110 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 due to salary savings; appropriating 
$26,693 from unassigned reserve in Fund 118 “Measure A” for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to 118-
30-300 “Measure A Fire Operations” to various salary and benefit accounts; appropriating 
$485,331 from unassigned reserve in Fund 110 “General Fund” for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 to 
110-30-300 “Fire Operations” to various salary and benefit accounts; appropriating $49,147 
from unassigned reserve in Fund 118 “Measure A” for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 to 118-30-300 
“Measure A Fire Operations” to various salary and benefit accounts as motioned by 
Councilmember Abram, seconded by Vice Mayor Franco, and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Abram 
Councilmember 

Bixel 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 5 
 

 
6. FINAL READINGS  

None 
 

Mayor called a five (5) minute recess at 7:13 p.m. and called the meeting back to order at 7:18 
p.m. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

A. Approving the Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for all Landscaping and Lighting 
Assessment Districts and all Street Maintenance Benefit Assessment Areas in the City of 
Turlock and confirming diagrams, assessments, and ordering the levying and collection of 
assessments as originally proposed for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for all Landscaping and Lighting 
Assessment Districts and all Street Maintenance Benefit Assessment Areas in the City of 
Turlock pursuant to Resolution No. 97-128 (Schulze) 

 

Director Schulze provided a staff report regarding a request to approve the Engineer’s Report 
for FY 23-24 for all Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts and all Street Maintenance 
Benefit Assessment Areas in the City of Turlock and confirming diagrams, assessments, and 
ordering the levying and collection of assessments as originally proposed for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 for all Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts and all Street Maintenance Benefit 
Assessment Areas in the City of Turlock and explained that this report allows the City to levy 
all the assessments for the following year. 
 
Mayor Bublak opened the public hearing for public comment and the following members of the 
public spoke: 
 
Ron Puffer 
 
With no further comments, Mayor Bublak closed the public comment portion of the meeting. 
 
Action:  
Resolution 2023-191: Approving the Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for all 
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts and all Street Maintenance Benefit 
Assessment Areas in the City of Turlock and Resolution 2023-192: Confirming diagrams, 
assessments, and ordering the levying and collection of assessments as originally proposed 
for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for all Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts (Exhibit A) 
and all Street Maintenance Benefit Assessment Areas (Exhibit B) in the City of Turlock 
pursuant to Resolution No. 97-128 as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Vice 
Mayor Franco, and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

8. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Approving payment of annual investor invoice of $50,000 for year three of a five-year 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Stanislaus Business Alliance (Opportunity 
Stanislaus) Economic Development and Workforce Strategies and authorizing the City 
Manager approve annual payment  (Sims) 

 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 6 
 

Mayor Bublak stated she had a conflict of interest on this item and recused herself from the 
dais.   
 
Economic Development Director Sims provided a staff report on a request to approve payment 
of annual investor invoice for year three of the Memorandum of Understanding with Opportunity 
Stanislaus.  He introduced Dave White, President and CEO of Opportunity Stanislaus, who 
updated the City Council on current programs, projects and events for his agency. 
 
Vice Mayor Franco opened the item for public comment and with no comments received, 
closed public comment. 
 
Action: Motion: Approving payment of annual investor invoice of $50,000 for year three of a 
five-year Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Stanislaus Business Alliance 
(Opportunity Stanislaus) Economic Development and Workforce Strategies and authorizing the 
City Manager approve annual payment as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by 
Councilmember Abram, and carried 4/0 by the following vote: 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Abstained 

 
 

B. Approving a Resolution of Intent to renew the Downtown Turlock Property and Business 

Improvement District (DTPBID), approving the Management District Plan, and reviewing the 

draft PBID Agreement between the City of Turlock and the Turlock Downtown Property 

Owner’s Association (TDPOA) and provide feedback (Sims) 
 

There was a green sheet for this item. 

 

Councilmember Monez stated she had a conflict of interest on this item and recused herself 

from the dais. 

 

Economic Development Director Sims provided a staff report regarding a request to approve 

a resolution of intent to renew the Downtown Turlock Property and Business Improvement 

District (DTPBID).   
   

Director Sims and Director Moreno responded to questions from the City Council. 

 

Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and the following members of the public 

spoke: 

 

Travis Regalo 

Ron Puffer 

 

With no further comments, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 

 

Director Moreno responded to questions from the public. 

 

There was discussion regarding tree maintenance and the proposed cost of tree trimming 

services.  Director Schulze provided additional information regarding what services may be 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 7 
 

necessary for the first few years of the contract. Mayor Bublak suggested working with Turlock 

Irrigation District to see if there could be some cost savings there.   

 

City Attorney Petrulakis stated the City Council could take time to consider the City’s 

obligations in the draft contract and provide direction as to items they would like to change. 

Councilmember Abram would like to see the costs  spread out a little more so it’s not such a 

big ask in the budget. Mayor Bublak stated she would prefer to use that money to invest in a 

shared video type security system such as Fusus.  Police Chief Hedden provided information 

on this type of system. 

 

Mayor Bublak also spoke to Helping Hands and stated that the City should not be the direct 

provider for their services. Vice Mayor Franco agreed and expressed concerned for the amount 

of money the City is being asked for.  

 

City Attorney Petrulakis clarified that the action requested is to do the notice of intention to 

create the district and approving the plan and did not see anything in the report obligating the 

City to any specifics.  He suggested inviting Mr. Regalo up to speak to provide additional 

clarification.  Mr. Regalo confirmed that the request for tonight was for the intent for renewal of 

the Management District Plan.  He also stated that the current contract does not expire until 

December 31st so there was still time to negotiate on the contract.   

 

Action: Resolution 2023-193: Approving a Resolution of Intent to renew the Downtown Turlock 

Property and Business Improvement District (DTPBID), approving the Management District 

Plan and reviewing the draft PBID Agreement between the City of Turlock and the Turlock 

Downtown Property Owner’s Association (TDPOA) and provide feedback as motioned by Vice 

Mayor Franco, seconded by Councilmember Abram and carried 4/0 by the following vote:  

 
Councilmember 

Abram 
Councilmember 

Bixel 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Abstained Yes 

 
 

C. Seeking City Council direction on four (4) policy decisions related to the City’s Cannabis 
Business Pilot Program (Wilson) 

 
City Manager Wilson provided information on the Cannabis Ad-Hoc Committee’s findings and  
recommendations to the City Council for the Cannabis Business Pilot Program. He explained 
a consensus was reached on four (4) of the six (6) policy issues and that the remaining two (2) 
policy matters partly relied on the City Council providing direction on the preliminary four (4) 
issues. City Manager Wilson stated the four (4) policy issues brought for Council deliberation 
and direction were: 

 
1. Status of the pilot program.  The committee is recommending the program be 

continued permanently with appropriate amendments to the ordinance, 
including removing references to a “pilot” program. 

2. Should the City allow new business types to operate?  The committee felt the 
existing ordinance covering retail, cultivation, manufacturing, distribution and 
laboratory testing was adequate and new business types such as consumption 
lounges and cannabis special events should not be considered at this time. 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 8 
 

3. Should the City maintain, increase, or decrease the number of retail licenses?  
The Committee recommends the number of retail licenses should remain at four 
(4). 

4. Should the City set a cap on the number of non-retail licenses? The Committee 
feels the existing market approach is adequate and no cap is required on non-
retail licenses for uses such as cultivation and manufacturing. 

 
City Manager Wilson stated the two policy matters that would require additional deliberations 
were detailed in the memorandum and involved the advantages and disadvantages of utilizing 
development agreements, whether a cannabis tax measure should be pursued, and zoning 
and ordinance changes necessary to improve the program. 

 
The City Council discussed the proposed policies 
 
Councilmember Monez expressed concern about not requiring a cap on non-retail licenses 
and felt that the constituents in her district would be negatively impacted by this and, as such, 
did not agree with not having a cap. 
 
Vice Mayor Franco agreed and would like additional review of the rules and regulations in the 
development agreements to add language that if any of the current business go out, any new 
business would go into a district that does not currently have a cannabis business.  She felt 
there needs to be a cap on retail and expressed concern regarding the potential of the cannabis 
industry’s impact on the Turlock’s Westside Industrial Specific Plan. 
 
There was discussion regarding cannabis sales tax revenue. 
 
Councilmember Abram explained the intent of Committee was to bring forth the four ideas to 
set some parameters before they spend time figuring out items related to zoning, taxation, 
regulatory issues, etc. 
 
Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and the following members of the public 
spoke: 
 
Milt Trieweiler 
Travis Regalo 
 
With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 
 
Mayor Bublak spoke about the Westside Industrial Specific Plan, keeping the cap at four, and 
sales tax revenue from cannabis. 
 
The City Council responded to questions from the public and discussed this item further. City 
staff responded to additional questions from the City Council. 
 
Action: There was a 4/1 consensus from the City Council (Abram, Bixel, Monez, Franco in 
favor, Mayor Bublak not in favor) on policies numbers 1, 2 and 3.  Regarding policy number 4, 
the Cannabis Ad-Hoc Committee will review this item further and bring it back to City Council 
at a later date.  
 

 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 9 
 

D. Approving the purchase of a sprinter van, property and evidence truck and two (2) unmarked 
vehicles with a purchase price not to exceed $295,000 and appropriate funds from Fund 118 
“Measure A” unassigned reserves to account number 118-20-210.48001_090 “Transfers Out 
Vehicle & Equip Replacement” and Fund 506 “Equipment Replacement” account number 506-
00-000-213.38001_090 “Transfers In Vehicle & Equip Replacement” to be expensed from 
account 506-00-000-213.51020 “Equipment Replacement” (Hedden) 

 
Police Chief Hedden provided a staff report regarding a request to purchase new vehicles for 
the Police Department and responded to questions from the City Council. 
 
Mayor Bublak opened the item for public comment and comment was received from the 
following individuals: 
 
Ron Puffer 
 
With no further comment, Mayor Bublak closed public comment. 
 
Chief Hedden responded to questions from the public.  

 

Action: Resolution 2023-194: Approving the purchase of a sprinter van, property and evidence 
truck and two (2) unmarked vehicles with a purchase price not to exceed $295,000 and 
appropriate funds from Fund 118 “Measure A” unassigned reserves to account number 118-
20-210.48001_090 “Transfers Out Vehicle & Equip Replacement” and Fund 506 “Equipment 
Replacement” account number 506-00-000-213.38001_090 “Transfers In Vehicle & Equip 
Replacement” to be expensed from account 506-00-000-213.51020 “Equipment Replacement” 
as motioned by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Vice Mayor Franco, and carried 5/0 by 
the following vote: 
 

Councilmember 
Abram 

Councilmember 
Bixel 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 
 

A. City Manager’s Monthly Reports 
 

This item was included in the agenda packet. 
 

B. Homeless Ad-Hoc Committee – Future Meeting 
 

City Manager Wilson announced the Homeless Ad-Hoc Committee will be meeting on August 
31, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.  He also spoke on the surveys that were sent out to the mobile home 
parks. 

 

10. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 

Vice Mayor Franco stated she is still waiting for information on the Housing meetings and workshop 
dates and when Jeffery Lewis can provide an update to the City Council.  She would like a tracking 
system for their votes. 
 
Mayor Bublak requested additional information on Fusus and, in regards to the Homeless Ad-Hoc 
Committee, requested they look into the number of food providers and reduce and refine any 



 CITY OF TURLOCK  
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 

 

Page 10 
 

duplications.  She wants to make sure other services are not being impacted due to excessiveness 
in one area.  

11. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Councilmember Abram thanked everyone who was involved in National Night Out. 
 
Councilmember Bixel also thanked everyone for their efforts in National Night Out. 
 
Vice Mayor Franco echoed Councilmember Bixel’s comments and welcomed Fire Chief Hunter. 
She also congratulated Mayor Bublak on earning two gold medals in shot put and javelin at the 
2023 World Police and Fire Games.  She also spoke on the number of homeless in Empire. 
 
Councilmember Monez also congratulated the Mayor and spoke about the Police Department’s 
need for the sprinter van.  She talked about the Police Department’s drone and the drone team. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
 

At the request of Mayor Bublak, Deputy City Clerk Fiez read aloud the closed session items. 
 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(2) 
“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the following 
circumstances exist...  A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of the local 
agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, there is a 
significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.” 

Potential Case(s):  (2 cases) 
 

13. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

Mayor Bublak announced there was no reportable action. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor Bublak adjourned the meeting at 9:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted 
 
 

_______________________ 
     Julie Christel, City Clerk 

 
 

   



City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Erik Schulze, Public Works Director 
 
Prepared by: Fred Pezeshk, P.E., Roads Program Manager 
  
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project Nos. 22-001 and 22-017 
"Wayside Drive Reconstruction and Sewer Replacement Project" and 
authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

This action accepts the project improvements, and authorizes the City Engineer to 
file a Notice of Completion for City Project Nos. 22-001 and 22-017 "Wayside Drive 
Reconstruction and Sewer Replacement Project.” 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 
On September 13, 2022, the City Council approved an agreement with D. A. Wood 
Construction Inc., of Oakdale, California, in the amount of $2,088,783.00 for the 
construction of City Project Nos. 22-001 and 22-017 "Wayside Drive Reconstruction 
and Sewer Replacement Project.” 
 
City Project No. 22-017 provided for the sanitary sewer replacement between Geer 
Road and Denair Avenue. This project was identified in the 2013 Sewer System 
Master Plan. The work consisted, in general of: excavation, shoring, demolition, 
removal of existing 15-inch sewer main and construction of new 18-inch sewer main, 
manholes and laterals, backfill, compaction placement and compaction of new 
aggregate base and cold mix temporary resurfacing, removal and reconstruction of 
existing concrete curb, gutter, and sidewalk as necessary for the construction of new 
sewer laterals, utility potholing, traffic control and other associated work. Project 
costs are entirely funded through Water Quality Control funds. 
 
City Project No. 22-001 provided for the roadway reconstruction between Geer Road 
and Pioneer Avenue. The work consisted, in general, of removal of existing 
pavement and base, paving a new Hot Mix Asphalt pavement section, curb and 
sidewalk modifications, ADA ramp construction, adjustment of valve and manhole 
covers to grade, in-kind replacement of traffic loop detectors, striping, and traffic 
control. Project costs are entirely funded through Measure A funds. 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5C



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 2 

 

Subsequent to the approval of the agreement, Contract Change Order (CCO) No. 1 
and CCO No. 2 were approved in accordance with Resolution 2009-246 which 
authorized the City Engineer and City Manager to jointly approve change orders up 
to 5% of the original contract value, up to a maximum amount of $100,000. Adjusted 
contract amounts are as shown below: 
 

 Amount 
% of Original 

Contract 
Approval Date 

Original Contract $ 2,088,783.00 - September 13, 2022 
CCO No. 1 $      47,462.45 2.3 March 17, 2023 
CCO No. 2 (Final) $      38,431.55 1.8 August 2, 2023 
CCO Total $      85,894.00 4.1 
  

Adjusted Total Contract $ 2,174,677.00 
 
Construction has been completed per the approved project plans and specifications. 
Staff requests City Council approval to authorize the City Engineer to file a Notice of 
Completion. The Notice of Completion will establish August 22, 2023, as the official 
date of project completion and effectively limit the contractor’s statutory time to file 
a claim on the project. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Improvements for City Project Nos. 22-001 and 22-017 have been completed. 
 

B. California Civil Code Section 9204 allows a public entity to record a Notice of 
Completion as signed and verified by its agent. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 
 

The final cost impact of the construction contract with D. A. Wood Construction Inc.is 
$2,174,677.00 and will be funded by Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads”, account 
number 115-10-115-51270 “Construction Project” and in Fund 410 “Water Quality 
Control”, account number 410-51-534.51424. Break-down by fund is as follows: 
 
   22-001 22-017 

Road Reconst. Sewer Repl. 
Fund 115 Fund 410 

Original Construction Contract  $2,088,783.00 
Original Amount per Fund $1,195,844.98 $892,938.02 
   

CCO No. 1    $       2,239.26    $  45,223.19 
CCO No. 2 (Final)    $     36,273.26    $    2,158.29 
   

Final Amount per Fund $1,234,357.50 $940,319.50 

Total Construction Contract Cost $2,174,677.00 

 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 3 

 

Sufficient funds are available in both funds. 
 
A portion of the pavement reconstruction, between N. Mitchell Avenue and Kenwood 
Avenue, is within the Stanislaus County Right-of-Way (ROW). The County has 
committed to reimburse the City for cost of improvements within its ROW in 
accordance with Amendment No. 1 to the Memorandum of Understanding between 
Stanislaus County and the City of Turlock as approved by the City Council on 
November 15, 2022. The City is in the process of invoicing the County for 
$31,934.97. This reimbursement amount will be credited to Fund 115 “Measure A – 
Roads.” 
 

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends authorizing the City Engineer to file the Notice of Completion. 
 
7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Recommends approval. 
 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 
 

On September 13, 2022, the City Council determined this project is exempt CEQA 
per Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines as this section exempts projects that involve negligible 
expansion of use of the existing facility. The proposed action does not modify that 
determination; therefore, no additional determination is needed. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. Council could choose to deny authorizing the City Engineer to file the Notice 
of Completion. Staff does not recommend this alternative as all work has been 
completed in accordance with the contract documents. 

 
B. Provide staff with direction on how to proceed. 

 
10.  ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Draft Notice of Completion (NOC) 

B. Contract Change Order No.1 

C. Contract Change Order No.2 (Final) with Final Quantities 



  Attachment A 

 

RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF: 
CITY OF TURLOCK 
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
CITY OF TURLOCK 
Office of the City Clerk 
156 S. Broadway, Suite 230 
TURLOCK, CA  95380-5454 
 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
CITY PROJECT NOS. 22-001 and 22-017 

Wayside Drive Reconstruction and Sewer Replacement Project 
 

Notice is hereby given that work on the above-referenced project located on various 
locations in Turlock, California, was completed by the undersigned agency on August 22, 
2023. The contractor of work is D. A. Wood Construction Inc., 963 Shepard Court, 
Oakdale, California, 95361 and the owner is the City of Turlock, 156 South Broadway, 
Suite 150, Turlock, California, 95380. Kindly, refer to said Project Numbers on all 
communications relating to this work. 
 
 
 
Date:                

(Signature - William D. Morris, PE, PLS; City Engineer; Owner’s Agent) 
City of Turlock 

 
 
 
 

VERIFICATION 
 

I, the undersigned, City Engineer of the owner of the aforesaid interest, have read this notice; I 
know and understand the contents thereof; and the facts stated therein are true of my own 
knowledge. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
CITY OF TURLOCK 
 
 
___________________________ 
William D. Morris, P.E., PLS 
CITY ENGINEER 
OWNER’S AGENT 
 
Executed on _____________, 2023 at Turlock, California, Stanislaus County 



JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment B











Page 1 of 6 

 

 PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT PHONE: (209) 668-5520 

 ENGINEERING DIVISION FAX: (209) 668-5563 
 156 S. BROADWAY, SUITE 150 TDD: (800) 735-2929 
 TURLOCK, CA 95380 engineering@turlock.ca.us 

 

 

Memorandum No. 2 
 
 

To: William D. Morris, PE, PLS; Acting City Engineer 
Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 

From: Fred Pezeshk, Roads Program Manager 

Date: July 25, 2023 

Re: Request for Approval of Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final) for City Project Nos. 22-001 &  
22-017 “Wayside Drive Reconstruction and Sewer Replacement Project” 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Your approval of Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final), in the amount of $38,431.55, is requested. 

On September 13, 2022, the City Council awarded the bid to D. A. Wood Construction Inc. (DAW) 
in the amount of $2,088,783.00 and approved a 10% contingency in the amount of $208,878.30; 
therefore, sufficient funds are available for this Contract Change Order. 

Resolution 2009-246 outlines the City’s process for change order approval. The City Engineer is 
authorized to approve change orders up to 2% of the original contract and the City Manager and City 
Engineer may jointly approve change orders up to 5% of the original contract value, up to a maximum 
amount of $100,000.  All other change orders must be approved by the City Council.  Change Order 
No. 2 (Final) is $38,431.55 (1.8% of the original contract), brings the total change order amount to 
$85,894.00 (4.1% of original contract amount), and may be jointly approved by the City Engineer 
and City Manager. 

Change Order No. 2 (Final) includes the following items: 

2. 1 Various Concrete Modifications to Fit Field Conditions (DAW CCO-020): $5,563.05 

Various modifications related to the concrete improvements were required to fit differing field 
conditions. The changes include the repair to the drainage inlets near N. Palm St., near N. 
Denair, and near Geer Rd., modifying the existing curb near Geer Rd. to accommodate the 
new ADA curb ramp, and other changes. The cost of the various concrete modifications was 
tracked on Force Account.   
 

2. 2 Extended Rental for SWPPP Maintenance and Message Boards (DAW CCO-019): 
$10,702.08 

The Project was delayed by weather conditions which extended the duration of the SWPPP 
monitoring and PCMS rental by an additional 35 working days. The cost for the extended 
rental is prorated for the additional days based on the actual costs of the rental. 
 

2. 3 Cold Weather Concrete Procedures (DAW CCO-018): $2,160.27 

Additional procedures were undertaken to protect the newly placed concrete from the effects 
of the cold temperatures. The cold weather procedures were monitored by the Inspector and 
were tracked based on the quantity of concrete placed using the cold weather procedure. 
The cost of the cold weather procedures was tracked on Force Account.   
 

JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment C



Page 2 of 6 

 

2. 4 Install Additional Survey Monument Wells (DAW CCO-017): $4,206.39 

The Contractor adjusted/installed additional survey monument covers near Kenwood and 
near N. Denair due to differing field conditions. The cost of the additional survey monument 
wells was tracked on Force Account.   
 

2. 5 Return for Bid Item No. 9, 24-Inch SDR-26 Sanitary Sewer PVC SDR-26 Green Storm 
Drain Pipe (DAW CCO-016): $277.92 

The 24-Inch SDR-26 Sanitary Sewer PVC SDR-26 Green Storm Drain Pipe was removed in 
Change Order No. 1 (Item No. 1.9), however the material had already been delivered by the 
time that Change Order was approved. The storm drain pipe had been intended to replace 
the existing pipe but was not needed due to the protections implemented in Ref. RFI #4 - 
Storm Drain at STA 16+72. This charge is for the return of the storm drain pipe. The cost for 
the Return of the storm drain pipe was tracked on Force Account.   
 

2. 6 Adjust Existing SSMH near STA 10+15 and the New SDMH At Noda St. (DAW CCO-
015): $5,205.37 

The existing sanitary sewer manhole near STA 10+15 at the intersection of Wayside Dr. and 
Geer Rd. was modified due to the location of the PG&E gas line on Geer Rd. (Ref. RFI #: 3 
- Geer Road Manhole Removal). The existing PG&E gas line prevented the removal of the 
existing sanitary sewer manhole as shown on the plans; instead, the existing sanitary sewer 
manhole was modified to remain in-place, however this resulted in an additional manhole 
needing to be adjusted to accommodate the new roadway paving work. The decreased 
quantity for the manhole removal was included in Change Order No. 1 (Item No. 1.6); this 
charge is for the adjustment of the manhole that remained at Geer Rd. 
 
A new storm drain manhole was constructed as part of the work for the Storm Drain revisions 
at Noda Street. The storm drain revisions were included in Change Order No. 1 (Item No. 
1.16), which increased the bid item quantity for the 48-inch manholes to accommodate the 
connection of the new CB to the storm drain system, however the additional storm drain 
manhole needed to be adjusted to accommodate the new roadway paving work. This charge 
is for the adjustment of the new manhole at Noda St. 
 
The cost to adjust the existing SSMH near STA 10+15 and the new SDMH at Noda St. was 
tracked on Force Account. 
 

2. 7 Additional Grade Check Work to Support Raising the Crown on Wayside Dr. (DAW 
CCO-013R): $5,100.00 

The centerline elevation on Wayside Dr. was raised to improve the cross-slope to 1.5%. The 
additional grade check work was necessary to make the adjustments in the subgrade to 
achieve the desired cross-slope. This work is associated with the increased bid item quantity 
for HMA (Type A) (Item 2.18). The cost of the additional grade check work was performed at 
an agreed lump sum price.  
 

2. 8 HMA Price Index Adjustment: <26,450.49> 

The HMA was subject to payment adjustments for Price Index Fluctuations per the Special 
Provisions, Section 10.14 Hot Mix Asphalt (including Bid Item #20 and Bid Item #37). Indexing 
the oil helps contractors prepare a better bid as they don’t have to estimate the increase of 
oil thus reducing their risk. Alternatively, the City would see the benefit if the cost of oil 
reduced. The cost of the oil adjustment is calculated based on the Caltrans method which 



Page 3 of 6 

 

relies upon a published monthly oil index and the tonnage of HMA placed. Based on 
California Statewide Crude Oil Price Index, in August 2022 when the Project was bid to 
November 2022 and April 2023 when the paving work was performed the crude oil price 
decreased resulting a total savings (or a deductive credit from the Contractor to the City).    
 

2. 9 Decrease the Bid Item Quantity For 6-Inch SDR-26 Green Sanitary Sewer Pipe: 
<$975.00> 

The bid item quantity for 6-Inch SDR-26 Green Sanitary Sewer Pipe was decreased to fit field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 11). 
 

2. 10 Decrease the Bid Item Quantity for Remove and Dispose of Existing Sanitary Sewer 
Pipe: <$1,350.00> 

The bid item quantity for Remove and Dispose of Existing Sanitary Sewer Pipe was 
decreased to avoid an existing PG&E gas line near STA 10+15 (Ref. RFI #: 3 - Geer Road 
Manhole Removal). This decrease is associated with Item No. 2.11.  Decrease in Bid Item at 
Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 18). 
 

2. 11 Decrease the bid item quantity for Hot Mix Asphalt: <$3,750.00> 

The bid item quantity for Hot Mix Asphalt was decreased because that work was associated 
with the removal of the existing sanitary sewer; the Hot Mix Asphalt was intended to repave 
a segment of roadway following the removal of the existing sanitary sewer.  The removal of 
the existing sanitary sewer was decreased to avoid an existing PG&E gas line near STA 
10+15, which also reduced the Hot Mix Asphalt quantity (Ref. RFI #: 3 - Geer Road Manhole 
Removal). This decrease is associated with Item No. 2.10. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item 
Price (Bid Item No. 20). 
 

2. 12 Decrease the bid item quantity for Pavement Underlying Base Repair (Revocable 
Item): <$990.00> 

The bid item quantity for Pavement Underlying Base Repair (Revocable Item) was 
decreased. This was a revocable item; the full quantity was not required based on field 
conditions. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 27). 
 

2. 13 Increase the bid item quantity for Remove Existing Curb and Gutter: $891.00 

The bid item quantity for Remove Existing Curb and Gutter was increased to fit field 
conditions. The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 28). 
 

2. 14 Increase the bid item quantity for Remove Existing Driveway/Sidewalk: $4,040.00 

The bid item quantity for Remove Existing Driveway/Sidewalk was increased to fit field 
conditions. The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Increase at Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 29). 
 

2. 15 Decrease the bid item quantity for Remove Existing Valley Gutter: <$555.00> 

The bid item quantity for Remove Existing Valley Gutter was decreased to fit field conditions. 
The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity 
placed. Decrease at Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 30). 
 
 



Page 4 of 6 

 

2. 16 Decrease the bid item quantity for Adjust Water Valve Boxes to Grade: <$1,000.00> 

The bid item quantity for Adjust Water Valve Boxes to Grade was decreased due to field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements. 
Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 34). 
 

2. 17 Decrease the bid item quantity for Adjust Gas Valve Boxes to Grade: <$2,000.00> 

The bid item quantity for Adjust Gas Valve Boxes to Grade was decreased due to field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements. 
Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 35). 
 

2. 18 Increase the bid item quantity for HMA (Type A): $36,085.98 

The bid item quantity for HMA (Type A) was increased as part of the work to raise the 
centerline elevation to improve the cross-slope to 1.5% along Wayside Drive. This work is 
associated with the additional grade check (Item 2.7). The increased quantity is based on the 
Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price 
(Bid Item No. 37). 
 

2. 19 Increase the bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter - C-1): $9,617.00 

The bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Curb and Gutter - C-1) was increased to fit field 
conditions. The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 38). 
 

2. 20 Increase the bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Sidewalk and Flatwork - C-3): 
$11,893.00 

The bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Sidewalk and Flatwork - C-3) was increased to fit 
field conditions. The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of 
the quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 39). 
 

2. 21 Decrease the bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Residential Driveway - C-5): 
<$468.52> 

The bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Residential Driveway - C-5) was decreased to fit 
field conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of 
the quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 40). 
 

2. 22 Decrease the bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Valley Gutter): <$7,250.00> 

The bid item quantity for Minor Concrete (Valley Gutter) was decreased to fit field conditions. 
The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity 
placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 41). 
 

2. 23 Decrease the bid item quantity for Curb Ramp (Labor Only): <$2,400.00> 

The bid item quantity for Curb Ramp (Labor Only) was decreased due to the elimination of 
two (2) mid-block crossings. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 42). 
 

2. 24 Decrease the bid item quantity for Reset Fence (Chain-link): <$8,632.00> 

The bid item quantity for Reset Fence (Chain-link) was decreased to fit field conditions. The 
decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. 
Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 44). 
 



Page 5 of 6 

 

2. 25 Increase the bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (Detail 1): $238.00 

The bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (Detail 1) was increased to fit field conditions. 
The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. 
Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 45). 
 
 

2. 26 Increase the bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (Detail 22): $132.00 

The bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (Detail 22) was increased to fit field 
conditions. The increased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 46). 
 

2. 27 Decrease the bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (12" Stop Bar): <$87.50> 

The bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Striping (12" Stop Bar) was decreased to fit field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 47). 
 

2. 28 Decrease the bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Pavement Markings (White 
Crosswalk): <$136.00> 

The bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Pavement Markings (White Crosswalk) was 
decreased to fit field conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field 
measurements of the quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 
48). 
 

2. 29 Decrease the quantity for Thermoplastic Pavement Markings (White): <$6.00> 

The bid item quantity for Thermoplastic Pavement Markings (White) was decreased to fit field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 49). 
 

2. 30 Increase the bid item quantity for Pavement Marker (Type BB): $270.00 

The bid item quantity for Pavement Marker (Type BB) was increased to provide the fire 
hydrant pavement markers, per City Std. W-3. The increased quantity is based on the 
Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. Increase in Bid Item at Bid Item Price 
(Bid Item No. 50). 
 

2. 31 Decrease the bid item quantity for Paint Existing Curb: <$1,050.00> 

The bid item quantity for Paint Existing Curb was decreased to fit field conditions. The 
decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. 
Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 51). 
 

2. 32 Decrease the bid item quantity for Remove Existing Sign: <$500.00> 

The bid item quantity for Remove Existing Sign was decreased to fit field conditions. The 
decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the quantity placed. 
Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 52). 
 

2. 33 Decrease the bid item quantity for Reset Sign Panel (Street Name): <$350.00> 

The bid item quantity for Reset Sign Panel (Street Name) was decreased to fit field 
conditions. The decreased quantity is based on the Inspector's field measurements of the 
quantity placed. Decrease in Bid Item at Bid Item Price (Bid Item No. 55) 



Page 6 of 6 

 

 
2. 34 Working Day Adjustment: $0.00 

The number of working days is Increased by 16 days due to the extra work and increased 
quantities included in this Change Order. The total working days in the project increases from 
85 days to 117 days and includes the 16 working day adjustment included in Change Order 
No. 1. 
 

2. 35 Final Payment: $0.00 

This is the final Change Order.  It reconciles the estimated quantities with actual quantities 
placed during construction. This Change Order is the final payment and settles any and all 
claims related to this contract. 
 

 

Attachment: Contract Change Order No. 2 (Final) 
 











City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 

 

 
From:  Erik Schulze, Public Works Director  
 
Prepared by: Carrie Braley, Staff Services Technician 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Motion:  Approving the Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with SB 

Builders, LLC, conditioned upon construction of improvements for the 
Crowell subdivision 4510 Crowell Road (APN 071-002-012) (VTSM 2021-
01, Development Project No. 22-028), developed by Modesto Roselle, LLC
  

 
2. SYNOPSIS:  

 

This action will approve the final map and establish a subdivision improvement agreement 
for the development of the Crowell subdivision. 

 

3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 

The Crowell subdivision will include subdividing 6.5 acres into 32 residential lots that will 
range from 5,340 to 9,264 square feet. The Crowell subdivision is located at 4510 Crowell 
Road (APN 071-002-012). The Planning Commission originally approved the vesting 
tentative subdivision map after holding a public hearing on August 5, 2021.  The resolution 
is attached to this staff report (Attachment “A”).  
 
The division of land for development is subject to the requirements and procedures in the 
California Map Act. The division of land into four (4) or fewer parcels is executed through 
the parcel map process. The division of land into five (5) or more parcels is executed 
through the subdivision map process. Since the Crowell subdivision is a division of an 
existing parcel into 32 residential parcels, the division of land for this development will 
follow the subdivision map process. 
 
Developments using the parcel map process are allowed to defer necessary 
improvements by placing a statement on the final map. Developments using the 
subdivision map process, however, must either install the improvements prior to 
recordation of the final map or execute an agreement to install the improvements within 
a specified amount of time. In an effort to expedite the recordation of the final map, the 
developers of the Crowell subdivision have chosen to execute an agreement to install the 
improvements. This agreement, otherwise known as a Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement, allows the developer to move forward with the development project while 
ensuring the construction of the infrastructure improvements within a specified timeframe.  
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5D



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/2023 

 Page 2 

 

The Subdivision Map Act provides the City with means to allow developers to subdivide 
parcels and to promote development. Final maps convert a tentative subdivision map 
from a conceptual approval by the City’s Planning Commission into a legal subdivision of 
land, and they locate precisely the land being subdivided and how that land is to be 
subdivided. The recordation of the final map is consistent with the policy goals of the City. 
The final map and agreement conditioned upon construction of improvements for the 
Crowell subdivision, when executed, will ensure that the development installs the required 
improvements. 

 

4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 

 

A. The final map for Enterprise Park (Development Project No. 7061) conforms to 
all the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act. 

B. Pursuant to Section 66458 of the Subdivision Map Act, the City Council has the 
authority and responsibility to approve all final maps. 

C. Pursuant to Section 11-5-601 of the Turlock Municipal Code, the City Council has 
the authority to approve all final maps. 

D. Pursuant to Section 66462 of the Subdivision Map Act, the City Council may 
require the subdivider to enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement if the 
improvements conditioned to the subdivision have not been completed and 
accepted prior to the approval of the final map. 

 

5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:  

 
No direct impact. The subdivision is a private development and paid for by the developer, 
Modesto Roselle, LLC. The subdivision, as a condition of development, formed an 
assessment district Resolution 2023-012 to pay for the maintenance of the public 
infrastructure created by this development. 
 

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Recommend approval. 
 

7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

 

Recommend approval. 
 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

 
On August 25, 2021, the Planning Commission adopted a mitigated negative declaration 
and found the project will not have a significant impact. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 

 

A. Council could choose to reject the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. Staff does 
not recommend this action as the developer has agreed to the terms and conditions 
of the agreement, and the agreement complies with the requirements and conditions 
of the vesting tentative subdivision map. 

  



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/2023 

 Page 3 

 

B. Pursuant to Section 11-5-604 of the Turlock Municipal Code, City Council could make 
recommended corrections to the final map, instruct the City Engineer to make 
revisions, and defer approval until an acceptable final map has been resubmitted. 
However, the Subdivision Map Act specifies that if the Final Map conforms to the Map 
Act and the City of Turlock Municipal Code, the Subdivision Map must be approved. 

 

10. ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Planning Commission Resolution No. 2021-07 

B. Subdivision Improvement Agreement  

a. Exhibit A 

C. Crowell Final Map 
 



JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment A





























City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 15 

CITY OF TURLOCK 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 22nd day of August, 2023, by and 
between the CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as “City”), 
and SB BUILDERS, LLC, a Limited Liability Company, (hereinafter referred to as 
“Developer”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Developer has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed 
subdivision of land located within the corporate limits of the City that has 
been prepared in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act of the State of 
California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the Tentative 
Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City 
Council of the City.   

 
B. The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as 

CROWELL SUBDIVISION, and is herein referred to as the “subdivision.” 
 

C. Developer has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the 
construction and completion of the public improvements (as shown on the 
approved improvement plans), including, but not limited to streets, 
highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, bikeways, storm 
drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic/reclaimed water 
facilities, public utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park 
or recreational improvements and appurtenances thereto, in or required by 
the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances of the City, the 
Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved 
by the City.  The foregoing improvements are hereinafter referred to as 
“the required improvements.” 

 
D. Section 11-8-101 of the Turlock Municipal Code requires that, prior to the 

approval by the City Council of the Final Map, Developer shall execute an 
improvement agreement with the City to ensure the construction of the 
infrastructure improvements. 

 
 
 
 

No Fee Document Pursuant 
To Government Code § 6103 
 
Requested by and return to: 

 
CITY OF TURLOCK 
ATTENTION: CITY CLERK 
156 SOUTH BROADWAY, SUITE 230 
TURLOCK, CALIFORNIA  95380-5456 
 

 
 
                                                                                                                                                                SPACE   ABOVE   THIS   LINE   RESERVED   FOR   RECORDER’S   USE 
 

JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment B



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 15 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Performance of Work.  Developer agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his 
own expense the required improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications 
of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the office of the City Engineer and is 
incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or modifications as may be 
required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions, changes in conditions, or changes in 
facilities as required by the City Engineer.  The approved plans and specifications of the 
required improvements may be modified by the Developer as the development progresses, 
provided that any modification is approved in writing by the City Engineer.  The total 
estimated cost of the required improvements is ONE MILLION NINTY-FOUR THOUSAND 
NINE HUNDRED THIRTY-TWO AND 30/100ths DOLLARS ($1,094,932.30). 
 

2. Work: Satisfaction of City Engineer.  All of the work on the required 
improvements is to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the 
grades, all as shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the 
City’s current Standard Specifications and Drawings and any applicable City ordinances or 
state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The Developer hereby 
grants access to the development for inspection purposes and agrees to notify City Engineer 
in advance of required inspections.  

 
3. Deviation from Standards.  If Developer deviates from the approved 

improvement drawings, specifications or standards, or shall construct any improvement in 
such a manner so as to, in the opinion of the City Engineer, endanger the public safety, City 
may cause the necessary corrections to be made without notice.  In the event such 
deviations do not, in the opinion of the City Engineer, endanger the public safety, the City 
Engineer may give Developer written notice of such deviations, and Developer shall correct 
the deviation in the time prescribed by the City Engineer.  In the event of the failure of 
Developer to make corrections of deviations, whether or not the public safety is affected, City 
may cause the necessary corrections to be made and shall be reimbursed by Developer at 
cost plus 25%. Said amount shall be paid by Developer prior to the acceptance of the 
improvements, or may be deducted from any reimbursement due from City to Developer, or 
may be obtained from the performance bond. 
 

4. Work; Time for Commencement and Performance.  Work on the required 
improvements shall be completed by the Developer on or before twelve (12) months from the 
date of this Agreement.  At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the commencement of 
such work, the Developer shall notify the City Engineer in writing of the date fixed by 
Developer for commencement of the work.   
 

5. Time of Essence; Extension. 
 

a. Time is of the essence for this Agreement. 
 

b. Developer agrees to cause all improvements to be made and 
constructed in said subdivision to fully comply with the requirements of the Turlock Municipal 
Code regulating the subdivision of land within twelve (12) months from the date of this 
Agreement; provided however, that the City Manager is authorized to extend the time within 
which said improvements shall be completed for four (4) additional periods not to exceed six 
(6) months each if he is of the opinion that granting the extension will not be detrimental to 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 15 

the public welfare.  No such extension shall be made except upon the basis of a written 
application made by Developer stating fully the grounds of the application and the facts relied 
upon them for such extension.  In any event, all improvements must be completed within 
thirty-six (36) months of the date of this Agreement.  In the event that Developer shall fail to 
complete such work within said time, City may complete the work and recover the full cost 
and expense thereof from Developer. 
 

6. Improvement Security.  Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the 
Developer shall furnish the City: 
 
  a. Performance Bond in the sum of $1,241,798.84, which sum is equal to 
one hundred percent of the total estimated cost of constructing the required improvements 
and the cost of any other obligation to be performed by Developer under this Agreement, 
conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and 
 
  b. Labor and Materials Bond in the sum of $547,466.15, which sum is equal 
to fifty percent (50%) of the estimated cost of constructing the required improvements, 
securing payment to the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing labor, materials, 
or equipment to them for the construction of the required improvements. 
 
  c. Warranty Security in a form determined by the City Engineer and in the 
sum of $109,493.23, which sum is equal to ten percent (10%) of the total estimated cost of 
constructing the required improvements to correct deficiencies and conditions caused by 
Developer, contractor, or subcontractor that may arise after construction of the Subdivision. 
 
  d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent 
(10%) construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments in the 
Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as provided by 
Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California, and an estimated utility 
cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.  In lieu of providing the estimate of 
total utility costs, the Developer may submit, in a form acceptable to the City engineer, 
certification from the utility companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure 
installation. 
 
  e. If the Developer has completed the required improvements and the City 
will accept the required improvements prior to execution of this Agreement, the Developer 
may provide a warranty security in accordance with Section 14 of this Agreement in lieu of 
the separate improvement securities required by Section 6.a. and 6.b. of this Agreement. 
  

7. Monumentation Security.  Developer shall post acceptable security to 
guarantee the payment of the cost of setting the monuments. The cost of setting the 
monuments has been determined to be FIVE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY AND 
00/100ths DOLLARS ($5,550.00). Developer shall pay the engineer or surveyor for the cost of 
setting the monuments within three (3) months from date of notification by the engineer or 
surveyor that the monuments have been set.  If Developer does not pay the engineer or 
surveyor within three (3) months from date of notification, the City shall pay the engineer or 
surveyor from the security and refund the difference, if any, to Developer. 

 
8. Plan Checking and Inspection Fees.  The Developer shall pay to the City fees 

for the checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 4 of 15 

inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the times 
established by the City. 

 
9. Facility Fees and Reimbursements.  Developer's obligation to pay for previously 

constructed facilities for sewer, water, or storm drainage or other public facilities which benefit 
the subdivision, his obligation to pay fees in lieu of land for parks, and his right to receive 
reimbursement for the cost of certain facilities constructed as part of the Improvements 
required for the subdivision identified in this Agreement are as set forth in Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto. 

 
10. Insurance.  Developer shall not commence work under this Agreement until 

Developer has obtained City’s approval regarding all insurance requirements, forms, 
endorsements, amounts, and carrier ratings, nor shall Developer allow any subcontractor to 
commence work on a subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor 
shall have been so obtained and approved.  Developer shall procure and maintain for the 
duration of this Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by Developer, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Failure to maintain 
or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may constitute a material breach of 
contract. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits and 
coverage shall be available to City. 
 
  a. General Liability Insurance:  Developer shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form 
CG 00 01, in an amount not less than three million dollars ($3,000,000) per occurrence,  
three million dollars ($3,000,000) general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability and coverage for 
explosion, collapse and underground property damage hazards. Developer’s general liability 
policies shall be primary and not seek contribution from the City’s coverages, and be 
endorsed using Insurance Services Office form CG 20 10 to provide that City and its officers, 
officials, employees, and agents shall be additional insureds under such policies.  For 
construction contracts, an endorsement providing completed operations to the additional 
insured, ISO form CG 20 37, is also required. 
 
  b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall maintain Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of at 
least one million dollars ($1,000,000). Developer shall submit to City, along with the 
certificate of insurance, a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement in favor of City, its officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers. 
 
  c. Auto Insurance: Developer shall provide auto liability coverage for 
owned, non-owned, and hired autos using ISO Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, or 
the exact equivalent, with a limit of no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident. 
If Developer owns no vehicles, this requirement may be met through a non-owned auto 
endorsement to the CGL policy. 
 
  d. Builder’s Risk Insurance:  Not required for this project.  
 
  e. Contractors Pollution Insurance: Not required for this project.  
 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 5 of 15 

  f. Professional Liability Insurance: Not required for this project.  
 
  g Cyber Liability Insurance: Not required for this project. 
 
  h. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Upon request of City, any 
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the 
option of City, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, 
and volunteers; or (2) Developer shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City 
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense 
expenses. 
 
  i. Other Insurance Provisions:  The commercial general liability policy shall 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
  (1) City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work 
or operations performed by or on behalf of Developer, including materials, parts or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations, which coverage shall be maintained in 
effect for at least three (3) years following the completion of the work specified in the contract. 
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to Developer’s 
insurance (at least as broad as CG 20 10 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 for 
products/completed operations), or as a separate Owners and Contractors Protective Liability 
policy providing both ongoing operations and completed operations coverage.  
 
  (2) For any claims related to this project, Developer’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects City and any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by City shall be excess of Developer’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 
  (3) In the event of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that 
reduces or restricts the insurance coverage afforded to City under this Agreement, the 
insurer, broker/producer, or Developer shall provide City with thirty (30) days’ prior written 
notice of such cancellation, non-renewal, or material change. 
 
  (4) Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active 
negligence of the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the 
additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 
 
  j. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A-:VII or with an insurer to which the City has 
provided prior approval. 
 
  k. Verification of Coverage:  Developer shall furnish City with original 
certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language 
effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by City before work commences.  However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive Developer’s obligation to 
provide them. City reserves the right, at any time, to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies and endorsements.  
 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 6 of 15 

  l. Waiver of Subrogation: With the exception of professional liability, 
Developer hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of Developer may acquire 
from Developer by virtue of the payment of any loss. The commercial general liability policy 
and workers’ compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation in 
favor of City for all work performed by Developer, its agents, employees, independent 
contractors and subcontractors.  Developer agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be 
necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.  
 
  m. Subcontractors:  Developer shall include all subcontractors as insureds 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements 
stated herein. 
 
  n. Surety Bonds:  Developer shall provide a Performance Bond and a 
Payment Bond. 

 
11. Indemnity for Professional Liability: When the law establishes a professional 

standard of care for Developer’s Services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Developer 
shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless City and any and all of its elective and 
appointive boards, officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers from and against any 
and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses, including legal counsel’s fees and 
costs but only to the extent the Developer (and its Subcontractors) are responsible for such 
damages, liabilities and costs on a comparative basis of fault between the Developer (and its 
Subcontractors) and the City in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. Developer shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify City for the City’s own 
negligence or for the negligence of others. 

 
  Indemnity for other than Professional Liability: Other than in the performance of 
professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Developer shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless City and any and all of its elective and appointive boards, officers, 
officials, agents, employees or volunteers from and against any liability (including liability for 
claims, suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, 
including legal counsel’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert 
witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any way 
attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Developer or by any 
individual or agency for which Developer is legally liable, including, but not limited to, officers, 
agents, employees, or subcontractors of Developer.  

  
12. Acceptance of Work.  Prior to acceptance of work by the City Engineer, the 

Developer shall be solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the work, and maintaining 
the safety of the site. The Developer’s obligation to perform the work shall not be satisfied 
until after the City Engineer has made written determination that all obligations of the 
Agreement have been satisfied and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and 
the City Engineer has recorded a Notice of Completion.  

 
13. Title to Improvements.  Title to and ownership of the required public 

improvements constructed under this Agreement by Developer shall vest absolutely in the 
City upon completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer.  
The City Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Developer certifies that 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 7 of 15 

such improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and 
specifications, approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Standard 
Specifications and Drawings, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws and 
after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion. 
 

14. Warranty Security.  Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the 
City Engineer, the Developer shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required 
by the City Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done 
or defective materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Warranty 
Security) throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year 
following completion and filing of Notice of Completion with the Stanislaus County Recorder 
of the improvements (Warranty Security Period).  The amount of the Warranty Security shall 
not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction of the improvements, including the 
form of security required in paragraph 6.c. of this Agreement, as determined by the City 
Engineer, which shall be retained for the Warranty Security Period. 

 
15. Repair or Reconstruction of Defective Work or Materials.  If, within the Warranty 

Security Period or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement 
or part of any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Developer or any of 
the work done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement 
or the specifications referred to herein as determined by the City, Developer shall without 
delay and without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or 
otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements.  If the Developer fails to 
act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation 
require repairs or replacements to be made before the Developer can be notified, then the 
City may, at its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary 
work, and Developer shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent 
(15%) within thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City.  The parties further 
understand and agree that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 14 of this 
Agreement shall guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the 
provisions of this paragraph during the Warranty Security Period. 

 
16. Developer Not Agent of City.  Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents 

or contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the 
performance of Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

 
17. Supplying “Record Drawing” Plans.  Upon completion of the Improvements and 

prior to certification of completion, Developer shall supply the City, at no cost to the City, one 
set of “record” drawings.  These drawings shall be certified as being “record drawings” and 
shall reflect the Improvements as actually constructed, with all changes to the Plans 
incorporated therein. 
 

18. Notice and Certification of Completion.  Developer shall advise the City 
Engineer in writing of the completion of the Improvements herein specified and request 
certification of completion.  Upon satisfactory completion of the Improvements by Developer 
and request for certification of completion, the City Engineer or his/her designee shall issue a 
certificate indicating that the required Improvements have been completed.  For the purposes 
of this Agreement, the date of completion shall be the date that the City Engineer or his/her 
designee issues a certificate of completion. 

 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 8 of 15 

19. Adequacy of and Revisions to Plans.  Developer warrants that the Plans are 
adequate to accomplish the Improvements.  If, at any time before the City Engineer certifies 
completion of the Improvements, the Plans prove to be inadequate in any respect, the 
Developer shall bring those inadequacies to the attention of the City Engineer or his/her 
designee.  Similarly, if the City Engineer or his/her designee discovers that the Plans are 
inadequate in any respect, the City Engineer or his/her designee shall notify the Developer of 
the inadequacy/inadequacies.  If such inadequacies are discovered, the Developer shall 
make changes to the Plans to remedy the inadequacies and, upon approval of the revised 
Plans by the City Engineer or his/her designee, complete the Improvements according to the 
revised Plans. 

 
  After completing all required revisions, Developer or subdivider’s engineer shall 
transmit the originals of the Improvement plans to the City Engineer for signature. Upon 
finding that all required revisions have been made and that the plans conform to all applicable 
City laws, design review requirements, and conditions of approval of the tentative map, the 
City Engineer shall sign and date the plans. The originals shall be returned to Developer or 
subdivider’s engineer.  Approval by the City Engineer shall in no way relieve the Developer, 
subdivider, or the subdivider’s engineer from responsibility for the design of the 
Improvements, and for any deficiencies resulting from the design, or from any required 
conditions of approval of the tentative map. 

 
20. Nonperformance and Costs. If, within the time specified in this Agreement and 

any approved extension, Developer fails to complete the Improvements or to act promptly as 
required by this Agreement, or should an urgency arise that requires the repair or 
replacement of an Improvement, the City may, but is not required to, proceed to complete the 
Improvements pursuant to the Plans, by contract or otherwise, and Developer, immediately 
upon demand, shall pay the costs and charges related to said work, together with a fifteen 
percent (15%) overhead charge.   

 
21. Remedies.  The City may bring legal action to: (1) compel performance of this 

Agreement; (2) ensure compliance with the Conditions; and (3) recover the costs (including 
the City’s administrative costs) of completing the Improvements pursuant to paragraph 15.  
The City may also seek any and all remedies available in law or equity.  The Developer 
agrees that, if legal action is brought by the City, the Developer shall pay all of the costs of 
suit and reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other expenses of litigation as determined by the 
court having jurisdiction over such suit, if such court rules that the Developer has failed to 
carry out any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
22. Responsibilities for Damage. Any damage to the public improvements, or to any 

portion of adjacent properties, that occurs during construction or during the warranty period 
shall be completely repaired by the Developer to the satisfaction of the City Engineer or 
his/her designee.    

 
23. Utility Deposits – Statement.  Developer shall satisfy the City Building Official 

that it has made the deposits required for utilities to be supplied and connected within the 
subdivision prior to obtaining a building permit. 

 
24. Permits and Fee Payments – Compliance with Law.  Developer shall obtain all 

necessary permits and licenses for the construction of Improvements, and shall pay all fees 
and taxes required by applicable law, including state law and local ordinance. 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 9 of 15 

25. Superintendence by Developer.  Developer shall personally supervise the work 
or have a competent foreman or superintendent on the work site at all times during the 
course of construction with the authority to act for Developer. 

 
26. Inspections – Payment of Fees.  The City is authorized to enter the Property for 

inspection purposes at any time.  Developer shall at all times maintain the Property so that 
the City and any agency authorized to make inspections can safely access and inspect all 
parts of the Property.  Developer shall pay to the City the cost of inspecting the 
Improvements, including the costs of staff time and any consulting services determined to be 
necessary by the City Engineer, as well as all the cost of all other services furnished by the 
City in connection with the Project.  Developer further agrees to pay any required in-lieu fee 
for the undergrounding of utilities on peripheral streets, and all development fees required by 
City. 
 

27. Erosion Control.  Developer shall take all necessary actions during the course 
of construction of all Improvements to prevent erosion damage to adjacent properties or 
improvements (including, but not limited to, City streets and other City infrastructure or 
property).  It is understood and agreed that in the event of failure on the part of Developer to 
prevent erosions, City may do the work of Improvement and/or erosion protection measures 
on an emergency basis and Developer shall reimburse City for the actual expenses incurred 
(including administrative and/or legal expenses plus 15% overhead charge) within thirty (30) 
days after City mails a billing statement for such expenses to Developer.  If such 
reimbursement is not timely made, City is entitled to obtain such reimbursement from 
Developer and/or, in addition to any other City remedies allowed by law, may proceed against 
the Faithful Performance Security to cover City’s expenses. 

 
28. No Waiver by City.  Inspection of the work and/or materials, or approval of work 

and/or materials inspected, or a statement by an officer, agent or employee of the City 
indicating the work complies with this Agreement, or acceptance of all of these acts shall not 
relieve Developer of its obligation to fulfill the Agreement; nor is the City by these acts 
prohibited from bringing an action for damages or specific enforcement arising from the 
failure to comply with this Agreement.  No action or omission by the City shall constitute a 
waiver of any provision of this Agreement unless expressly provided in writing.  No course of 
dealing between Developer and the City, or any delay on the part of the City in exercising any 
rights hereunder, shall operate as a waiver of any rights by the City, except to the extent 
these rights are expressly waived in writing by the City. 

 
29. Agreement Attaches to the Land – Recordation.  This Agreement pertains to 

and runs with the Property described.  This Agreement shall be recorded in the office of the 
County Recorder at the expense of the Developer and shall constitute notice to all 
successors and assigns of the title to the real property of the obligations set forth herein.  
This Agreement shall also constitute a lien on the Property, subject to foreclosure in the event 
of default in payment, in an amount sufficient to fully reimburse the City for any cost to the 
City of enforcing this Agreement, including interest from the date of the notice of any cost or 
expense until paid.  

 
30. Notice of Breach and Default.  If Developer refuses or fails to prosecute the 

work, or any part thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time 
specified, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if 
Developer should be adjudged a bankruptcy, or Developer should make a general 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 10 of 15 

assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of 
Developer’s insolvency, or if Developer or any of Developer’s contractors, subcontractors, 
agents or employees should violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, 
but is under no obligation to, serve written notice upon Developer and Developer’s surety, if 
any, of breach of this Agreement, or of any portion thereof. 

 
31. Breach of Agreement; Performance by Surety or City.  In the event of any such 

notice, Developer’s surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and 
the required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after 
the serving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its 
intention to take over the performance thereof within fifteen (15) days after notice to the City 
of such election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion 
by contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the 
expense of the Developer, and the Developer’s surety shall be liable to City for any excess 
costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so 
doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, 
plant or other property belonging to Developer as may be on the site of the work and 
necessary therefor. 

 
 If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after 

giving notice of breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement 
security in the manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument. 

 
32. Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and 

delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid. 
 
Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows: 
 
 City of Turlock 
 Public Works 
 Attention: City Engineer 
 156 South Broadway, Suite 150  
 Turlock, CA  95380 
 
Notices required to be given to Developer shall be addressed as follows: 
 
 __________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 __________________________________ 
 

           
Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party 

and thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 
 
 
 
 

 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 11 of 15 

33. City Contract Administrator. The City’s contract administrator and contact 
person for this Agreement is: 

 
 Katie Quintero 
 Development Services 
 156 S. Broadway, Suite 120 
 Turlock, CA  95380-5456 
 Telephone: (209) 668-5640 
 E-mail: KQuintero@turlock.ca.us 

 
34. Authority to Execute.  Developer warrants and represents that the person 

signing on behalf of Developer has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of 
Developer and has the authority to bind the Developer and the Property to the terms and 
obligations set forth in this Agreement.  Developer agrees that this Agreement, and any 
instrument or agreement required hereunder, are within the Developer’s powers, have been 
duly authorized and delivered, and do not conflict with Developer’s organizational powers. 

 
35. Assignment.  This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, 

successors in interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties and the parties 
agree that the City may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Stanislaus 
County Recorder’s Office. Developer’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are not 
assignable or transferrable without the prior written consent of the City. 

 
 
 

  



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 12 of 15 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
and through their respective officer’s thereunto duly authorized. 
 
DEVELOPER CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ By: __________________________________ 
  Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
Signature (must be notarized)  
 Signatures above (must be notarized) 
________________________________   
Please print or type signer’s name APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
________________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Please print or type signer’s title  George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney 
  
Address: _________________________ APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY: 
_________________________________  
_________________________________ By: _______________________________ 
  William D Morris, City Engineer 
   
 ATTEST: 
 
  By: _______________________________ 
  Julie Christel, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 13 of 15 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 

who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 

validity of that document  

 

State of California  } 

County of ________________ } 

 

On ____________________ before me, ________________________________, Notary Public, personally 

appeared _____________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________, who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the 

State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 

correct.   

WITNESS my hand and official seal.  

 

  _______________________________ 

  Signature of Notary Public 

  

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 

who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 

validity of that document  

 

State of California  } 

County of ________________ } 

 

On ____________________ before me, ________________________________, Notary Public, personally 

appeared _____________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________, who proved to me on 

the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the 

State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 

correct.   

WITNESS my hand and official seal.  

 

  _______________________________ 

  Signature of Notary Public 

 BOND #     



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 14 of 15 

PREMIUM:     
PERFORMANCE BOND 

for Subdivision Improvement Agreement 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Turlock, a municipal corporation in the State of 
California, and ______________________, (hereinafter designated as “Principal”) have entered into 
an agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public 
improvements, which said agreement, dated __________, and identified as ____________________ 
is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for 
the faithful performance of said agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, We, the principal, and  __________________________________, as 
surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Turlock, hereinafter referred to as the City; in the 
penal sum of ________________________ ($_________), lawful money of the United States, for the 
payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors, 
and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these presents. 
 
 The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration 
thereof made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner 
therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify 
and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, then this 
obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
 As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified 
therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and 
included in any judgment rendered. 
 
 The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or 
addition to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications 
accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive 
notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to 
the work or to the specifications. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the above-named 
principal and surety on   ___________________, 20__. 
 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (PRINCIPAL) 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (SURETY) 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (ADDRESS) 
APPROVED AS TO FORM    BY __________________________________ 
        (CITY, STATE, ZIP) 
BY __________________________________ BY __________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY     (TELEPHONE) 



City Contract Engineering Dept. No. 22-018                                                                                                                            Page 15 of 15 

  
BOND #     
PREMIUM:     

LABOR & MATERIALS BOND 
for Subdivision Improvement Agreement 

 
 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Turlock, a Municipal Corporation of the State of 
California, and ____________________, (hereinafter designated as “Principal”), have entered into an 
agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, 
which said agreement, dated __________, and identified as __________________ is hereby referred 
to and made a part hereof; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the 
performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Turlock to secure 
the claims to which reference is made in Title 15 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 
3 of the Civil Code of the State of California; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly 
bound unto the City of Turlock and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and other 
persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid 
Code of Civil Procedure, in the sum of ______________________ ($___________), for materials 
furnished or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act 
with respect to such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the 
amount hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to 
the face amount thereof, cost and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, 
and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 
 
 It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and 
all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 15 (commencing with 
Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their 
assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 
 
 Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and 
void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
 The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or 
addition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any 
manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, 
extension, alteration, or addition. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the above-named 
principal and surety on   ___________________, 20__. 
 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (PRINCIPAL) 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (SURETY) 
       BY __________________________________ 
        (ADDRESS) 
APPROVED AS TO FORM    BY __________________________________ 
        (CITY, STATE, ZIP) 
BY __________________________________ BY __________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY     (TELEPHONE) 



- 1 - 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 
REIMBURSEMENT / IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

CROWELL SUBDIVISION 

 
I.  WATER: 

 
      A.   TMC 6-5.202 
 
           CONNECTION: 
           AMOUNT FROM DEVELOPER: 
          NONE 

            

           TIME: PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF THE RECORD MAP 
 
      B.   TMC 6-5.204 
 
           EXTENSION TO OTHER PROPERTY: (ENR ADJUSTED) 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: 30 DAYS AFTER CITY FILES NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
      C.   TMC 6-5.205 
 
           WATER MAINS CONSTRUCTED: (ENR ADJUSTED) 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: UPON COLLECTION FROM PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN TEN (10) 
                 YEARS AFTER DATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
           OVERSIZED LINES CONSTRUCTED: 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: 30 DAYS AFTER CITY FILES NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
      
D.   TMC 6-5.207 
 
           WATER WELL SITE: 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: UPON CONVEYANCE OF TITLE 



-Continued- 
 

- 2 - 

 

II.  SANITARY SEWER: 

 
      A.   TMC 6-4.503 
 
           CONNECTION: 
           AMOUNT FROM DEVELOPER: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF THE RECORD MAP 
 
 B.   TMC 6-4.505 
 
           EXTENSION TO OTHER PROPERTY: (ENR ADJUSTED) 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: 30 DAYS AFTER CITY FILES NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
           SEWER MAINS CONSTRUCTED: (ENR ADJUSTED) 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: UPON COLLECTION FROM PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN TEN (10) 
                       YEARS AFTER DATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
 
           OVERSIZED LINES CONSTRUCTED: 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: 30 DAYS AFTER CITY FILES NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 

III. STORM DRAINAGE 

 
 A.   TMC 6-5.502 AND RESOLUTION 90-306 
 
           MASTER: 
           AMOUNT FROM DEVELOPER: 
           5.5328 5.5342 acres @ $7,737.33 acre:     

 $42,808.96 

 
TIME: TO BE PAID AT BUILDING PERMIT ISSUANCE 
32 DWELLINGS TO PAY $1,298.82 & ADMIN FEE $ 38.96 (ADJUSTED PER ENR 
INDEX AT TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION) 

 



-Continued- 
 

- 3 - 

 
B.   TMC 6-5.506 
 

LOCAL: 
AMOUNT FROM CITY: 
NONE 

 
           TIME: UPON COLLECTION FROM PROPERTY WITHIN TEN YEARS 
                 OR FROM APPLICABLE STORM DRAINAGE FUND 30 DAYS AFTER 
                 CITY FILES NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
 IV. MISCELLANEOUS: 

 
      A.   TMC 7-5.02 
 
           STREET LIGHT INSTALLATION: 
           AMOUNT FROM DEVELOPER: 
           NONE 

 
           TIME: PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF THE RECORD MAP 
 
      B.   TMC 11-7.202 
 
           IN LIEU PARK FEES: 

Park Land: 32 dwelling units x 3 persons/household x 3.5 acres/1000 persons x 

$180,000/acre =         $60,480.00 
NEIGHBORHOOD PARK PORTION     $45,360.00 

COMMUNITY PARK PORTION     $15,120.00 

 
           AMOUNT FROM CITY: 

 
DEVELOPER DEDICATING LOT A 6,589 SQ FT & LOT B 8,256 SQ FT AND 

USING 3,475 OF PREVIOUS PEDESTRIAN BIKE PATH AREA FOR STREET 

PURPOSES. 

 

11,370/SF DEDICATION      <$46,980.00> 

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK PORTION         45,360.00 

REFUND TO DEVELOPER      <$  1,620.00> 

 

TIME: REFUND OF NEIGHBORHOOD PARK PORTION PAID TO DEVELOPER 30 
DAYS AFTER THE MAP IS RECORDED 
 
 

AMOUNT FROM DEVELOPER: 
  

COMMUNITY PARK PORTION     $15,120.00 

  



-Continued- 
 

- 4 - 

TIME: 32 LOTS TO PAY $472.50 ON BUILDING PERMIT 



JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment C







City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 

 

 
From:  Erik Schulze, Public Works Director  
 
Prepared by: Carrie Braley, Staff Services Technician 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Motion: Approving the final map for Enterprise Park (Development Project No. 7061) 

located at 1100 West Glenwood Avenue (Stanislaus County APN 044-017-
080, 081, 082) developed by Julan Development Group 

 
2. SYNOPSIS:  

 

This action will approve the final map for the subdivision, “Enterprise Park.” 
 

3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 

Enterprise Park is the development of an approximately 15.22-acre lot, located at 1100 
West Glenwood Avenue (Stanislaus County APN 044-017-080, 081, 082). The vesting 
tentative subdivision map was originally to divide into 23 lots, while the final map will 
divide the property into seventeen (17) industrial lots, one of which is a storm basin. The 
lots will range in size from 15,103 square feet to 52,616 square feet. The lots will be 
divided in accordance with the industrial (I) zoning district and the Westside Industrial 
Specific Plan standards.  The final map substantially complies with the tentative map.   
 
The division of land for development is subject to the requirements and procedures in the 
California Map Act.  The division of land into four (4) or fewer parcels is executed through 
the parcel map process.  The division of land into five (5) or more parcels is executed 
through the subdivision map process.  Since Enterprise Park subdivision is a division of 
an existing parcel into seventeen (17) industrial parcels, the division of land for this 
development will follow the subdivision map process. 
  
Developments using the parcel map process are allowed to defer necessary 
improvements by placing a statement on the final map. Developments using the 
subdivision map process, however, must either install the improvements prior to 
recordation of the final map or execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA) to 
install the improvements within a specified amount of time. In the case of Enterprise Park 
subdivision, all infrastructure and frontage improvements have been installed prior to 
recordation of the final map; therefore, no SIA is required.  
 
The Subdivision Map Act provides the City with means to allow developers to subdivide 
parcels and to promote development.  The recordation of final maps is consistent with the 
implementation of the City of Turlock Municipal Code and the General Plan. Staff 
therefore recommend approval of the final map for Enterprise Park subdivision.  

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5E



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/2023 

 Page 2 

 

 
 

4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 

 

A. The final map for Enterprise Park (Development Project No. 7061) conforms to 
all the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act. 
 

B. Pursuant to Section 66458 of the Subdivision Map Act, the City Council has the 
authority and responsibility to approve all final maps. 
 

C. Pursuant to Section 11-5-604 of the Turlock Municipal Code, the City Council has 
the authority to approve all final maps. 

 

5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:  

 
No direct impact. The subdivision is a private development and paid for by the developer, 
Julan Development Group.  The subdivision, as a condition of development, has formed 
an assessment district to pay for the maintenance of the public infrastructure created by 
this development, Resolution 2007-120. 
 

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Recommend approval. 
 

7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

 

Recommend approval. 
 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

 
The City, pursuant to the Turlock Municipal Code and the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), has reviewed the environmental impacts associated with 
Amendment to Planned Development 172 and Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 2005-
20. Based upon analysis and information contained in the Initial Study prepared for the 
proposed project, it has been determined that no significant environmental impacts are 
associated with the proposed project.  On February 7, 2006 a “Mitigated Negative 
Declaration” was prepared and posted with the Stanislaus County Clerk, stating that the 
mitigation measures proposed for the development would reduce any impacts to a less-
than-significant level. 
 

9. ALTERNATIVES: 

 
A. Pursuant to Section 11-5-604 of the Turlock Municipal Code, City Council could 

make recommended corrections to the final map, instruct the City Engineer to 
make revisions, and defer approval until an acceptable final map has been 
resubmitted. However, the Subdivision Map Act specifies that if the Final Map 
conforms to the Map Act and the City of Turlock Municipal Code, the Subdivision 
Map must be approved. 

 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/2023 

 Page 3 

 

10. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Planning Commission Resolution No. 2006-15 
  

B. Enterprise Park Subdivision Map 



JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment A

JChristel
Typewritten text
Attachment A 

















JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment C

JChristel
Typewritten text
Attachment B 





 
City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 
 

 

 
From: Miguel Pacheco, Police Captain 
 
Prepared by: Miguel Pacheco, Police Captain 
 Julie Christel, City Clerk 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Resolution: Reaffirming the Proclamation of a Local Emergency in response to a 

continuing Unsheltered Homeless Crisis (UHC) within the City of Turlock 
and Confirming Rules and Regulations No. 1 made and issued by Interim 
City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy (Director of Emergency Services) 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 

 
On July 9, 2021, Interim (now Deputy) City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy, in her role as 
the Director of Emergency Services, proclaimed a Local Emergency in response to the 
Unsheltered Homeless Crisis within the City of Turlock, which was ratified by the 
Turlock City Council on July 13, 2021. 

 
Pursuant to the City of Turlock Emergency Operations Plan section 5.1.3, the governing 
body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at regularly scheduled 
board (City Council) meetings at least once every 60 days until the governing body 
terminates the local emergency at the earliest possible date that conditions warrant an 
unsheltered homeless crisis continues to exist; therefore, staff recommends City 
Council reaffirm the emergency declaration.   

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 
Periodically at City Council meetings, the question arises as to why staff recommends to 
the City Council that the local emergency as to a continuing unsheltered homeless crisis 
be kept in place.  There are two (2) primary reasons.  First, the emergency provides 
flexibility to our existing homeless shelters to house individuals in numbers beyond their 
permitted capacity.  This reduces the immediate need for overflow or additional shelters.  
Second, the emergency allows the City access to the resources made available for 
overflow sheltering. 

 
In recent years, the City of Turlock has experienced an increase in the numbers of 
unsheltered homeless and the emergence of significant homeless encampments.  
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5F



Agenda Staff Report 
08/22/2023 

Page 2 

 
On March 14, 2021, the City’s Director of Emergency Services (Acting City Manager) 
issued a Proclamation of the Existence of a Local Emergency declaring a local 
emergency related to the Unsheltered Homeless and Encampments Crisis (“UHEC”) in 
the City described in that proclamation which was ratified by the City Council on March 
16, 2021. 
 
During the UHEC Local Emergency, the City engaged in extensive efforts of education 
and the offering of social services and emergency shelter (“Outreach Efforts”) to the 
unsheltered homeless, especially those in significant homeless encampments.  Those 
Outreach Efforts alleviated the portion of the local emergency related to large 
encampments but have not resolved the portion of the local emergency related to the 
continuing emergency of unsheltered homeless individuals and families.  On July 13, 
2021, the Turlock City Council voted to terminate the Local Emergency in response to 
the Unsheltered Homeless and Encampment Crisis (UHEC) ratified by City Council on 
March 16, 2021.   
 
Turlock Municipal Code Section 4-2-105(c)(1) authorizes the City Manager, serving as 
the Director of Emergency Services, to issue a Proclamation of a Local Emergency if 
the City Council is not in session.  The Proclamation by the City Manager must then be 
ratified by the City Council within seven (7) days thereafter, or the proclamation shall 
have no further force or effect.   
 
Turlock Municipal Code Section 4-2-106(a) authorizes the City Manager, serving as the 
Director of Emergency Services, to make and issue rules and regulations on matters 
related to the protection of life and property.  
 
On July 9, 2021, Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy in her role as the Director of 
Emergency Services, proclaimed a Local Emergency in response to the Unsheltered 
Homeless Crisis within the City of Turlock, which was ratified by the Turlock City 
Council on July 13, 2021. 
 
Also, on July 9, 2021, Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy executed Rules and 
Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued Under the Proclamation of a Local Emergency in 
Response to the Unsheltered Homeless Crisis on July 9, 2021, which were confirmed 
by the Turlock City Council on July 13, 2021.  
 
City staff from all City Departments are prepared and continue to engage in an ongoing 
effort designed to reverse the trend of increasing unsheltered homelessness within the 
City of Turlock while a comprehensive planning effort continues to develop longer-term 
strategies and preventive measures to assist unsheltered homeless individuals and 
families. 
 
In addition to offering emergency shelter to unsheltered individuals and families, a 
primary focus of this local emergency will be to connect homeless individuals and 
families with an array of social services and to attempt to reconnect homeless 
individuals with their families. 

 



Agenda Staff Report 
08/22/2023 

Page 3 

 
By declaring a local emergency, the City can obtain additional resources, establish an 
immediate plan, and respond quickly to urgent situations.  This will minimize disruptions 
and allow the City to focus on day-to-day operations while addressing the Unsheltered 
Homeless Crisis as effectively and efficiently as possible. 

 
In addition, pursuant to the City of Turlock Emergency Operations Plan section 5.1.3, 
the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at regularly 
scheduled board (City Council) meetings at least once every 60 days until the governing 
body terminates the local emergency at the earliest possible date that conditions 
warrant. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Pursuant to the City of Turlock Emergency Operations Plan section 5.1.3, the governing 
body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at regularly scheduled 
board (City Council) meetings at least once every 60 days until the governing body 
terminates the local emergency at the earliest possible date that conditions warrant. In 
addition, pursuant to Turlock Municipal Code Section 4-2-106(a), rules and regulations 
made and issued by the Director of Emergency Services must be considered for 
confirmation by the City Council. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 

 
None by this action.  Funding was appropriated for this Local Emergency during the July 
13, 2021 City Council Meeting. 

 
6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Recommend Approval. 
 
7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

 
Recommend Approval. 

 
8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

 
N/A 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 

 
A. The City Council may choose not to adopt the resolution; however, this alternative is 

not recommended.  The City Council is required to review the need for continuing 
the local emergency at least every 60 days. An unsheltered homeless crisis 
continues to exist; therefore, necessitating the continuance of the local emergency. 
In addition, under the cited municipal code provisions, the City Council must 
consider confirming any rules and regulations made and issued during a local 
emergency. 

 



Agenda Staff Report 
08/22/2023 

Page 4 

 
10. ATTACHMENTS: 

 
A. Draft Resolution 

a. Exhibit A – City of Turlock Proclamation of the Existence of a Local 
Emergency 

b. Exhibit B – City of Turlock Rules and Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued 
Under the Proclamation of a Local Emergency in Response to the 
Unshetered Homeless Crisis 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 
 

IN THE MATTER OF REAFFIRMING THE  } RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XXX 

PROCLAMATION OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY } 

IN RESPONSE TO A CONTINUING  } 

UNSHELTERED HOMELESS CRISIS (UHC)  } 

WITHIN THE CITY OF TURLOCK AND  } 

CONFIRMING RULES AND REGULATIONS NO. 1 } 

MADE AND ISSUED BY INTERIM CITY  } 

MANAGER SARAH TAMEY EDDY } 

(DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES) } 

 } 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Turlock in recent years has experienced an increase in the 
numbers of unsheltered homeless and the emergence of significant homeless 
encampments; and 

 

WHEREAS, homelessness is one of the most important and pervasive challenges 
facing the State of California and California counties and cities; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2021, the City’s Director of Emergency Services (Acting 
City Manager) issued a Proclamation of the Existence of a Local Emergency declaring a 
local emergency related to the Unsheltered Homeless and Encampments Crisis (“UHEC 
Local Emergency”) in the City described in that proclamation which was ratified by the City 
Council on March 16, 2021; and   

 

WHEREAS, during the UHEC Local Emergency, the City engaged in extensive 
efforts of education and the offering of social services and emergency shelter (“Outreach 
Efforts”) to the unsheltered homeless, especially those in significant homeless 
encampments; and 

 

WHEREAS, those Outreach Efforts alleviated the portion of the local emergency 
related to large encampments but have not resolved the portion of the local emergency 
related to the continuing emergency of unsheltered homeless individuals and families; and  

 

WHEREAS, there remains a real and present danger to the health, safety, and 
welfare of the unsheltered homeless; and 
 

WHEREAS, these aforementioned factors as well as others detailed in the attached 
proclamation constitute a local Unsheltered Homeless Crisis (“UHC”) that requires 
continuing and immediate emergency action; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2018, the City Council of the City of Turlock declared 
a shelter crisis pursuant to Government Code Section 8698 et seq. which is still in effect; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff from all City Departments are prepared to continue to engage 
in an ongoing effort designed to reverse the trend of increasing unsheltered homelessness 
within the City of Turlock during the UHC while a comprehensive planning effort continues 



Resolution No. 2023-XXX 

Page 2 

 

 
to develop longer-term strategies and preventive measures to assist unsheltered homeless 
individuals and families; and 
 

WHEREAS, in addition to offering emergency shelter to unsheltered individuals and 
families, a primary focus of this local emergency will be to connect homeless individuals 
and families with an array of social services and to attempt to reconnect homeless 
individuals with their families; and 
 

WHEREAS, Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy, in her role as the Director of 
Emergency Services, issued a Proclamation of Existence of a Local Emergency in 
response to the UHC on July 9, 2021 (Exhibit “A”) and also issued Rules and Regulations 
No.1 related to the UHC local emergency (Exhibit “B”). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Turlock 
finds as follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 8630 and section 4-2-105 of the Turlock 
Municipal Code, the Proclamation of Existence of a Local Emergency issued by the 
Director of Emergency Services on July 9, 2021 is hereby ratified. 
 

2. Pursuant to section 4-2-106 and section 9-1-112 of the Turlock Municipal Code, 
Rules and Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued Under the Proclamation of a Local 
Emergency in Response to the UHC by the Director of Emergency Services (Interim 
City Manager) of the City is hereby confirmed and ratified and deviations therein 
from Title 9 of the Turlock Municipal Code are authorized. 
 

3. During the existence of the local emergency, the powers, functions, and duties of 
the Director of Emergency Services (City Manager) and the emergency organization 
of the City shall be those prescribed by State law, the ordinances and resolutions of 
the City, and the City of Turlock Emergency Plan. 

 
4. The local emergency shall be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is 

proclaimed by the City Council. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Julie Christel, City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, 
State of California 

Turlock this 22nd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:        (-)  
 NOES:       (-) 
NOT PARTICIPATING:        (-) 
 ABSENT:       (-) 
 



KWeaver
Text Box
Exhibit A







KWeaver
Text Box
Exhibit B





JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5G







JChristel
Typewritten text
Attachment A 



JChristel
Typewritten text
22nd

JChristel
Typewritten text
August



JChristel
Typewritten text
Attachment B

















City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 

 

 
From:  Isaac Moreno, Finance Director  
 
Prepared by: Isaac Moreno, Finance Director 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Resolution: Adopt the City of Turlock Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fund 450 “SRWA 
Operations” Budget in the amount of $580,000 in Revenue and Expenses 
detailed in Exhibit A 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

For Financial Auditing purposes a budget should be adopted by the City Council.  Fund 
450 “SRWA Operations” is a new fund developed by the execution of the City of Turlock 
Operations Agreement. 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

On January 10, 2023 the Council authorized the execution of the Regional Surface Water 
Supply Project Operation Agreement between the City of Turlock and the Stanislaus 
Regional Water Authority (SRWA).  The execution of this agreement created a new 
division within Municipal Services Department and a new accounting fund to track 
expenditures for reimbursement. 
 
Although the executing of this contract authorized the expenditures needed to fulfill the 
contract, a formal budget is requested to be adopted by the City Council for best 
accounting practices.  The proposed budget is attached as Exhibit A. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Adoption of a Municipal budget is required by Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP), government accounting, and audit standards. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:  
 
 Fiscal Impact:  
 
 This establishes spending authority for the City of Turlock for Fund 450 “SRWA 

Operations” only for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. 
 

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 5H



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/2023 

Page 2 

 

 Adopt Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fund 450 “SRWA Operations” budget 
 
7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
 Recommend Approval. 

 
8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 
 
 N/A 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. Do not adopt the budget as presented.  This action is not recommended due to the 
requirement of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), government 
accounting, and audit standards. 

 
10. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Draft Resolution 
B. Proposed Fund 450 “SRWA Operations” Draft Budget 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE CITY OF } RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
TURLOCK FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 FUND 450 } 
“SRWA OPERATIONS” BUDGET IN THE } 
AMOUNT OF $580,000 IN REVENUE AND  } 
EXPENSES DETAILED IN EXHIBIT A } 
 } 
 

 
WHEREAS, on January 10, 2023 the Council authorized the execution of the 

Regional Surface Water Supply Projection Operation Agreement between the City of 
Turlock and Stanislaus Regional Water Authority (SRWA); and  

 
WHEREAS, the execution of this agreement created Fund 450 “SRWA 

Operations”, a new division within Municipal Services Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, for financial auditing purposes a budget should be adopted by the City 

Council in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for proper 
accounting of revenue and expenditures; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Turlock hereby 

authorizes the adoption of the City of Turlock Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fund 450 “SRWA 
Operations” budget in the amount of $580,000 in revenue and expenses detailed in 
Exhibit A. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Turlock this 22nd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 
 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
NOT PARTICIPATING:  
 ABSENT:  
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
__________________________ 
Julie Christel, City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, 
State of California 

 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Attachment A 



Attachment B

REVENUE

Department   53 - Surface Water

Division   550 - Operations

Account Account Description Proposed Budget

37435 SRWA JPA (Fund 950) Reimbursement 580,000                      

REVENUE TOTALS 580,000                      

EXPENSE

Department   53 - Surface Water

Division   550 - Operations

Labor

41001 Full Time Salaries 230,000                      

41050 Bilingual Pay 1,000                         

41051 Confidential Pay -                             

41052 Educational Incentive 1,000                         

41053 Sick Leave Conversion Pay -                             

41054 Stand By Wages -                             

41055 Vacation Conversion Pay 23,000                       

41056 Management Leave Conversion -                             

41059 Continuous Service Pay 800                            

41060 Signing Bonus 15,000                       

41100_001 Overtime Standard 3,000                         

42002 Medical Dental Plan 35,000                       

42003 Vision Insurance 4,000                         

42004 Long Term Disability Insurance 1,700                         

42005 Life Insurance 600                            

42006 SUI 3,000                         

42007 Workers Comp Insurance 7,000                         

42008 City Liability Insurance 5,000                         

42009 PERS 42,000                       

42010 Medicare Tax 5,000                         

42011 Social Security -                             

42012 Retiree Health Insurance 6,000                         

42013 Deferred Comp 3,000                         

42014 Deferred Comp In Lieu 3,000                         

42015 Employee Contrib To Health -                             

42016 Employee Contrib To PERS (22,000)                      

367,100                      

Fund   450 - SRWA - Operations BUDGET

Page 1 of 2



Attachment B

REVENUE

Department   53 - Surface Water

Division   550 - Operations

Account Account Description Proposed Budget

Fund   450 - SRWA - Operations BUDGET

Supplies and Equipment

43155 Physicals, Shots & Psychological 1,300                         

44001_000 Supplies General 74,000                       

44030_001 Minor Equipment Safety 18,000                       

44030_002 Minor Equipment Tools 75,000                       

44090 Office Equipment & Furniture 36,000                       

45001_000 Telephone General 600                            

45001_002 Telephone Wireless/Tablet Service Plan 1,000                         

46031 Gas & Oil 1,000                         

46032 Vehicle & Small Equipment Maintenance Parts 1,000                         

47090 Testing & Recruitment 5,000                         

212,900                      

EXPENSE TOTALS 580,000                      

Fund   450 - SRWA - Operations Totals

REVENUE TOTALS 580,000                      

EXPENSE TOTALS 580,000                      

Fund   450 - SRWA - Operations Totals -                             

Page 2 of 2



 
City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 
 

 

 
From: Katie Quintero, Development Services Director 
 
Prepared by: Adrienne Werner, Planning Manager 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Resolution: Finding that Perfect Union has complied in good faith with terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement between Perfect Union and the City of 
Turlock for the operation of a cannabis retail dispensary at 2500 N. Golden State 
Boulevard, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 088-007-
025 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

In accordance with City of Turlock Ordinance 1263-CS and Turlock Municipal 
Code Section 9-5-912 the Turlock City Council will review the Development 
Agreement with Perfect Union regarding the operation of the cannabis retail 
business located at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard, Stanislaus County APN 088-
007-025. The City Council will review and determine whether or not Perfect Union 
has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the Development 
Agreement.  

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

BACKGROUND 
Perfect Union is located at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard.  The property is 
zoned Community Commercial which allows cannabis dispensaries with a 
Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement. 
 
At the September 5, 2019 meeting the Planning Commission recommended the 
City Council approve a Development Agreement between the City and Perfect 
Union to operate a cannabis retail dispensary. The City Council adopted the 
ordinance approving the Development Agreement at the September 24, 2019 
meeting. In accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement, Perfect 
Union submitted an application for a conditional use permit on October 4, 2019. On 
March 5, 2020, the Planning Commission granted Conditional Use Permit 2019-07 
for Perfect Union to operate a cannabis retail dispensary in the existing 4,625 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 7A



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 2 

 
square foot building at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard.  Perfect Union opened for 
business on September 18, 2020. 
 
ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
The Turlock Municipal Code §9-5-912 requires the Planning Commission review 
the development agreement annually and make a recommendation to the City 
Council as to whether or not the property owner has complied in good faith with the 
terms and conditions of the agreement. 
 
At the June 1, 2023 the Planning Commission reviewed the Development 
Agreement for compliance with the terms and conditions of the agreement and 
recommended the City Council find that Perfect Union has complied in good faith 
with the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 
The terms and conditions the Planning Commission reviewed are discussed below. 
 
Planning Department 
Conditional Use Permit 2019-07 was granted by the Planning Commission on 
March 5, 2020. In accordance with the CUP the Planning Commission reviewed 
the project for compliance with conditions of approval established in the CUP. The 
Planning Commission determined Perfect Union is compliant with the terms and 
conditions of the CUP.  Perfect Union was issued a business license on August 25, 
2020 and opened for business on September 18, 2020. Their business license is 
current and active. 
 
Building and Safety Division 
There are no active building code violations and Perfect Union is compliant with 
the requirements of the Building and Safety Division. 
 
Public Benefit Amount 
The annual audits and compliance checks have been completed and Perfect Union 
is in good standing. The public benefit amount that Perfect Union has deposited is 
detailed in the table below: 
 

Fiscal Year Public Benefit Deposit 
2020-21    $212,500.00 
2021-22    $345,000.00 
2022-23    $405,000.00 

Total through 7/31/23    $962,500.00 
 
Police Department 
Perfect Union opened for business on September 18, 2020. In the three years they 
have been operational there have been 13 calls for service (CFS) of which two 
calls resulted in the officer filing a case. As required by the security plan and the 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 3 

 
conditions in the CUP, the security guard with Perfect Union was ensuring that no 
persons were loitering on the premises. When the individuals would not leave 
dispatch was called and an arrest made. The other incident was filed by Perfect 
Union employees because the signs on the fence had been stolen. The individuals 
were not identified and were not found.  
 
When responding to calls, the location is indexed by where the incident occurred or 
where the officer should respond to, to contact the victim. If the officer responds to 
the parking lot for Perfect Union the address and business name will be indexed in 
the report. If no report was made, the officer did not find probable cause to show a 
crime occurred. Of the 13 calls for service at Perfect Union’s location two resulted 
in the officer filing a report. No other calls for service have resulted in the filing of a 
case. Perfect Union is compliant and in good standing with the Police 
Department’s conditions. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Turlock Municipal Code Section 9-5-912 requires annual review of development 
agreements. The City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, shall determine whether or not the property owner, for the period 
under review, has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 
 

Fiscal Impact 
  

If City Council finds that Perfect Union has not acted in good faith with the terms 
and conditions of the Development Agreement they may terminate the agreement. 
If the agreement is terminated Perfect Union can no longer operate and is no 
longer obligated to comply with the terms of the agreement including depositing the 
public benefit amount as specified in the agreement. 

 
6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

At the June 1, 2023 Planning Commission meeting the Commission voted 
unanimously to recommend the City Council find Perfect Union has complied in 
good faith with the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. 

  
7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Recommend finding Perfect Union has complied in good faith with the terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement. 

 
8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

The project is to determine whether or not Perfect Union has complied in good faith 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 4 

 
with the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. 

No changes in the existing building or site are anticipated as a result of the project; 
therefore, the project is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301(a) 
(Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. City Council could determine Perfect Union has not complied in good faith with 
the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. If the City Council 
finds and determines the property owner has not complied in good faith with the 
terms and conditions of the agreement during the period under review, the City 
Council shall order the property owner to cure the default within 60 days. If the 
property owner fails to do so, the City Council may modify or terminate the 
agreement. 

 
10.  ATTACHMENTS: 
  

A. Draft Resolution   



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown signed three bills into law (Assembly 
Bill 266, Assembly Bill 243, and Senate Bill 643), which are collectively referred to as the Medical 
Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MCRSA”). MCRSA established the first statewide regulatory 
system for medical cannabis businesses; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the voters of California approved Proposition 64 entitled the “Control, 
Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana” (“AUMA”). AUMA legalized the adult-use and possession of 
cannabis by persons 21 years of age and older and the personal cultivation of up to six cannabis 
plants within a private residence; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law the Medicinal and Adult-
use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”), which created a single regulatory scheme for 
both medicinal and adult-use cannabis businesses. MAUCRSA retains the provisions in the MCRSA 
and AUMA that granted local jurisdictions control over whether businesses engaged in commercial 
cannabis activity may operate in a particular jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, in January, 2019, the Bureau of Cannabis Control, the Department of Food and 
Agriculture and the Department of Public Health issued final regulations for all medicinal and adult-use 
cannabis businesses allowed under MAUCRSA. The regulations require, among other things, 
background checks of business owners and employees, a plan of business operation, a security plan 
and environmental pollution and waste plans; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2019, the City adopted Ordinance No. 1255-CS amending the City’s 
cannabis business regulations and establishing a Cannabis Business Pilot Program (the “Pilot 
Program”) to regulate the operation of commercial cannabis businesses within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2019, following the adoption of the Pilot Program, the City issued and 
circulated a request for qualifications (“RFQ”). The purpose of the RFQ was to form the basis for a 
staff recommendation process of qualified cannabis operators for participation in the Pilot Program. 
Perfect Union has completed the RFQ requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 65864 et seq. permits the City to contract with private 
interests for their mutual benefits in a manner not otherwise available to the contracting parties and 
such agreements assure property developers that they may proceed with their projects with the 
assurance that approvals granted by the City will not change during the period of development and the 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XXX IN THE MATTER OF THE CITY COUNCIL FINDING 

THAT PERFECT UNION HAS COMPLIED IN GOOD 

FAITH WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 

THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

PERFECT UNION AND THE CITY OF TURLOCK 

FOR THE OPERATION OF A CANNABIS RETAIL 

DISPENSARY AT 2500 N. GOLDEN STATE 

BOULEVARD, TURLOCK, CA, COUNTY OF 

STANISLAUS, ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 

088-007-025 

ATTACHMENT A 



Resolution No. 2023-XXX 

Page 2 

 

 
City is equally assured that public benefit interests will be protected and properly administrated at the 
time development projects are proposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2019 the City adopted Ordinance No. 1263-CS approving a 
Development Agreement by and between the City and Perfect Union to operate a storefront retail 
dispensary as defined in Turlock Municipal Code Section 5.21 in strict accordance with applicable 
state and local law, at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, California, County of Stanislaus 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 088-007-025 (the “Project”), consistent with the General Plan, as amended; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined the project is categorically exempt from the provisions 
of CEQA pursuant to section 15301 [Existing Facilities]. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code Section 9-5-912(c) the City Council, 
upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission, shall determine whether or not the property 
owner, for the period under review, has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock does 
hereby determine that Perfect Union has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement between Perfect Union and the City of Turlock for the operation of a 
cannabis retail dispensary at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 088-007-025. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Turlock this 
22nd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:      ( ) 
 NOES:      ( ) 
NOT PARTICIPATING:      ( ) 
 ABSENT:      ( ) 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
Julie Christel, City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,  
State of California 

 



 
City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 
 

 

 
From: Katie Quintero, Development Services Director 
 
Prepared by: Adrienne Werner, Planning Manager 
 
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Resolution: Finding that Fire House has complied in good faith with terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement between Fire House and the City of 
Turlock for the operation of a cannabis retail dispensary at 1601 W. Main Street, 
Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 089-015-006. 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

In accordance with City of Turlock Ordinance 1260-CS and Turlock Municipal 
Code Section 9-5-912 the Turlock City Council will review the Development 
Agreement with Fire House regarding the operation of the cannabis retail business 
located at 1601 W. Main Street, Stanislaus County APN 089-015-006. The City 
Council will review and determine whether or not Fire House has complied in good 
faith with the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement.  

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

BACKGROUND 
Fire House is located at 1601 W Main Street.  The property is zoned Community 
Commercial which allows cannabis dispensaries with a Conditional Use Permit and 
Development Agreement. 
 
At the September 19, 2019 meeting the City Council adopted the ordinance 
approving the Development Agreement between the City of Turlock and Fire 
House to operate a cannabis retail dispensary. In accordance with the terms of the 
Development Agreement, Fire House submitted an application for a conditional 
use permit on November 5, 2019. On March 10, 2020, the City Council granted 
Conditional Use Permit 2019-08 for Fire House to operate a cannabis retail 
dispensary in the existing 4,625 square foot building at 1601 W. Main Street.  Fire 
House opened for business on August 7, 2020. 
 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 7B



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 2 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
The Turlock Municipal Code §9-5-912 requires the Planning Commission review 
the development agreement annually and make a recommendation to the City 
Council as to whether or not the property owner has complied in good faith with the 
terms and conditions of the agreement. 
 
At the June 1, 2023 the Planning Commission reviewed the Development 
Agreement for compliance with the terms and conditions of the agreement and 
made recommendation the City Council find that Fire House has complied in good 
faith with the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 
The terms and conditions the Planning Commission reviewed are discussed below. 
 
Planning Department 
Conditional Use Permit 2019-08 was granted by the Planning Commission on 
January 16, 2020. The Planning Commission decision was appealed to the City 
Council. At the March 10, 2020 meeting, the City Council upheld the Planning 
Commission decision and granted Conditional Use Permit 2019-08 to Fire House 
for the operation of a cannabis retail dispensary.  Fire House was issued a 
business license on August 5, 2020 and opened for business on August 7, 2020. 
Their business license is current and active. The Planning Commission found Fire 
House is compliant with the terms and conditions of the CUP. 
 
Building and Safety Division 
There are no active building code violations and Fire House is compliant with the 
requirements of the Building and Safety Division. 
 
Public Benefit Amount 
The annual audits and compliance checks have been completed and Fire House is 
in good standing. The public benefit amount that Fire House has deposited is 
detailed in the table below: 
 

Fiscal Year Public Benefit Deposit 
2020-21    $943,815.11 
2021-22    $909,381.24 
2022-23    $753,340.50 

Total through 7/31/23 $2,606,536.80 
 
Police Department 
Fire House opened for business on August 7, 2020. In the three years they have 
been operational there have been 48 calls for service (CFS) of which six calls 
resulted in the officer filing a case. One report for auto theft was taken in error.  
 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 3 

 
When responding to calls, the location is indexed by where the incident occurred or 
where the officer should respond to, to contact the victim. If the officer responds to 
the parking lot for Fire House the address and business name will be indexed in 
the report. If no report was made, the officer did not find probable cause to show a 
crime occurred. 
 
Of the 48 calls for service with Fire House listed as the address, the incidents 
occurred outside the dispensary in the parking lot (robbery, damage to the building, 
disturbances, etc.). The officers contacted the involved subjects outside of the 
business. Firehouse contacted dispatch regarding four of the calls; one for property 
damage when a person was seen on surveillance cameras throwing a rock and 
breaking a window; three incidents involving individuals confronting the security 
guard when asked to leave the premises; and a person trespassing on the property 
after the business was closed. Two of the incidents resulted in arrest. No other 
calls for service resulted in filing a case. 
 
Fire House is compliant and in good standing with the Police Department’s 
conditions. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Turlock Municipal Code Section 9-5-912 requires annual review of development 
agreements. The City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, shall determine whether or not the property owner, for the period 
under review, has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 
 

Fiscal Impact 
If City Council finds that Fire House has not acted in good faith with the terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement they may terminate the agreement. If 
the agreement is terminated Fire House is no longer allowed to operate or comply 
with the terms of the agreement including depositing the public benefit amount as 
specified in the agreement. 

 
6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

At the June 1, 2023 Planning Commission meeting the Commission voted 
unanimously to recommend the City Council find Fire House has complied in good 
faith with the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. 

  
7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Recommend finding Fire House has complied in good faith with the terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement. 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 4 

 
8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

The project is to determine whether or not Fire House has complied in good faith 
with the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. 

No changes in the existing building or site are anticipated as a result of the project; 
therefore, the project is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301(a) 
(Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. City Council could determine Fire House has not complied in good faith with the 
terms and conditions of the Development Agreement. If the City Council finds 
and determines the property owner has not complied in good faith with the 
terms and conditions of the agreement during the period under review, the City 
Council shall order the property owner to cure the default within 60 days. If the 
property owner fails to do so, the City Council may modify or terminate the 
agreement. 

 
10.  ATTACHMENTS: 
  

A. Draft Resolution   



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown signed three bills into law 
(Assembly Bill 266, Assembly Bill 243, and Senate Bill 643), which are collectively referred to as the 
Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MCRSA”). MCRSA established the first statewide 
regulatory system for medical cannabis businesses; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the voters of California approved Proposition 64 entitled the “Control, 
Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana” (“AUMA”). AUMA legalized the adult-use and possession of 
cannabis by persons 21 years of age and older and the personal cultivation of up to six cannabis 
plants within a private residence; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law the Medicinal and Adult-
use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act (“MAUCRSA”), which created a single regulatory scheme for 
both medicinal and adult-use cannabis businesses. MAUCRSA retains the provisions in the MCRSA 
and AUMA that granted local jurisdictions control over whether businesses engaged in commercial 
cannabis activity may operate in a particular jurisdiction; and 

 

WHEREAS, in January, 2019, the Bureau of Cannabis Control, the Department of Food and 
Agriculture and the Department of Public Health issued final regulations for all medicinal and adult-use 
cannabis businesses allowed under MAUCRSA. The regulations require, among other things, 
background checks of business owners and employees, a plan of business operation, a security plan 
and environmental pollution and waste plans; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2019, the City adopted Ordinance No. 1255-CS amending the City’s 
cannabis business regulations and establishing a Cannabis Business Pilot Program (the “Pilot 
Program”) to regulate the operation of commercial cannabis businesses within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2019, following the adoption of the Pilot Program, the City issued and 
circulated a request for qualifications (“RFQ”). The purpose of the RFQ was to form the basis for a 
staff recommendation process of qualified cannabis operators for participation in the Pilot Program. 
Fire House has completed the RFQ requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 65864 et seq. permits the City to contract with private 
interests for their mutual benefits in a manner not otherwise available to the contracting parties and 
such agreements assure property developers that they may proceed with their projects with the 
assurance that approvals granted by the City will not change during the period of development and the 
City is equally assured that public benefit interests will be protected and properly administrated at the 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

} 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XXX IN THE MATTER OF THE CITY COUNCIL FINDING 

THAT FIRE HOUSE HAS COMPLIED IN GOOD 

FAITH WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 

THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN FIRE 

HOUSE AND THE CITY OF TURLOCK FOR THE 

OPERATION OF A CANNABIS RETAIL 

DISPENSARY AT 1601 W. MAIN STREET, 

TURLOCK, CA, COUNTY OF STANISLAUS, 

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 089-015-006 

ATTACHMENT A 



Resolution No. 2023-XXX 

Page 2 

 

 
time development projects are proposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2019 the City adopted Ordinance No. 1260-CS approving a 
Development Agreement by and between the City and Fire House to operate a storefront retail 
dispensary as defined in Turlock Municipal Code Section 5.21 in strict accordance with applicable 
state and local law, at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, California, County of Stanislaus 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 088-007-025 (the “Project”), consistent with the General Plan, as amended; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined the project is categorically exempt from the provisions 
of CEQA pursuant to section 15301 [Existing Facilities]. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code Section 9-5-912(c) the City Council, 
upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission, shall determine whether or not the property 
owner, for the period under review, has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock does 
hereby determine that Fire House has complied in good faith with the terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement between Fire House and the City of Turlock for the operation of a cannabis 
retail dispensary at 1601 W. Main Street, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 089-015-006. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Turlock this 
22nd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:      ( ) 
 NOES:      ( ) 
NOT PARTICIPATING:      ( ) 
 ABSENT:      ( ) 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
Julie Christel, City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,  
State of California 

 



City Council Staff Report 
August 22, 2023 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Erik Schulze, Public Works Director 
 
Prepared by: Fred Pezeshk, P.E., Roads Program Manager 
  
Agendized by: Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Resolution: Approving Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of 

the Master Agreement with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 
(Sacramento, California office) in the amount of $436,855.00 to be 
funded by Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads,” account number 115-10-
115.43366_001 “Design Roads” for Professional Services for the City 
of Turlock’s Roads Initiative Program under City Project No. 23-052 
“Mark Thomas Task Order No. 2 for Roads Program - Geer Road 
(30%)” 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 

 
This action approves Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of 
the Master Agreement with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (City Contract No. 
2023-109) for professional services associated with the City of Turlock’s Roads 
Initiative Program under City Project No. 23-052 “Mark Thomas Task Order No. 2 
for Roads Program - Geer Road (30%).” 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 
The Master Agreement, between Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (Mark Thomas) 
and the City of Turlock, stipulates that the scope of services and fees associated 
with specific projects will be agreed upon through task orders approved under the 
terms of the Master Agreement. 
 
Staff is proposing the rehabilitation of Geer Road corridor from N. Golden State 
Blvd. to Taylor Road. Portions of this corridor are within assessment district 
boundaries and maintained through specific assessments; however, the entire 
corridor will be evaluated and an overall Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for 
various roadway segments along this corridor are shown in the following table 
(Geer Road is the east/west divider for crossing streets; however, crossing streets 
are called out as shown in StreetSaver database): 
 
 

JChristel
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 8A



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 

Geer Road From  To PCI Length (ft) District 

      

Northbound (N/B) N. Golden State Blvd. Lincoln Ave. 93 266.00 1 

Southbound (S/B) N. Golden State Blvd. Lincoln Ave. 93 266.0 1 
       

N/B Lincoln Ave. W. Canal Dr. 0 331.00 1 

S/B Lincoln Ave. W. Canal Dr. 90 331.00 1 
        

N/B W. Canal Dr. Wayside Dr. 3 1,401.00 1 

S/B W. Canal Dr. Wayside Dr. 38 1,401.00 1 & 4 
      

N/B Wayside Dr. W. Hawkeye Ave. 14 1,112.00 1 

S/B Wayside Dr. W. Hawkeye Ave. 34 1,112.00 4 
        

N/B W. Hawkeye Ave. Pedras Rd. 6 1,342.00 1 

S/B W. Hawkeye Ave. Pedras Rd. 34 1,342.00 4 
        

N/B Pedras Rd. E. Tuolumne Rd. 20 1,348.00 1 

S/B Pedras Rd. E. Tuolumne Rd. 21 1,348.00 4 
       

  E. Tuolumne Rd. W. Minnesota Ave. 11 643.00 3 
      

  W. Minnesota Ave. Regis St. 16 1,092.00 3 
      

 Regis St. E. Monte Vista Ave. 21 938.00 3 
      

 E. Monte Vista Ave. Calaveras Wy. 60 1,000.00 3 
      

 Calaveras Wy. E. Christoffersen Pkwy. 89 1,683.00 3 
      

 E. Christoffersen Pkwy. W. Springer Dr. 80 1,342.00 3 
      

 W. Springer Dr. W. Taylor Rd. 89 1,447.00 3 

      

TOTAL LENGTH (FT) 13,945.00   
 
 
Mark Thomas’s scope of services, up to the 30% stage of design development, 
includes, in general, pavement cores and soil sampling, pavement design, LiDAR 
processing, supplemental field survey, boundary surveys for monument 
preservation and right of way verification, utility coordination, driveway access 
management, evaluation of General Plan and Active Transportation Plan (ATP) 
requirements, funding applications, development of 30% Plans, public outreach, 
and Council presentations. Environmental clearance is anticipated to be a 
categorical exemption under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In the 
event that the City is successful in securing State and/or Federal funding for the 
project, scope for the final design phase will include environmental clearance 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 3 

 

under National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) guidelines for categorical 
exclusion. 
 
Proposed Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 provides for the scope of 
services, associated fees, and schedule for rehabilitation of Geer Road corridor up 
to the 30% stage of design development. After a public outreach meeting and a 
presentation to the City Council, scope of services, associated fees, and schedule 
for the final design development will be developed and brought back to the City 
Council for consideration. 
 

4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 

 
A. The proposed Amendment is essential to ensuring that adequate resources 

are available for advancing the design and future construction of Roads 
Program CIP projects. 

 
B. Professional services contracts that exceed $100,000 are approved at the 

discretion of the City Council.  
 
C. This action is consistent with Council’s stated goal of utilizing Measure A 

revenues to expedite road repair projects. 
 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 

 
The fiscal impact of the proposed actions will be $436,855.00 which will be funded 
by Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads”, account number 115-10-115.43366_001 
“Design Roads.” 
 

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends approval. 

 

7. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

 
Recommends approval. 
 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

 
Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines exempts projects that involve negligible or no expansion of use 
of the existing facility. This Amendment provides design work for existing streets 
and related facilities. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVES: 

 
A. Council could choose not to approve Amendment No. 2 to the Master 

Agreement with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. Staff does not recommend 



Agenda Staff Report 
8/22/23 
Page 4 

 

this alternative it will delay the process of design and construction of Roads 
Program CIP projects. 

 
B. Provide staff with direction on how to proceed. 

 
10.  ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Draft Resolution 

B. Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of the Master 
Agreement (City Contract No. 2023-109) with Mark Thomas & Company  

a. Exhibit C 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AMENDMENT }  RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
NO. 2 FOR TASK ORDER NO. 2 UNDER THE } 
TERMS OF THE MASTER AGREEMENT WITH  } 
MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC.  } 
(SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA OFFICE), IN  } 
THE AMOUNT OF $436,855.00 TO BE FUNDED  } 
BY FUND 115 “MEASURE A – ROADS,”  } 
ACCOUNT NUMBER 115-10-115.43366_001  } 
“DESIGN ROADS” FOR PROFESSIONAL  } 
SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TURLOCK’S  } 
ROADS INITIATIVE PROGRAM UNDER CITY  } 
PROJECT NO. 23-052 “MARK THOMAS TASK  } 
ORDER NO. 2 FOR ROADS PROGRAM - GEER  } 
ROAD (30%)” } 
 } 
 

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2023, the City Council approved a Master Agreement 
(Agreement) between the City of Turlock and Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. for 
engineering design services (City Contract No. 2023-109) to assist City with Design 
Services for Roads Program CIP Projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Agreement stipulates that the scope of services and fees 
associated with specific projects will be agreed upon through task orders approved under 
the terms of Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 provides the scope of 
services, associated fees, and schedule for Geer Road corridor, from N. Golden State 
Blvd. to Taylor Road, under City Project No. 23-052 “Mark Thomas Task Order No. 2 for 
Roads Program – Geer Road (30%)”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the cost of engineering design services for City Project No. 23-052 is 
estimated to be $436,855.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, funding is available from Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads”, account 

number 115-10-115.43366_001 “Design Roads” for costs associated with City Project 
No. 23-052.   

JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment A



Resolution No. 2023- 
Page 2 

 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock 

does hereby approve Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of the 
Master Agreement with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (Sacramento, California office) in 
the amount of $436,855.00 to be funded by Fund 115 “Measure A – Roads,” account 
number 115-10-115.43366_001 “Design Roads” for Professional Services for the City of 
Turlock’s Roads Initiative Program under City Project No. 23-052 “Mark Thomas Task 
Order No. 2 for Roads Program – Geer Road (30%).” 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Turlock this 22nd day of August, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
NOT PARTICIPATING:  
 ABSENT:  
 

ATTEST: 
 

__________________________ 
Julie Christel, City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, 
State of California 



Page 1 of 3 

 CITY CONTRACT NO. 2023-109, Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 

 
 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 FOR TASK ORDER NO. 2 

Under the Terms of the 
MASTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TURLOCK 

and 
MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC. 

for 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (City Contract No. 2023-109) 

 
City Project No. 23-052 

 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 for Task Order No. 2 under the terms of City Contract No. 

2023-109 is entered into by and between the CITY OF TURLOCK, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”), and MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC., a California corporation 
(“Professional”), on this ____ day of __________ 2023 (the “Effective Date of Task Order No. 2”). 
City and Professional may be collectively referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as 
“Party.” There are no other parties to this Amendment No. 2. 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto previously entered into a Master Agreement (City Contract 
No. 2023-109) dated April 25, 2023, for engineering design services to assist City with Design 
Services for Roads Program Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Projects (“Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agreement stipulates that the scope of services and fees associated with 
specific projects will be agreed upon through task orders approved under the terms of Agreement 
by a written amendment to the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 provides the scope of services, 

associated fees, and schedule for a specific project under City Project No. 23-052 “Mark Thomas 
Task Order No. 2 for Roads Program – Geer Road (30%).” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto mutually agree to amend the Agreement as 
follows: 
 

1. Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby added 
to the Agreement. 

 
2. Recital C of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 
C.  Professional has made a proposal to City to provide such professional 
services. A description of the services Professional proposes to provide is included 
in the Scope of Services in Exhibits A, B, and C attached hereto and incorporated 

  

  

JGovernale
Typewritten text
Attachment B



Page 2 of 3 

 CITY CONTRACT NO. 2023-109, Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 

 
 

herein by reference (“Services”). City desires to retain Professional to perform the 
Services, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 
3. Recital D of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 
D.  The Parties anticipate that one or more projects for Services shall be 
determined through creation of a Task Order as a City-requested modification of 
services under Section 5.2 of this Agreement which shall be approved by written 
amendment to this Agreement. The Parties shall outline the schedule or timeline for 
providing the Services agreed upon under each Task Order (“Completion Schedule”), 
which shall be included in one or more written amendments to this Agreement. Such 
Completion Schedule is included in Exhibit C for Task Order No. 2. 
 

4. Recital E of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
 

E.  The Parties shall outline the rates and method of payment to Professional 
for its performance of the Services under this Agreement as determined under each 
Task Order (“Compensation Schedule”), which shall be included in one or more 
written amendments to this Agreement. Such Compensation Schedule is included in 
Exhibit C for Task Order No. 2. 

 
5. Section 5 of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 
5.1. Services. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 

Professional shall provide City the Services described in Exhibits A, B, and C. Any 
request for Services not included in Exhibits A, B, and C will be considered a request 
for additional or modified Services (“Modification” or “Modifications”). Professional 
shall not receive additional compensation for any Modification of the Services unless 
the Parties agree otherwise in a writing executed by both Parties. 

 
5.2. City Requested Modification of Services. City may, by written order, 

authorize Modifications to the Services described in Exhibits A, B, and C. If such 
Modifications cause an increase in the cost or time required for performance of 
Professional’s Services, the Parties shall enter into a written amendment to this 
Agreement to adjust the Services and the compensation to be paid to Professional 
and, if necessary, amend the Completion Schedule or Compensation Schedule. The 
Services, Completion Schedule, or Compensation Schedule shall not be revised 
unless City and Professional mutually agree to a written amendment to this 
Agreement reflecting such revisions, additional compensation, time for performance 
or such other terms or conditions mutually agreed upon by the Parties. 

 
6. Section 6 of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 
6.1. Amount, Time and Manner of Payment for Professional Services. City 

shall pay Professional according to the rates and timing set forth in the Compensation 
Schedule for each Task Order within each Amendment to the Agreement. Each 
Compensation Schedule shall include an exhibit based on Exhibit 10-H1 of Caltrans 
Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM). Professional will be allowed to include 
an amount for the anticipated salary increases as calculated per Exhibit 10-H1.  City’s 
total compensation to Professional shall not exceed the cumulative amount resulting 
from each Task Order with each approved Amendment to the Agreement. The 



Page 3 of 3 

 CITY CONTRACT NO. 2023-109, Amendment No. 2 for Task Order No. 2 

 
 

compensation for Amendment No. 2 shall not exceed Four-Hundred-Thirty-Six 
Thousand Eight-Hundred-Fifty-Five Dollars and Zero Cents ($436,855.00) for Task 
Order No. 2 (“Maximum Payment”), unless the Parties mutually agree in writing 
otherwise. 

 
7. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 

for the Term of the Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 2 to be executed by and 
through their respective officers thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL 
 
MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC., a 
California corporation 
 
 
 
By:       
      Ed Noriega, Associate Principal 
 
Date       

CITY 
 
City of Turlock, a California  
municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
      Reagan M. Wilson, City Manager 
 
Date:       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
By:         
       Erik Schulze, Public Works Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
       George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
       Julie Christel, City Clerk 
 

 



 

 

August 7, 2023 

 

Fred Pezeshk 

City of Turlock 

156 South Broadway, Suite 150 

Turlock, CA 95380 

   

RE: Geer Road Pavement Rehabilitation – Golden State Blvd to Taylor Road 

Dear Mr. Pezeshk: 

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the City deliver the Geer Road Pavement 

Rehabilitation/Reconstruction (Golden State Blvd to Taylor Road).   We are very much interested and 

highly motivated to deliver this project successfully for the City.  

The following pages is our proposal to that includes our statement of qualifications that demonstrates our 

team's  experience and expertise on the following requested items:  

 General Plan and Active Transportation Plan Implementation 

 Access Management 

 Right of Way Acquisition 

 CEQA/NEPA Environmental Clearance 

 Public Meetings and City Council Presentations 

 Preliminary and Final Design 

 Grant Application Success 

It also contains our proposed scope of work that gets the project to a 30% level design; so the City can make 

decisions on how to deliver the project. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or clarifications. 

Sincerely, 

MARK THOMAS 

 

 

 

Ed Noriega 

Division Manager + Associate Principal 

FPezeshk
Typewritten text
EXHIBIT C TO AMENDMENT NO. 2 FOR TASK ORDER NO. 2 (CITYCONTRACT NO. 2023-109)



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 2 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

Through the City of Turlock (City) Roads Program Capital Improvement Program (CIP), the City plans to 

evaluate Geer Road (from N. Golden State Blvd to Taylor Road) for rehabilitation. The following are the main 

items that the City would like to consider: 

 

• Over the length of Geer Road, several pavement rehabilitation methods may be needed based on 

the conditions of the specific roadway conditions. The project would also include updating curb 

ramps to comply with current the American Disability Act (ADA) standards. 

 

• In addition to pavement rehabilitation, it is intended to fill in missing sidewalks; restripe the corridor; 

manage access for driveways; and evaluate median requirements to be consistent with the City’s 

Active Transportation Plan (ATP) and General Plan (GP) requirements; and if not feasible, propose 

alternatives and solutions to consider.  The existing right of way will be retraced to check if 

acquisitions are needed to accommodate the proposed construction. 

 

• Geer Road is a local roadway on the National Highway System which means we will investigate how 

Surface Transportation Assistance Act (STAA) size trucks would be affected by the project 

improvements. 

 

• Currently, the project is planned to be constructed with local funds and the City intends to construct 

the project in Fiscal Year (FY) 25/26. The City would like explore securing grants for the project. 

 

• Due to the commercial/retail nature of the corridor, driveway access during construction activities will 

need to be addressed. 

 

• The City would like to prepare a 30% design level plan to present to the public before moving 

forward with Final Design. 

 

Mark Thomas understands the City’s goal and timetable for delivering the project. Using the high-definition 

LiDAR scan the City has already performed and acquired, Mark Thomas will translate and extract surface and 

planimetric information required to construct the project from the point cloud and develop a PS&E package 

for the project. Where additional information is needed to reconstruct curb ramps, supplemental topo will 

be obtained.  

 

The City has already conducted a preliminary assessment of their roadway network. This information will be 

used as a baseline for identifying relative levels of reconstruction required to improve the pavement 

condition of the street. Additionally, Crawford and Associates (Crawford) will obtain coring samples and 

conduct laboratory testing to see if thicker pavement sections are required to adequately rehabilitate the 

pavement.  They will also evaluate and identify if there are opportunities to utilize Full Depth Reclamation 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 3 

 

(FDR) as pavement reconstruction method. FDR will reduce the amount of excavation required to reconstruct 

these roads and typically will see an improvement in overall product for similar or even reduced cost 

compared to traditional construction methods. Where FDR may not be as beneficial is if there is a large 

presence of underground and shallow utilities within the project. If existing utilities are too shallow, it may 

not be possible to run the FDR equipment over the top of the pavement within this area. This will need to be 

evaluated in design. 

 

This project is Class 2 Replacement or Reconstruction project and would be Categorically Exempt under 

CEQA.  The City will prepare the CEQA CE for the project.  If the City is successful in securing Federal funds, 

NEPA compliance would be needed. Additional scope will be needed in the next phase of work to assist the 

City coordinate NEPA compliance with Caltrans. 

 

Mark Thomas recommends submitting a grant application for State Local Partnership Program (LPP), Federal 

Active Transportation Program (ATP), Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG), and for Congestion 

Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds.  Call for projects from the California Transportation Commission 

(CTC) for sources are expected in Q1 and Q2 of 2024; selected projects would be announced in December 

2024.  Funds would be programmed for FY 25/26; so bidding for construction would need to occur between 

July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 for LPP funds and October 1, 2025 to September 30, 2026 for ATP, STBG, and 

CMAQ funds.   

 

The City Local Match obligation to the associated grants are as follows: 

- 50% local match for LPP 

- 0% local match for ATP 

- 11.47% local match for STBG and CMAQ 

 

The following the scope gets the project through preliminary engineering (30% design level), public 

outreach, and grant applications.  Results of the grant applications may require environmental services not 

currently included in the scope.   

 

The City may decide to deliver the project in segments.  Mark Thomas will provide the City timelines of 

project delivery based on findings from the 30% design level of the segment(s) selected. 

 

After City selection of the pavement rehabilitation strategy and results of the grant applications, the Mark 

Thomas team will submit a scope and fee for future Final Design services and potentially additional 

environmental services. 

 

  



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 4 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 5 

 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

TASK 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION 

Task 1.1. Project Management 
Mark Thomas’ Project Manager will plan, organize, direct and monitor project work activities and 

resources, in accordance with the contracted scope, schedule and budget. This task includes 

performing ongoing general project management with the client, subconsultants and stakeholders, 

including preparing contract paperwork, memos, letters and e-mail, making phone calls and 

maintaining project files. This activity commences with receiving the Notice to Proceed, continues 

through submittal of the final key project deliverables, and concludes when the project is advertised 

for construction.   

Task 1.2. Meetings 
The project will involve various meetings to keep the project "on-track". This work includes 

preparation of the meeting agenda in consultation with the City's Project Manager, arrangement of 

meeting participants, and preparation and distribution of approved meeting minutes, including recap 

of actions to be taken prior to the next meeting.  

Task 1.2.1. Project Development Team Meetings 

The Project Development Team (PDT) will include the design team, City staff and consultants, and 

key stakeholders. We will begin with a project kickoff meeting to ensure mutual understanding of the 

intended purposes, objectives, milestones, and deliverables of the project. At the project kickoff 

meeting, Mark Thomas will distribute a master Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule as a draft for 

review by the PDT. The draft CPM schedule will then be updated using comments received from the 

PDT. In addition, the CPM schedule will be updated at major project milestones and will be prepared 

using Microsoft Project software. Thereafter, PDT meetings will generally be held centered on or near 

key project milestones. 

 

This scope assumes a total of 10 PDT meetings. 

Task 1.2.2. Council Meetings 

Based on our experience, our proposed work-plan includes attendance and preparation of 

presentation materials for two (2) City council meetings.  



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 6 

 

Task 1.3. Agency and Stakeholder Coordination 
This task will include ongoing agency coordination, including coordination with the City and other 

project stakeholders.   

Task 1.4. Funding Assistance/Grant Applications 
Mark Thomas will prepare two (2) grant funding applications for the City. It is anticipated at this time 

that the grant applications will include one (1) Local Partnership Program (LPP) application and one 

(1) Active Transportation Program (ATP) application. Mark Thomas will prepare grant narrative 

responses and supporting graphics and maps. We will develop letter of support templates and 

coordinate with stakeholders to obtain signed letters. We will also prepare a California Benefit/Cost 

Analysis model using the Caltrans-developed MS Excel tool. 

Task 1.5. Public Outreach 
Port City (PCMS), a subconsultant to Mark Thomas, recommends a program for public outreach 

that incorporates these primary activities: stakeholder identification and development of a 

database, and public meetings. They will prepare reports of public outreach and involvement 

activities that will include careful, detailed summary reports of preparations for and implementation 

of the public meetings and listings of community concerns and issues. 

 

IDENTIFICATION OF STAKEHOLDERS 

PCMS will work with the City of Turlock PIO and the Project Team to identify a geographic area of 

interest to the project. PCMS will research and develop a stakeholder database, which will be updated 

throughout the project with names from the public meeting sign-ins; information from the project 

team; and from telephone, e-mail and personal contacts.  Below is a list of stakeholders that PCMS 

will develop:  

• City of Turlock elected officials, and other pertinent elected and appointed officials. 

• Pertinent City staff 

• Residents and property owners nearby  

• Businesses and other establishments  

• Turlock Unified School District (TUSD) 

• Transit providers 

• Groups representing businesses, agriculture, and trucking 

• Civic, community, and environmental groups 

• Emergency responders 

• Utilities 

• Other pertinent local, state and federal agencies and stakeholders 

 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 7 

 

The stakeholder database will include recent Assessor rolls of property owners, will be updated 

regularly or as additions and/or changes occur; and will include notations of stakeholder 

activity/involvement. 

 

PUBLIC MEETINGS  

In total four (4) public meetings will be held: one public meeting after the 30% schematic concept for 

the corridor; and as a future scope, three additional public meetings (one for each of the three PS&E 

packages) will be proposed following the 60% design. All meetings will be held at a facility near the 

project and will be designed to provide information to the community about the positive aspects of 

the project and to solicit feedback.  

 

PCMS will schedule the public meeting; make all site arrangements; compose, design, and issue 

meeting notices to the stakeholder database; prepare and place advertising in local media; and 

prepare and send news releases to mainstream and alternative news media, after obtaining prior 

approval of the City and the project team manager.  

 

PCMS will also prepare agendas, sign-in sheets, comment sheets, signage, and other print materials; 

facilitate meeting proceedings; assist with preparing exhibits to illustrate concepts and plan elements; 

provide refreshments; provide Spanish-language translation; and record public comments/assist with 

appropriate responses.  

 

Preparation for each public meeting includes a “dry run” with the City and its Project Team. The dry 

run will review the format and information that will be presented at the public meetings.  

Task 1.6. Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
The Mark Thomas Quality Control (QC) plan consists of established procedures for performing the 

work, including methods for design calculations, establishing appropriate levels of design 

development for intermediate submittals, identification of regularly scheduled plan reviews, design 

checklists, and methods of project documentation. 

  

• The Mark Thomas Quality Assurance (QA) Manager will perform an independent review of the 

project plans and specifications at each submittal for conformance with the Mark Thomas QC 

Plan and the City’s standards of excellence.  

• Designers will use a “review stamp” for each round of changes which will track who 

commented on the plans, who checked the drafting, and when the final product was reviewed 

again by the design engineer.   

TASK 1 DELIVERABLES  

• Meeting Agenda and Minutes 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 8 

 

• CPM Schedule 

• Grant Applications (2) 

• Stakeholder Database 

• Public Information Meeting Notices (first-class mailed notices, news releases, advertising) 

• Public Information Meeting Supplies (agendas, comment sheets, sign-in sheets, a frequently 

asked questions document, signage, exhibits, meeting facilitation, records of public comments 

and responses, meeting summaries, refreshments, and reports) 

TASK 2. PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 

Task 2.1. Project Data Gathering/Site Visit 
Mark Thomas will obtain available as-built and record information from the City, including 

maintenance records, roadway as-builts, right-of-way records, and other pertinent information. Any 

available survey data and site mapping will also be acquired and reviewed. This information will be 

the basis for initial mapping.  

 

A preliminary field review will be conducted to review the project site. The project team will review 

and document existing conditions, geometrics, alignment, and any noticeable utility concerns 

(overhead utility lines, water and gas lines).  

Task 2.2. LiDAR Translation/Extraction/Base Mapping 
Mark Thomas will translate the project from the City’s LiDAR point cloud and extract point cloud 

information to produce topographic surface and planimetric data which will include roadway, 

sidewalks, curb & gutter, striping, and above ground surface visible utilities for the following 

segments. Mark Thomas will deliver a Civil 3D CAD drawing (2022 or newer).  

Task 2.2.1. LiDAR Translation 

Using BAAM.Tech software, Mark Thomas will translate project limits from the City’s point cloud to 

known horizontal and vertical datum.  This task includes field and office work that ties up to 20 

landmark points between LiDAR point cloud and field.  Translated points will include at a minimum 

one (1) base control point (horizontal and vertical) for the project. 

Task 2.2.2. LiDAR Extraction 

Mark Thomas will extract point cloud information for Geer Road from N. Golden State Blvd to Taylor 

Road. 

Task 2.2.3. Task 2.2.3 LiDAR Miscellaneous 

Mark Thomas will review available LiDAR information for future projects as requested by the City.   

This task budgeted the review of 20,000 linear feet of streets.  Mark Thomas will report to the City 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 9 

 

the availability of data requested.  Extraction and translation of data reviewed will be submitted as a 

separate proposal within a future task order. 

Task 2.3. Supplemental Topographic Survey 
NorthStar Engineering Group, Inc. (NSE) will perform Topographic and Right-of-Way Surveys to 

provide design control and Right-of-Way Mapping for the project. We will set horizontal and vertical 

control points for project mapping in accordance with City horizontal and vertical control 

requirements. The horizontal and vertical will be based on the previously establish points utilized for 

the LiDAR surveys. NSE will establish additional control as necessary to collect the topographic 

features. 

 

All surveying and mapping shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Professional Land 

Surveyors Act, Sections 8700 to 8805 Business and Professions Code; the provisions of the California 

Coordinate System, Sections 8801 to 8819 of the Public Resources Code; and any other applicable 

code in the State of California.  

 

In the event the LiDAR data has missing information, field verification will be needed. NSE will perform 

supplemental detailed field surveys of the existing roadway corridor, physical improvements, visible 

utilities, and drainage features obscured from the LiDAR surveys as necessary for the project design. 

Conventional surveys will be performed to supplement and to survey tie-in points to ensure an 

accurate design and smooth transitions for the surface improvements and conforms. All work and 

files will be based on project coordinate control in accordance with City requirements for the 

preparation of documents and maps. 

 

The supplemental design surveys include: 

• Existing pavement and utilities located within the project limits. 

• Existing pavement profile. 

• Existing ground elevations. 

• Drainage features, as necessary, within the project limits. 

• Physical improvements located within the project limits. 

• Visible utilities located within the project limits.  

• Wet utility inverts where accessible. 

• Limits of curb returns at existing road crossings and intersections. 

• Lines of occupation including fences, structures, and apparent encroachments. 

• Utility paint marks painted by USA. 

• Geotechnical boring locations. 

 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 10 

 

The survey data will be downloaded, and points provided for the topographic surveys and provided 

to Client for updating into the existing LiDAR topographic survey drawing.  Protection and 

perpetuation of monuments will be included in the final design (future) scope. 

Task 2.4. Record Data Search 
NSE will perform research of relevant land and survey records at the County to locate available survey 

and land ownership records including parcel maps, subdivision maps, records of survey, corner 

records, and County surveys required for analysis, determination, and delineation of the existing land 

net; the scope assumes the retracement for ten (10) parcels along the corridor to verify existing right-

of-way for sidewalk installation. Research will be limited to public information. NSE will acquire 

preliminary title reports for each of the ten (10) properties. 

Task 2.5. Geotechnical 
Crawford will perform the following scope of services to help with the development of pavement 

rehabilitation strategies taking into consideration the current thickness of the existing pavement 

section, desired traffic index and design life, presence of utilities and driveways, cost, and schedule. 

Crawford will obtain a City of Turlock encroachment permit for our fieldwork within the public right-

of-way core locations, and schedule traffic control as needed. 

Task 2.5.1. Pavement Condition Assessment 

The portion of Geer Road from E. Taylor Avenue to about E. Monte Vista Avenue appears to be in 

relatively good condition and was sealed in 2016, however the shrinkage cracks have reflected 

through the seal.  The cracks appear to mainly be related to shrinkage cracking and failure areas were 

not initially observed.   

 

South of E. Monte Vista Avenue the pavement is in moderate to moderately poor condition with 

areas that are in good condition and appear to have been improved more recently (like near the E. 

Hawkeye Avenue intersection, within the left northbound lane near Tuolumne Road, and south of E. 

Canal Drive).  This segment of Geer Road shows signs of more severe block cracking that has 

transitioned into alligator cracking (indicating base and subgrade failure). The failures appear mainly 

within the wheel paths and around utility trenches and manholes.  It does appear that some 

delamination of the previous overlay is occurring, perhaps due to improper tack coating.   

 

In general, Geer Road north of E. Monte Vista appears to be a good candidate for a slurry seal 

(perhaps with rubber to better resist reflective cracking) but upon pavement coring the existing traffic 

index will be compared to the design traffic index.  Geer Road south of E. Monte Vista Avenue appears 

to be a good candidate for mill and overlay with dig outs where base and subgrade failures have 

occurred, provided that the existing section is thick enough to generally meet the traffic 

index/loading.  Portions of Geer Road (from roughly 350’ south of W. Springer Drive to Taylor Road, 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 11 

 

and the northbound lanes of Geer Road from roughly 500’ south of Fullerton Drive to E. Christoffersen 

Parkway) are within an assessment district.  These areas will be studied with the project; but funding 

source for improvements will be decided later in the design phase. 

 

Crawford will walk the alignment noting the condition of the pavement, including general notes about 

transverse and longitudinal cracking, rutting, and failure areas (alligator cracking).  Crawford will note 

(on an aerial map or provided plan) the location and general size of the failure locations and provide 

this information to the design team for cost estimating purposes of dig out/repair locations.   

Task 2.5.2. Pavement Coring & R Value Testing 

To measure the existing structural pavement sections (HMA and AB), Crawford will perform pavement 

cores across all lanes of Geer Road at intervals of about 1,000 linear feet (up to 30 total cores).  An 

Engineer/Geologist will direct the coring and sampling. At each core location, Crawford will use a 

diamond tipped core bit 4 to 6 inches in diameter to core through the existing pavement. The existing 

pavement sections (HMA and AB) will be measured, and subgrade samples will be retrieved for R-

value testing.   

 

Native sampling may fluctuate depending on soil conditions encountered at the time of work.  Not 

all material may be suitable for testing (such as hard pan or backfill material).  Crawford will provide 

appropriate testing for design purposes based on what it is encountered in the field.    

 

Cores will be backfilled with sand and topped with dyed black quick setting concrete to match existing 

road. Hot mix asphalt patching is not included in our scope of services since the road is anticipated 

to rehabilitated soon.  We will work with the City of Turlock encroachment permit department on the 

traffic control requirements; however, we expect traffic control to consist of road work ahead signs, 

lane shifts, and lane closures without flaggers. 

 

Samples of the subgrade soil will be testing to determine the R Value for our pavement rehabilitation 

design. 

Task 2.5.3. Engineering Analysis 

Following the results of our fieldwork and R-value testing, Crawford will perform engineering analyses 

to determine the following: 

• Current traffic index based on the results of the cores, assigned gravel factors for the in place 

materials, and thickness of the existing pavement section.   

• New pavement section thicknesses based on the desired traffic index (provided by Mark 

Thomas) for comparison purposes only.  

• Various pavement rehabilitation options for Geer Road including mill and overlay, slurry seal, 

full depth reclamation, including dig outs with full depth HMA.  These options will consider 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 12 

 

the design traffic index and a reduced traffic index for comparisons by the City and the Design 

Team (typically comparing 10 and 20 year design).   

Task 2.5.4. Pavement Design Report 

Crawford will prepare a report containing: 

• Project description and scope of services; 

• Historical geotechnical and maintenance information (if available); 

• Subgrade soil conditions; 

• Pavement condition; 

• Results of our pavement coring, presence of overlays and fabric, and current traffic index; 

• R-value test results; 

• New pavement section recommendations for comparison purposes based on the traffic index 

provided by the Design Team; 

• Rehabilitation options including mill and overlay with dig outs, slurry seal, full depth 

reclamation, and full depth HMA section for both the desired traffic index and a reduced 

design life.  The rehabilitation options will likely be broken out along similar segments of Geer 

Road.   

• Vicinity map, site plan, dig out map(s), core logs, and core photos. 

Under this task, Crawford will update the PCI of the roadway segments designed by Mark Thomas 

for this task order. Crawford will update the PCI’s within the City’s Streetsaver. 

Task 2.6. Environmental 
At this time, the project is funded locally and is Categorically Exempt. The City will be responsible for 

filing the exemption.  In the event that the City is successful securing Federal funds for construction, 

as a future task, Mark Thomas will submit to the City the scope and fee needed to secure a NEPA 

Categorical Exclusion. 

Task 2.7. Utility Coordination 
Mark Thomas will provide utility coordination services which will be conducted in general 

conformance with Caltrans' Local Assistance and Utility Relocation Manuals. It is assumed that this 

project will not have any utility relocations but if it is necessary the Mark Thomas team will follow the 

Utility A-B-C process: 

• Utility "A" Letter - A USA list is generated that shows all possible utility companies located 

within the project limits. A letter is sent to the respective utility company informing them about 

the project and asking them for as-built mapping and liability claims within the project area. 

• Utility Kick-Off Meeting - Once 30% design is complete, a utility kick-off meeting is held with 

the utility companies to discuss project impacts. At the meeting, a preferred approach is 

recommended to the utility companies and a consensus is reached regarding various items 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 13 

 

including clear recovery zone requirements, overhang easements and vertical clearance 

requirements over underground utilities. 

• Utility "B" Letter – As future phase, “B” Letter is issued to the utility companies with 60% plans 

that show utility impacts. If required, the utility companies are instructed to begin relocation 

plans at this time. Frequent follow ups with utility companies are required from this point 

forward.  

• Utility "C" Letter (Notice to Owner) – For this project, it is assumed that utility relocation are 

not required.  In a future phase, the notice to owner letter informs the company the anticipated 

construction schedule.  

As part of conducting utility mapping, Mark Thomas will determine horizontal location of existing 

utilities and prepare a list of those utilities which have a potential for physical conflicts with proposed 

improvements.  If additional effort is required to relocate utilities, Mark Thomas will submit a request 

for additional scope and authorization prior to proceeding. 

 

Task 2.8. 30% Schematic Concept 
Mark Thomas will prepare a strip map exhibit which shows the proposed work for review and 

comment by the City. The exhibit will show the proposed pavement strategy, limits of curb and gutter 

reconstruction, locations of curb ramp and driveway reconstructions, locations for sidewalk gap 

closures and signage and striping. Designs will be in accordance with Caltrans design standards, CA 

MUTCD guidelines, and the City's current design standards. This submittal will also include a 

preliminary construction cost estimate for the work proposed along the whole corridor. 

TASK 2 DELIVERABLES  

• Civil 3D CAD Surface (2015 or newer) 

• Civil 3D CAD Planimetrics Base Map Drawing (2015 or newer) 

• Draft Pavement Design Report 

• Final Pavement Design Report 

• Draft CE Document (electronic version) 

• Final CE Document (electronic version) 

• Utility A Letters 

• 30% Schematic Concept 

ASSUMPTIONS 

This scope of work has been prepared using the following assumptions: 

• This scope is only for 30% design level plans. 

• AutoCAD Civil 3D 2022 will be used to produce the contract plans for this project. 

• City of Turlock will accommodate no cost encroachment permits. 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 14 

 

• Utility potholing is not included in this scope of work. 

• The scope assumes receipt of all approved conceptual plans, project-related information, base 

maps, photographs, and previous environmental documentation at the start of the project. 

• The City will provide any maintenance and improvement documents for Geer Road, if available. 

This should include any as-built information for utilities (i.e. storm drain, sewer, water, etc.). 

  



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 17 

       Key Staff

QA/QC

Ken Doty, PE, QSD 

CITY OF TURLOCK

Fred Pezeshk, PE

PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE / 
PROJECT MANAGER

Ed Noriega, PE 

PROJECT STAFF

CIVIL SUPPORT TEAM
Alyssa Nishikawa, EIT

Gabriela Garcia 

FUNDING
Ryan Bissegger  

SURVEY LEAD
Sam McIntyre, PLS 

ENVIRONMENTAL
(Optional Services)

FirstCarbon Solutions
Mary Bean

Philip Ault, MS, LEED AP

PUBLIC OUTREACH
Port City

Dan Natividad 

GEOTECHNICAL
Crawford & Associates

Benjamin Crawford, PE, GE 
Shawn Leyva, PE

FIELD SURVEY
NorthStar Engineering Group

Kent Hysell, LS
Nikki Cannella, LS

Rien Groenewoud, LS

R E S P O N S I B L E  P E R S O N N E L
Our in-house team offers extensive resources and experience in transportation 
planning/design, urban design/streetscape, corridor studies, structures, and 
surveys in order to provide the City an in-depth understanding of best design 
practices.

Organization Chart
We have selected a team of highly qualified firms and individuals that have experience working on similar projects. Mark 
Thomas understands the importance of assembling a team who will be available to support the City through the duration 
of this project. When assigning the members of this team, we took a close look at our staff’s current commitments to 
ensure that each team member is dedicated and available to meet the City’s project needs.

LEAD ENGINEER

Jessica Regier, EIT 

15



CITY OF TURLOCK
Proposal for 5-Year Road Program CIP Projects

KEY STAFF

      Geer Road - Golden State Blvd to Taylor Road



   

Ed has 27 years of experience in municipal and transportation engineering. Ed manages the design effort from our Fresno 
office. He has served as a project manager and project engineer on many projects including bridges, local roadway and 
streetscape improvements, highway interchanges and railroad grade separations. Ed has experience in all aspects of 
project development from inception (PSR), to approval (PA/ED), through to design (PS&E). 

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

CROWS LANDING CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, 
MODESTO 
Project manager responsible for PS&E services to 
construct median curb, curb gutter and sidewalk, and 
various other roadway improvements along a 1-mile 
stretch of Crows Landing Road. The project area contains 
a five-lane arterial corridor that has grown to 
accommodate businesses and serves as access to 
residential communities. This mixture of land use 
generates a large amount of non-motorized 
transportation, including biking and walking, that are 
commonly seen along the corridor. 

GOLDEN STATE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, FRESNO  
Project manager overseeing the design and leading 
coordination efforts for improvements to 12.9 miles of 
Golden State Boulevard. The goals of the project are to 
revitalize and improve the corridor and stimulate 
economic development. The project includes 
reconfiguring medians, turn pockets, improvements to at-
grade UPRR crossings, and intersection modifications to 
improve traffic safety and operations, as well as extensive 
pavement rehabilitation. The project also includes the 
addition of active transportation elements including Class I 
path, Class II bike lanes, Class IV bikeways, and other 
innovative treatments. The project includes extensive 
coordination with the cities of Fowler, Selma, and 
Kingsburg; FresnoCOG; Fresno County; UPRR; and utilities. 

CMAQ INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, CERES 
Project manager responsible for delivery of PS&E 
documents and environmental clearance for this 
intersection signalization and roadway widening project 
that is CMAQ-funded. The project also required 
replacement of the Crows Landing Road bridge over the 

Turlock Irrigation District with a culvert. The existing 
intersection is all-way stop controlled with high traffic 
congestion during peak hours. The intersection also has 
high truck volumes, resulting in pavement distress at the 
intersections. The general scope of improvements include 
roadway widening, intersection modification, pavement 
rehabilitation, utility coordination and relocation, right-of-
way acquisition, public outreach, and Caltrans Local 
Assistance coordination. 

CMAQ INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, STANISLAUS 
COUNTY 
Project manager responsible for PS&E documents, right-
of-way acquisition, utility relocations, and public outreach 
for four intersection signalization projects funded by 
CMAQ funds. Improvements associated with the 
intersections include the replacement of an existing 
irrigation culvert, modification of an existing at-grade 
railroad crossing, and installation of turn pockets to 
decrease peak hour traffic. Responsibilities include 
geometric design, subconsultant coordination, right-of-
way acquisition, and coordination with CPUC and BNSF. 

SEVENTH STREET BRIDGE OVER TUOLUMNE RIVER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT, MODESTO 
Project manager for preparation of PS&E documents to 
replace the existing Seventh Street bridge that was built in 
1916 in Stanislaus County. Project improvements will 
include safety improvements for motorists, pedestrians, 
and bicyclists, curb ramps, raised center median/refuge, 
street lighting, and roadway resurfacing. With the 
modifications of the intersections, there were numerous 
drainage improvements that were implemented into the 
project including drainage inlets, pipes, and a drainage 
basin. 

 

 ED NORIEGA, PE 
PROJECT MANAGER 
EDUCATION 
BS in Civil Engineering, University of Toledo, Ohio, 1994 

REGISTRATION 
CA PE C61555 
 

 



   

Jessica has 9 years of experience in transportation engineering. She provides assistance on a variety of local roadway and 
highway improvement projects, providing geometric design, drainage design, hydraulics, hydrology, grading, ADA 
compliance, and collision data analysis. Her technical skills include the use of design software such as AutoCAD Civil 3D, 
AutoCAD, MicroStation, Hydraflow, and HEC-RAS. 

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

CROWS LANDING CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, 
STANISLAUS COUNTY 
Design engineer responsible for PS&E services to construct 
median curb, curb gutter and sidewalk, and various other 
roadway improvements along a 1-mile stretch of Crows 
Landing Road. The project area contains a five-lane 
arterial corridor that has grown to accommodate 
businesses and serves as access to residential 
communities. This mixture of land use generates a large 
amount of nonmotorized transportation, including biking 
and walking, that are commonly seen along the corridor. 

GOLDEN STATE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, FRESNO 
COUNTY 
Design engineer responsible for the design and 
coordination efforts for improvements to 12.9 miles of 
Golden State Boulevard. The goals of the project are to 
revitalize and improve the corridor and stimulate 
economic development. The project includes 
reconfiguring medians, turn pockets, improvements to at-
grade UPRR crossings, and intersection modifications to 
improve traffic safety and operations, as well as extensive 
pavement rehabilitation. The project also includes the 
addition of active transportation elements including Class I 
path, Class II bike lanes, Class IV bikeways, and other 
innovative treatments. The project includes extensive 
coordination with the cities of Fowler, Selma, and 
Kingsburg; FresnoCOG; Fresno County; UPRR; and utilities. 

SR 99/VETERANS BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE AND 
GRADE SEPARATION, FRESNO  
Design engineer for this multi-agency, multi-discipline $110 
million transportation project. Responsible for overseeing 
the preparation of plans, specifications, and estimate for 
this 2.5-mile roadway, new interchange and railroad grade 

separated crossing. Responsible for assistance with project 
elements including design, right of way acquisition, and 
utility relocation. Coordinated with the City, UPRR, CAHSR, 
CPUC, Caltrans, and utility companies. 

GRANGER NEIGHBORHOOD PAVEMENT 
REHABILITATION PROJECT, MODESTO 
Design engineer for PS&E documents for the City of 
Modesto to rehabilitate 2.7 miles of pavement within the 
area between Tully Road and McHenry Avenue (State 
Route 108). Other improvements that have been identified 
along the corridor include signage and striping, ramp ADA 
compliance upgrades, and the installation of vehicle 
detection upgrades at the intersection of Granger and 
College Avenue. A total of 79 curb ramps have been 
identified within the project limits as non-compliant, 
needing to be reconstructed/rehabilitated. 

NEES AVENUE OVERLAY FROM FIRST TO MILLBROOK, 
FRESNO 
Design engineer responsible for the design and 
construction documents necessary to accomplish the City’s 
improvements to Nees Avenue. The City is planning on 
reconstructing and widening west-bound Nees Avenue 
and converting it from one-lane to two-lane in order to 
improve traffic operations, improve drainage, and reduce 
vehicle delays and congestion along the corridor. he 
improvements will include the rehabilitation of the existing 
asphalt pavement along the west bound lane the 
installation of curb, gutter, curb returns, and sidewalk; 
street lighting along the north side of Nees Avenue; and 
modifications to traffic signal components and 
appurtenances at the intersection of Nees Avenue and 
Minnewawa Avenue. 

 

 JESSICA REGIER, EIT 
CIVIL LEAD 
EDUCATION 
BS in Civil Engineering, California State University, Fresno, 2015 

REGISTRATION 
CA EIT 155004 

 



   

Sam has 14 years of experience as a survey manager, project surveyor, survey technician and field crew member. He has 
experience in topographic and control surveys, the preparation of legal descriptions and plats for right-of-way and 
easement acquisitions, as well as the preparation of field staking notes. Sam has prepared and delivered several Records of 
Surveys, and Corner Records for municipalities and government agencies across the state. He has assisted in the 
completion of GPS and conventional control surveys in support of aerial topographic mapping, boundary and construction 
work. He has experience in field surveys which include topographic, control, and construction staking. 

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

ON-CALL SURVEYING SERVICES, SACRAMENTO 
Project surveyor for construction staking services for the 
Land Park Water Main Replacement Project. The project 
consisted of staking approximately 44,500 linear feet of 
water main, 200 tees, bends, blow offs, connection points 
and 80 fire hydrants. Also ran the Memorial Auditorium 
survey under the on-call. This required survey of the block 
and the building for improvements to allow for the 
Sacramento Community Theatre performances to shift to 
the Auditorium during construction. 

GOLDEN STATE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, FRESNO 
Survey manager surveyor responsible for topographic 
surveys, retracement mapping, and preparing plats and 
descriptions for the project. High-definition mobile LiDAR 
scanning supplemented with field surveys was utilized to 
provide design level topographic surveys for final design 
for this 13-mile corridor. 

NORTH STOCKTON RAILROAD GRADE SEPARATIONS 
AND BRIDGE REPLACEMENTS PS&E, STOCKTON 
Surveyor assisted in the preparation and review of new 
easements and right-of-way dedications to the City of 
Stockton for four railroad grade separation crossings over 
UPRR and two bridge replacements in the North Stockton 
area. 

ROSEVILLE PARKWAY EXTENSION, ROSEVILLE 
Surveyor providing surveying services for the preparation 
of environmental studies, preliminary and final engineering 
for the Roseville Parkway Extension. The extension will be a 
new four lane bridge over Industrial Avenue and the Union 

Pacific Railroad with associated road segments to connect 
existing Roseville Parkway between Foothills Boulevard 
and Washington Boulevard. Additional tasks will include 
utility coordination, construction plans, PS&E, bid 
documents, and construction support. 

ON-SYSTEM ROAD REHABILITATION, PARADISE 
Survey manager for monument preservation and field 
surveying services. Due to the ongoing recovery effort and 
debris removal operations within the Town of Paradise 
and Butte County, Paradise’s roadway infrastructure has 
sustained heavy damage in the wake of the Camp Fire. 
Responsible for existing right-of-way delineation for road 
rehabilitation, design level topographic mapping, and 
identifying potential exiting monuments in danger of 
being disturbed or destroyed during construction. 

CROWS LANDING CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS, 
MODESTO 
Survey manager responsible for topographic surveys, 
retracement mapping, and preparing plats and 
descriptions for the project. High-definition mobile LiDAR 
scanning supplemented with field surveys was utilized to 
provide design level topographic surveys for final design 
for this 1.5-mile pavement rehabilitation project. 

 

 

 SAM MCINTYRE, PLS 
SURVEY LEAD 
EDUCATION 
BS in Geomatics Engineering, California State University, Fresno, 2014 

REGISTRATION 
CA PLS 9313 
 

 



   

Ryan has 18 years of experience in the engineering industry. He has held various roles including technical editor, proposal 
writer, and business development. Ryan has become Mark Thomas’ funding expert. He is very knowledgeable of federal 
and state funding sources including the Active Transportation Program (ATP), Highway Safety Improvement Program 
(HSIP), and the new Senate Bill (SB 1) programs. He tracks the programs and is knowledgeable of call for project schedules. 
He has provided funding recommendations to agencies to pursue in order to implement improvements. Ryan has 
experience developing and reviewing grant applications. His understanding of the funding programs and experience 
developing proposals has been leveraged in the preparation of competitive grants. 

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

AS NEEDED SUPPORT SERVICES, PARADISE 
Task order manager responsible for preparation of four 
ATP Cycle 5 grant applications. The projects are for the 
addition of Class I paths and sidewalk gap closures on 
significant corridors in the Town. Grant writing and 
funding efforts leveraged the FWHA-funded pavement 
rehabilitation efforts for the Camp Fire recovery. 
Responsibilities included reviewing and editing narratives 
to highlight wildfire recovery efforts, preparation of 
funding plans, and review of concept plans and estimates. 

ON-CALL GRANT WRITING, SACRAMENTO 
Project manager for on-call grant writing support for 
Sacramento County Department of Transportation. 
Contract has included the preparation of one SACOG 
Community Design, two SACOG Regional Program, one 
SB-1 LPP, and one ATP application. Responsibilities 
included leading the development of the LPP and ATP 
application narratives, graphic exhibits, and Cal B/C model 
and coordinating with Stakeholders. Also provided peer 
review for the three SACOG grant applications. 

HSIP CYCLE 10 GRANT WRITING, STOCKTON 
Project manager for the preparation of two HSIP Cycle 10 
grant applications. Projects included the addition of 
pedestrian hybrid beacons (HAWKs) throughout South 
Stockton to enhance pedestrian safety and mobility and 
guardrail set-aside to replace damaged guardrail locations 
throughout the jurisdiction. Responsibilities included 
review of grant narratives, letters of support, graphics and 
exhibits, and plans and estimates. 

BROADWAY COMPLETE STREET IMPROVEMENTS, 
SACRAMENTO 
Lead grant writer for the ATP Cycle 4 application for the 
second phase of this road diet and bicycle/pedestrian 
project. The project will reduce the roadway from four to 
three lanes, install Class II buffered bike lanes, crosswalks, 
and ADA compliant curb ramps. Responsibilities included 
leading the preparation of the narrative and coordinating 
with third party agencies for documentation. 

PIONEER ROAD WIDENING PROJECT - PHASE 1, LOS 
BANOS 
Project funding and financing lead for this regionally 
significant complete street project to widen Pioneer Road. 
The project will provide an approximately 6.5 mile four-
lane divided arterial roadway with a Class I regional path 
and have seven signalized intersections, including two with 
SR 152 and one with SR 165. In addition to design, services 
also include evaluating funding sources, preparing grant 
applications, preparing funding allocation packages, and 
coordination with MCAG, Caltrans, and the CTC. 
Responsibilities include developing a funding/financing 
plan, preparing ATP Cycle 5 grant, and preparing LPP 
Formula funding allocations and Request for Authorization 
for federal funds. 

 

 RYAN BISSEGGER 
FUNDING LEAD 
EDUCATION 
Training in Funding and Programming Transportation Projects in CA, UC Berkeley Technology Transfer, 
2018 
BA in International Business, Westminster College, 2004 

 



Benjamin D. Crawford, PE, GE  
Principal Geotechnical Engineer   
Ben Crawford is the Founder and President of Crawford & Associates, Inc. He has managed 
complex projects throughout Northern California, including bridges, roadways, pavement 
rehabilitation, and transportation projects. Ben’s experience includes providing geotechnical 
recommendations for water, wastewater, storm drainage, and pipeline projects, including 
associated ancillary structures, foundations, and pavement/flatwork. Ben specializes in 
pavement rehabilitation projects and has stayed involved in the development and 
implementation of alternative pavement rehabilitation strategies. 

 
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 
RSTP Phase J and Phase K Projects, Stanislaus County, CA 
Crawford provided pavement rehabilitation services for five Stanislaus County Road segments 
that have significantly deteriorated. County roads are difficult to address due to the lack of 
aggregate base and variability in asphalt concrete thickness and quality. Crawford performed 
pavement coring and sampling, laboratory testing, and analysis. Pavement recommendations 
for the road segments included full replacement, cold in-place recycling, and Full Depth 
Reclamation. 

Santa Fe Avenue and Geer Road Intersection Project, Stanislaus County, CA 
The project includes roadway widening along Geer Road and Santa Fe Avenue. Proposed 
improvements for the project include a new traffic signal at the intersection; new pavement 
sections and/or pavement rehabilitation, and above ground utility realignments. Crawford 
prepared a Pavement Design Report for the project, which included a review of existing site 
geology and soil survey data. Crawford completed pavement cores and borings to evaluate 
existing pavement sections and subgrade soils. Based on the analysis, Crawford provided 
pavement recommendations, including new and recycled HMA overlay options; Full Depth 
Recycle; and remove and replace structural pavement sections. Provided grading and 
earthwork recommendations and Infiltration Test Data. Crawford also completed 
environmental engineering services to include an Initial Site Assessment. 

Old Harlan Road and Harlan Road Pavement Rehabilitation, Lathrop, CA 
Completed a Pavement Design Memo to provide rehabilitation options for two roadway 
segments. Performed pavement coring and subsurface soil sampling, R-value testing, and 
Full Depth Reclamation mix design and calculations. The Memo presented Full Depth 
Reclamation and construction recommendations. 

Claribel Road at Roselle Avenue Intersection Project, Stanislaus County, CA 
The purpose of the project is to increase the safety, operational conditions and improve air 
quality and will likely include improvements, including a traffic signal at the intersection, 
expand county right-of-way along each approach and dedicated turns lanes, new pavement 
sections and pavement rehabilitation, above ground utility realignments, and storm drainage 
improvements. Ben was the Principal Geotechnical Engineer for the project and prepared a 
Geotechnical Design Report, which included analyzing subsurface and surface conditions by 
collecting soil and subgrade samples for laboratory testing; and determined the condition of 
existing pavement by walking the roadway segments. Provided pavement recommendations, 
which included overlay options, full depth recycle recommendations, and new pavement 
sections for areas that required removal and replacement of asphalt. Also determined 
infiltration rates and soil corrosivity and provided recommendations for grading and 
earthwork. 

Granger Neighborhood Pavement Rehabilitation Project, Modesto, CA 
Principal Geotechnical Engineer in charge of a Draft Pavement Memo to present the results 
of pavement coring and R-value testing. The project includes pavement rehabilitation, new 
signage, replacement striping, ADA upgrades, improved storm drainage, and traffic 
modifications. Crawford cored the pavement at 28 locations along 10 streets in the Granger 
Neighborhood to measure the existing asphalt concrete and aggregate base section 
thicknesses, collected subgrade samples for R-value testing, and provided core results. The 
City of Modesto will be utilizing our core results to develop pavement section 
recommendations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDUCATION 
B.S. Civil Engineering, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo, 
2002 

REGISTRATIONS 
Civil Engineer, CA C68457 

Geotechnical Engineer, CA 
GE2861 

ORGANIZATIONS 
• Geoprofessional Business 

Association  

• American Public Works 
Association  

• Modesto Engineers Club 

• American Council of 
Engineering Companies  

• County Engineers 
Association of California 

EXPERIENCE 
At Crawford: 9 years 

Total: 19 years 

LOCATION 
Sacramento, CA 

AVAILABILITY 
45% 



5-YEAR ROAD PROGRAM CIP PROJECTS
City of Turlock: Public Works Department Engineering Division

MARK THOMAS
Page 57

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
15+ 
 
EDUCATION 
♦ B.S., Physiology, University of 

California, Davis 
♦ M.B.A., University of the 

Pacific 
 
AVAILABILITY 

30% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dan Natividad, Owner & Project Manager 
 
Dan Natividad has extensive experience in marketing, corporate strategy, and 
public relations with expertise in marketing plan development & execution, 
digital marketing, public communications, and outreach. At Port City 
Marketing, Dan manages transportation and public sector projects and has 
collaborated with Judith Buethe Communications on numerous transportation, 
construction, and community outreach projects. Prior to Port City, Dan worked 
at Blue Shield of California, as the Strategist for Integrated Marketing and 
Client Experience, responsible for launching Blue Shield’s successful Health 
Exchange Product. Dan also worked at Health Plan of San Joaquin, responsible 
for new business development including Medi-Cal outreach and new product 
development. 
 
Project Experience 
Public Outreach and Public Participation Programs 
♦ State Route 120/Union Road Interchange Improvement Project 

(Caltrans, City of Manteca) - Development and implementation of public 
information and outreach programs, organized public meetings, assist with 
direct mail campaigns, advertising, media relations, cross-cultural 
communications, stakeholder identification, email and telephone Hotlines. 

♦ Hickman Road over Tuolumne River Bridge (Stanislaus County) - 
Development and implementation of public information and outreach 
programs, organized public meetings, assist with direct mail campaigns, 
advertising, media relations, cross-cultural communications, stakeholder 
identification, email and telephone Hotlines. 

♦ 5 Mile Slough/5 Mile Creek (City of Stockton) - Development and 
implementation of public information and outreach programs, organized 
public meetings, assist with direct mail campaigns, advertising, media 
relations, cross-cultural communications, stakeholder identification, 
website, email and telephone Hotlines. 

♦ Thornton Road Widening Project Public Relations (City of Stockton) - 
Pre-construction communications and public event management for road-
widening project. Assist Judith Buethe Communications with all aspects of 
public relations including event management, informational mailings, and 
reporting and worked closely with print media and other production 
companies to ensure a successful campaign. 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 23 

 

OUTLINE OF SIMILAR PROJECTS 

PIONEER ROAD WIDENING PROJECT – PSR AND PA-ED  
LOS BANOS 

Mark Thomas is providing engineering and management 

services for this multi-phase project.  This 6.5-mile roadway 

project improves the City’s connectivity and operations for 

multi-modes of transportation across Los Banos. It is a 

regionally significant complete street project that converts 

Pioneer Road to a four-lane divided roadway with Class II bike 

lanes and a Class II multi-use trail. 

- General Plan and Active Transportation Plan 

Implementation 

- Right of Way Acquisition 

- CEQA/NEPA Clearance 

- Public Meetings and City Council Presentations 

- Preliminary and Final Design 

BELLEVUE ROAD REALIGNMENT – PSR  
ATWATER 

Mark Thomas is developing a Project Study Report (PSR) for a 

2-mile roadway realignment that improves operations and 

connectivity for the City of Atwater. To make right of way 

acquisition progress smoothly, Mark Thomas has coordinate the 

project with adjacent parcels including Dole International. 

- General Plan and Active Transportation Plan 

Implementation 

- Access Management 

- Right of Way Acquisition Estimates 

- CEQA/NEPA Scoping 

- Preliminary Design 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 24 

 

BROADWAY COMPLETE STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
SACRAMENTO 

Mark Thomas provided environmental clearance, right of way acquisition, and final 

design for this road-diet project that delivers bicycle and pedestrian facilities in a 

historic district of Sacramento.  This project improved accessibility and revitalized 

this historic corridor of Sacramento.  Driveway signage during construction was 

included to keep motorists informed of available access. 

- General Plan and Active Transportation Plan Implementation 

- Access Management 

- Public Meetings 

- Preliminary and Final Design 

 

YOSEMITE AVENUE (SR145) MASTER PLAN 
MADERA 

Mark Thomas prepared a master plan that delivers 

connectivity across a State Route 145 in downtown 

Madera while enhancing bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities. Extensive public outreach was required to 

make sure that master plan addressed the bicycle and 

pedestrian needs of the area. 

- Active Transportation Plan Implementation 

- Access Management 

- Public Meetings 

- Council Presentation 

- Preliminary Design 

- Grant Application 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 25 

 

SR 99/VETERANS BLVD INTERCHANGE AND GRADE SEPARATION 
FRESNO 

This multi-phase project delivers a new connection to State Route 99 that 

accommodates full access for development in northwest Fresno. Mark Thomas 

designed and managed the environmental and design phases of the project.  

Extensive public outreach was required for right of way acquisition and utility 

coordination.  Multi-agency coordination (Caltrans, HSR, County, FID, and 

FMFCD) was required for timely approvals. 

- General Plan Implementation and Transportation Plan Implementation 

- Right of Way Acquisition 

- CEQA/NEPA Clearance 

- Public Meetings 

- Preliminary and Final Design 

 

 

 

GRANGER NEIGHBORHOOD PAVEMENT 

REHABILITATION 
MODESTO 

Locally funded project that rehabilitated neighborhood pavement 

in central Modesto. Mark Thomas explored and presented to the 

City pavement rehabilitation options.  Pavement rehabilitation 

options varied from grind and overly to full depth recycling.  

Access to driveways were accommodated by requiring the 

contractor advance coordination with property owners and only 

allowing the driveway construction in halves. 

- Access Management 

- Preliminary and Final Design 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 26 

 

ALPINE PERSHING MENDOCINO BICYCLE-PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 

ATP GRANT APPLICATION 
STOCKTON 

Mark Thomas prepare the grant application that 

secured $7.4 million in environmental planning, 

final design, and construction funds for a 1.7-mile 

corridor with Class II buffered bike lanes and Class 

IV protected bikeways. Our services included 

updating roadway geometry and cost estimates, 

and advising the agency on required right of way 

certification costs. Grant narratives were prepared 

with a focus on low-income communities, mobility 

needs, community engagement history, and 

housing. Mark Thomas also prepared project maps, 

and exhibits, coordinated with the Conservation 

Corps, and obtained letters of support from key 

stakeholders. 

- Grant Application 

- Preliminary Design 

- Right of Way  

LIMONITE GAP CLOSURE LPP GRANT APPLICATION 
EASTVALE 

Mark Thomas prepare the grant application that 

secured $9.4 million for construction funds for multi-

use trail system with grade separated crossings from a 

roadway and creek throughout the cities of Chino and 

Eastvale. Mark Thomas is providing environmental 

clearance and design services to implement the Cities’ 

General and Active Transportation Plans. Extensive 

coordination with stakeholders was performed to 

gather letters of support for the project. 

- General Plan Implementation 

- Active Transportation Plan Implementation 

- CEQA Clearance 

- Public Meetings 

- Preliminary and Final Design 

- Grant Application 

 

  



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 27 

 

PROJECT PROFILES 

CROWS LANDING CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS 
STANISLAUS COUNTY 

Mark Thomas provided civil engineering services for improvements along Crows Landing Road from Hatch Avenue to 

Whitmore Avenue. Crows Landing Road is an arterial roadway in Stanislaus County that connects the cities of Ceres, 

Modesto, Patterson and the community of Crows Landing. The project area contains a five-lane arterial corridor that 

has grown to accommodate businesses and serves as access to residential communities. This mixture of land use 

generates a large amount of nonmotorized transportation, including biking and walking, that are commonly seen along 

the corridor. 

This HSIP funded, 1.25-mile project enhanced the corridor to make it bicyclist and pedestrian friendly. The project 

includes several safety improvements such as installation of flashing beacons at crosswalks, curb ramps, raised center 

median/refuge, street lighting, buffered bike lanes, and signal modifications at select intersections. For this high-volume 

roadway, mobile high-definition LiDAR scanning was used to survey the corridor. Mark Thomas explored and presented 

several pavement rehabilitation methods to the County to help select the most appropriate solution to improvement 

the pavement. To ensure access to businesses, Mark Thomas provide instructions within the project specification that 

limited driveway closure and allowed the public to continue to access during business hours. Mark Thomas presented 

at two community meetings and several business stakeholder meetings to help the community understand the project 

improvements. 

Key Staff: 

Ed Noriega – Project Manager 

Jessica Regier – Project Engineer 

Ben Crawford (Crawford & Associates) - Geotechnical 

Client Contact:  

Chris Brady, Deputy Director Stanislaus County 

(209) 525-4184 

bradyc@stancounty.com     



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 28 

 

GOLDEN STATE CORRIDOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 
FRESNO COUNTY 

Mark Thomas is responsible for the managing and designing of capital improvements along 13 miles of Golden State 

Boulevard in Fresno County. The project, funded through Fresno County’s Measure C and the Local Partnership 

Program, aims to improve traffic safety and stimulate local economic development along this stretch of the former SR 

99. The project includes bicycle and pedestrian improvements, extensive pavement rehabilitation, installation of 

landscaped median, and improvements to at-grade UPRR crossings. Mark Thomas presented at several public meetings 

and City Council meetings to keep the community informed. 

Constructing continuous bicycle and pedestrian facilities is a major component of the project. Buffered Class II bike 

lanes consistent with the region’s active transportation plan are included with the project. As a cost-saving alternative 

to conventional survey methods, final PS&E survey data was collected using mobile LIDAR scanning along the entire 

corridor. Access for businesses along the corridor was accommodated with the pavement rehabilitation strategy 

selected and ensured with project specifications that allowed access during business hours.  

Key Staff: 

Ed Noriega – Project Manager 

Jessica Regier – Project Engineer 

Sam McIntyre – Project Surveyor 

Ryan Bisseger – LPP Funding Assistance 

Ben Crawford (Crawford & Associates) – Geotechnical 

Client Contact:  

Mohammad Alimi, Division Manager 

(559) 600-4505 

malimi@fresnocountyca.gov 

 



CITY OF TURLOCK 

Geer Road – N. GSB to Taylor Rd 

 

   

 

GEER ROAD (N. GOLDEN STATE BLVD TO TAYLOR RD) 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF TURLOCK 29 

 

KETTLEMAN CITY SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL - SR2S AND SRTS 
KINGS COUNTY 

Kettleman City Elementary School is located west of SR 41 in the southern portion of the Kettleman City residential 

district. Several local, two-lane roadways serve as means of access to the school. Students walked to school on the 

roadway due to the absence of sidewalks. To encourage a safer environment for pedestrian travel, the project proposes 

constructing curb, gutter, and sidewalks in compliance with ADA and county standards. 

Mark Thomas provided engineering services and assistance with environmental clearance to deliver PS&E for 

improvements to this local roadway. Because project improvements are required outside the County’s right-of-way, 

Permission to Enter and Construct Letters were prepared for the County, providing rights to transition project 

improvements onto the adjacent parcels. Additionally, this project was viewed as a safety improvement project with 

Caltrans, making it exempt from CEQA and NEPA requirements. Mark Thomas worked with FirstCarbon Solutions to 

gain approval on the Categorical Exclusion to satisfy NEPA requirements and the Categorical Exception to satisfy CEQA 

requirements. 

Since the project was funded by both the State Safe Routes to School (SR2S) and the Federal Safe Routes to School 

(SRTS) programs, Mark Thomas assisted the County in preparing the documents to meet federal funding objectives. 

Additionally, Mark Thomas assisted the County in coordinating with Caltrans Local Assistance to meet state and federal 

funding goals and took the lead in coordinating with the Caltrans Encroachment Permit Department, Caltrans 

Environmental Department, Division of the State Architect, Kettleman City Community Services District (KCCSD), and 

several utility companies requiring relocations. Mark Thomas also worked with the county to provide public outreach 

services, gaining valuable input from the community on the project improvements. 

Mark Thomas presented the project at two community meetings to keep the public informed. 

Key Staff: 

Ed Noriega – Project Manager 

Jessica Regier – Design Engineer 

Sam McIntyre – Project Surveyor 

Client Contact:  

Dominic Tyburski, Director of Public Works 

(559) 852-2698 

Dominic.Tyburski@co.kings.ca.us 



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 NTP (Assumed) 0 days Mon 8/28/23 Mon 8/28/23

2 Meetings 270 days Mon 9/4/23 Mon 9/16/24

3 Kick-off 0 days Mon 9/4/23 Mon 9/4/23

4 Public Meeting #1 0 days Mon 4/15/24 Mon 4/15/24

5 Public Meeting #2 0 days Mon 9/16/24 Mon 9/16/24

6 Preliminary Engineering 145 days Tue 8/29/23 Mon 3/18/24

7 Data Gathering/Research 2 wks Tue 8/29/23 Mon 9/11/23

8 Lidar Extraction (Translation/Basefiles/Supplemental Topo)10 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 11/20/23

9 Compile Base Maps 2 wks Tue 11/21/23 Mon 12/4/23

10 Complete Base Maps 0 days Mon 12/4/23 Mon 12/4/23

11 Concept Plans 65 days Tue 12/19/23 Mon 3/18/24

12 Prepare 30% Plans 8 wks Tue 12/19/23 Mon 2/12/24

13 Preliminary Cost Estimates 1 wk Tue 2/13/24 Mon 2/19/24

14 City  Review/Comment 4 wks Tue 2/20/24 Mon 3/18/24

15 Approved 30% Plans 0 wks Mon 3/18/24 Mon 3/18/24

16 Geotech 95 days Tue 9/12/23 Mon 1/22/24

17 Prepare Permit 2 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 9/25/23

18 City Approval 2 wks Tue 9/26/23 Mon 10/9/23

19 Field Work and Lab Analysis 6 wks Tue 10/10/23 Mon 11/20/23

20 Geotechnical Investigation Memo 4 wks Tue 11/21/23 Mon 12/18/23

21 City Review 1 wk Tue 12/19/23 Mon 12/25/23

22 Revise Geotechnical Investigation Memo 4 wks Tue 12/26/23 Mon 1/22/24

23 Final Geotechnical Investigation Memo 0 days Mon 1/22/24 Mon 1/22/24

24 Utility Coordination 255 days Tue 9/12/23 Mon 9/2/24

25 Submit Utility "A" Letters 4 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 10/9/23

26 Prepare Conflict Mapping 8 wks Tue 3/19/24 Mon 5/13/24

27 Utility "B" Letters 8 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 7/8/24

28 Prepare Relocation Plans 8 wks Tue 7/9/24 Mon 9/2/24

29 Utility "C" Letters 0 wks Mon 9/2/24 Mon 9/2/24

30 Environmental Document 10 days Tue 3/19/24 Mon 4/1/24

31 City issues Notice of Exemption 2 wks Tue 3/19/24 Mon 4/1/24

32 Grant Applicaton 160 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 12/23/24

33 Prepare/Submit Grant Application(s) 8 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 7/8/24

34 Grant Application results 0 days Mon 12/23/24 Mon 12/23/24

35

36 Contract Bid Documents 360 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 9/29/25

37 PS&E Package 240 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 4/14/25

38 Prepare 60% Plans 16 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 9/2/24

39 Prepare Engineer's Estimate 2 wks Tue 8/20/24 Mon 9/2/24

40 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 9/3/24 Mon 9/16/24

41 Submit 60% Plans and Estimate 0 days Mon 9/16/24 Mon 9/16/24

42 City Review/Comment 3 wks Tue 9/17/24 Mon 10/7/24

43 Prepare 90% PS&E 12 wks Tue 10/8/24 Mon 12/30/24

44 Prepare Technical Specifications 2 wks Tue 12/17/24 Mon 12/30/24

45 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 12/31/24 Mon 1/13/25

46 Submit 90% PS&E 0 days Mon 1/13/25 Mon 1/13/25

47 City Review/Comment 3 wks Tue 1/14/25 Mon 2/3/25

48 Prepare 100%  PS&E 8 wks Tue 2/4/25 Mon 3/31/25

49 Revise Technical Specifications 2 wks Tue 3/18/25 Mon 3/31/25

50 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 4/1/25 Mon 4/14/25

51 Submit Final Plans 0 wks Mon 4/14/25 Mon 4/14/25

52 Right of Way Certification 4 wks Tue 4/15/25 Mon 5/12/25

53 Advertise 4 wks Tue 7/8/25 Mon 8/4/25

54 Open Bids 0 days Mon 8/4/25 Mon 8/4/25

55 Contract Award 2 wks Tue 8/5/25 Mon 8/18/25

56 Begin Construction 0 days Mon 9/29/25 Mon 9/29/25

8/28

9/4

4/15

9/16

12/4

3/18

1/22

9/2

12/23

9/16

1/13

4/14

8/4

9/29

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

2024 2025

Mark Thomas City of Turlock

Geer Road (GSB to Taylor) Local Funding

Mon 7/31/23 Page 1

enoriega
Text Box
LOCAL FUNDING ONLY

enoriega
Text Box
Using only Local Funds for Construction, City can issue Notice of Determination after Completion of 30% Plans.

enoriega
Text Box
Using only Local Funds for Construction,Earliest Advertisement: July 2025 



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 NTP (Assumed) 0 days Mon 8/28/23 Mon 8/28/23

2 Meetings 270 days Mon 9/4/23 Mon 9/16/24

3 Kick-off 0 days Mon 9/4/23 Mon 9/4/23

4 Public Meeting #1 0 days Mon 4/15/24 Mon 4/15/24

5 Public Meeting #2 0 days Mon 9/16/24 Mon 9/16/24

6 Preliminary Engineering 145 days Tue 8/29/23 Mon 3/18/24

7 Data Gathering/Research 2 wks Tue 8/29/23 Mon 9/11/23

8 Lidar Extraction (Translation/Basefiles/Supplemental Topo)10 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 11/20/23

9 Compile Base Maps 2 wks Tue 11/21/23 Mon 12/4/23

10 Complete Base Maps 0 days Mon 12/4/23 Mon 12/4/23

11 Concept Plans 65 days Tue 12/19/23 Mon 3/18/24

12 Prepare 30% Plans 8 wks Tue 12/19/23 Mon 2/12/24

13 Preliminary Cost Estimates 1 wk Tue 2/13/24 Mon 2/19/24

14 City  Review/Comment 4 wks Tue 2/20/24 Mon 3/18/24

15 Approved 30% Plans 0 wks Mon 3/18/24 Mon 3/18/24

16 Geotech 95 days Tue 9/12/23 Mon 1/22/24

17 Prepare Permit 2 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 9/25/23

18 City Approval 2 wks Tue 9/26/23 Mon 10/9/23

19 Field Work and Lab Analysis 6 wks Tue 10/10/23 Mon 11/20/23

20 Geotechnical Investigation Memo 4 wks Tue 11/21/23 Mon 12/18/23

21 City Review 1 wk Tue 12/19/23 Mon 12/25/23

22 Revise Geotechnical Investigation Memo 4 wks Tue 12/26/23 Mon 1/22/24

23 Final Geotechnical Investigation Memo 0 days Mon 1/22/24 Mon 1/22/24

24 Utility Coordination 255 days Tue 9/12/23 Mon 9/2/24

25 Submit Utility "A" Letters 4 wks Tue 9/12/23 Mon 10/9/23

26 Prepare Conflict Mapping 8 wks Tue 3/19/24 Mon 5/13/24

27 Utility "B" Letters 8 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 7/8/24

28 Prepare Relocation Plans 8 wks Tue 7/9/24 Mon 9/2/24

29 Utility "C" Letters 0 wks Mon 9/2/24 Mon 9/2/24

30 Environmental Document 100 days Tue 12/24/24 Mon 5/12/25

31 Prepare PES Form 2 wks Tue 12/24/24 Mon 1/6/25

32 Caltrans Review 4 wks Tue 1/7/25 Mon 2/3/25

33 Technical Studies 12 wks Tue 2/4/25 Mon 4/28/25

34 Caltrans issues NEPA CE 2 wks Tue 4/29/25 Mon 5/12/25

35 Grant Applicaton 160 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 12/23/24

36 Prepare/Submit Grant Application(s) 8 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 7/8/24

37 Grant Application results 0 days Mon 12/23/24 Mon 12/23/24

38

39 Contract Bid Documents 380 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 10/27/25

40 PS&E Package 240 days Tue 5/14/24 Mon 4/14/25

41 Prepare 60% Plans 16 wks Tue 5/14/24 Mon 9/2/24

42 Prepare Engineer's Estimate 2 wks Tue 8/20/24 Mon 9/2/24

43 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 9/3/24 Mon 9/16/24

44 Submit 60% Plans and Estimate 0 days Mon 9/16/24 Mon 9/16/24

45 City Review/Comment 3 wks Tue 9/17/24 Mon 10/7/24

46 Prepare 90% PS&E 12 wks Tue 10/8/24 Mon 12/30/24

47 Prepare Technical Specifications 2 wks Tue 12/17/24 Mon 12/30/24

48 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 12/31/24 Mon 1/13/25

49 Submit 90% PS&E 0 days Mon 1/13/25 Mon 1/13/25

50 City Review/Comment 3 wks Tue 1/14/25 Mon 2/3/25

51 Prepare 100%  PS&E 8 wks Tue 2/4/25 Mon 3/31/25

52 Revise Technical Specifications 2 wks Tue 3/18/25 Mon 3/31/25

53 QA/QC 2 wks Tue 4/1/25 Mon 4/14/25

54 Submit Final Plans 0 wks Mon 4/14/25 Mon 4/14/25

55 Right of Way Certification 4 wks Tue 5/13/25 Mon 6/9/25

56 Advertise 4 wks Tue 8/5/25 Mon 9/1/25

57 Open Bids 0 days Mon 9/1/25 Mon 9/1/25

58 Contract Award 2 wks Tue 9/2/25 Mon 9/15/25

59 Begin Construction 0 days Mon 10/27/25 Mon 10/27/25

8/28

9/4

4/15

9/16

12/4

3/18

1/22

9/2

12/23

9/16

1/13

4/14

9/1

10/27

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

2024 2025

Mark Thomas City of Turlock

Geer Road (GSB to Taylor) w/ Grant Funding

Mon 7/31/23 Page 1

enoriega
Text Box
LPP and ATP call for projects are expected in Spring 2024Selection is expect to be announced in December 2024

enoriega
Text Box
LPP, ATP, and CMAQ funds would be programmed for construction for FY 2025/2026Project would need to bid- between July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026 for LPP- between October 1, 2025 to September 30, 2026 for ATP and CMAQEarliest Advertisement: August 2025 

enoriega
Text Box
If Project is awarded ATP or CMAQ grants, a NEPA Categorical Exclusion will need to be coordinated with Caltrans.  This needs to be completed before project can be Bid for construction.

enoriega
Text Box
WITH GRANT FUNDING

enoriega
Text Box
Local Match:- 50% LPP- 0% ATP- 11.47% CMAQ



Sr
. E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
M

an
ag

er

Pr
oj

ec
t E

ng
in

ee
r

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

 II

D
es

ig
n 

En
gi

ne
er

 I

Su
rv

ey
 M

an
ag

er

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ur
ve

yo
r

Le
ad

 S
ur

ve
y 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an

Sr
. S

ur
ve

y 
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

2 
Pe

rs
on

 F
ie

ld
 C

re
w

Fu
nd

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

Sr
. F

un
di

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t

Fu
nd

in
g 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t

Pr
oj

ec
t C

oo
rd

in
at

or

PO
RT

 C
IT

Y

CR
AW

FO
RD

N
O

RT
H

ST
AR

 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 G
RO

U
P

$380 $164 $142 $115 $217 $177 $157 $126 $328 $285 $185 $157 $115

1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT/COORDINATION 
1.1 Project Management 8 40 38 86 $13,970 11,160        $25,130
1.2 MEETINGS 
   1.2.1 PDT Meetings 10 24 34 $7,736 $7,736
   1.2.2 Council Meetings 8 16 24 $5,664 $5,664
1.3 Agency/Stakeholder Coordination 12 40 52 $11,120 $11,120
1.4 Funding Assistance/Grant Applications 48 80 100 228 $44,180 $44,180
1.5 Public Outreach 40 40 80 $21,760 17,245     $39,005
1.6 Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/AC) 24 80 104 $22,240 4,156          $26,396

Subtotal Phase 1 102 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 80 100 38 608 $126,670 $17,245 $15,316 $0 $159,231

2.0 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
2.1 Project Data Gathering/Site Visit 16 60 76 $9,524 $9,524
2.2 Survey/LiDAR Extraction/Base Mapping 0 $0 $0

2.2.1 Lidar Translation 40 40 80 $20,200 $20,200
2.2.2 Lidar Extraction 8 16 48 128 200 $28,232 $28,232

   2.2.3 Lidar Miscellaneous 8 40 48 $6,456 $6,456
2.3 Supplemental Topographic Survey 0 $0 30,330     $30,330
2.4 Record Data Search 0 $0 3,820       $3,820
2.5 Geotechnical 

2.5.1 Pavement Condition Assessment 0 $0 9,077          $9,077
2.5.2 Pavement Coring & R Value Testing 0 $0 17,925        $17,925
2.5.3 Engineering Analysis 0 $0 16,240        $16,240
2.5.4 Pavement Design Report 0 $0 16,015        $16,015

2.6 Environmental 0 $0 $0
2.7 Utility Coordinaton 8 32 80 120 $15,056 $15,056
2.8 30% - Schematic Concept 4 40 64 128 236 $31,888 $31,888

Subtotal Phase 2 4 64 96 268 8 64 48 168 40 0 0 0 0 760 $111,356 $0 $59,257 $34,150 $204,763

TOTAL HOURS 106 304 96 268 8 64 48 168 40 48 80 100 38 1368
OTHER DIRECT COSTS $1,179 $9,735 $51,947 $10,000 $72,861
TOTAL COST $40,280 $49,856 $13,632 $30,820 $1,736 $11,328 $7,536 $21,168 $13,120 $13,680 $14,800 $15,700 $4,370 $239,205 $26,980 $126,520 $44,150 $436,855

COST PROPOSAL FOR PROJECT SCOPE: City of Turlock - Geer Road Pavement Rehabiliatation

TOTAL COST

SUBS

Total 
Hours

Total MT 
Cost

Please note that the rates shown are for estimating purposes only.  
See rate schedule for actual rates/ranges. 7/24/2023



Cost Proposal 1

Cost Plus Fixed Fee or Lump Sum

Prime Consultant       Subconsultant        2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant: Mark Thomas & Company, Inc.

Project No.  Contract No. Date 7/24/2023

Range Hours
Actual 

Hourly Rate
Total

Principal $140 - $190 154.45$        -$                           

Sr. Engineering Manager $105 - $148 106 137.77$        14,603.46$                

Engineering Manager $96 - $126 115.65$        -$                           

Design Manager $96 - $126 115.65$        -$                           

Sr. Project Manager $74 - $107 96.08$          -$                           

Sr. Technical Lead $74 - $107 96.08$          -$                           

Project Manager $62 - $88 77.59$          -$                           

Technical Lead $62 - $88 77.59$          -$                           

Sr. Project Engineer $54 - $78 67.43$          -$                           

Sr. Technical Engineer $54 - $78 67.43$          -$                           

Project Engineer $50 - $70 304 59.46$          18,075.23$                

Design Engineer II $37 - $62 96 51.48$          4,942.26$                  

Design Engineer I $30 - $52 268 41.69$          11,173.75$                

Intern $16 - $34 23.93$          -$                           

Survey Manager $64 - $89 8 78.67$          629.38$                     

Sr. Project Surveyor $57 - $75 67.43$          -$                           

Project Surveyor $49 - $68 64 64.17$          4,106.95$                  

Sr. Surveyor $42 - $65 55.11$          -$                           

Surveyor $37 - $54 45.68$          -$                           

Lead Survey Technician $42 - $67 48 56.92$          2,732.17$                  

Sr. Survey Technician $31 - $55 168 45.68$          7,674.43$                  

Survey Technician $27 - $39 40.24$          -$                           

Single Chief* $52 - $73 62.00$          -$                           

Single Instrumentman* $49 - $67 56.56$          -$                           

Single Chainman* $46 - $65 54.74$          -$                           

Apprentice* $27 - $50 39.52$          -$                           

2 Person Field Crew* $98 - $129 40 118.92$        4,756.64$                  

3 Person Field Crew* $125 - $169 158.80$        -$                           

Funding Manager $88 - $114 48 103.33$        4,959.67$                  

Sr. Funding Specialist $52 - $78 80 67.07$          5,365.72$                  

Funding Specialist $38 - $67 100 56.92$          5,692.01$                  

Project Accountant $35 - $57 46.77$          -$                           

Sr. Project Coordinator $42 - $63 52.57$          -$                           

Project Coordinator $32 - $52 38 41.69$          1,584.34$                  

LABOR COSTS

86,296.02$   

$0.00

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)] 86,296.02$                

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed

Geer Road Pavement Rehab 2023-109

DIRECT LABOR

Classification/Title Name

a)  Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b)  Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)



INDIRECT COSTS

92.57% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)] 79,884.23$   

58.18% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (f)] 50,207.03$   

) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] -$              

j) TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS [(e) + (g) + (i)] 130,091.25$              

FIXED FEE k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (j)] x fixed fee: 10% 21,638.73$                

l) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC) - ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total

1800 Miles 0.655$          1,179.00$                  

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS 1,179.00$                  

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

Crawford & Associates, Inc. 126,520.05$              

NorthStar Engineering 44,150.00$                

Port City 26,979.69$                

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS 197,649.74$              

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l) + (m)] 198,828.74$              

TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)] 436,854.74$              

NOTES:
1.

2.

3.

d)  Fringe Benefits            (Rate: 

f)  Overhead & G&A         (Rate: 

h)  General & Admin         (Rate: 

Description of Item

Mileage (IRS Rate)

The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consultant's 
annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.      

Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Subconsultant 1:

Subconsultant 2:

Subconsultant 3:

Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two 
asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.      



Consultant

Project No.  Contract No. Date 7/24/2023

1.  Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Avg Hourly 5 Year Contract 

Rate Duration

 $                86,296.02 =  $             63.08 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

Avg Hourly Rate 

Year 1  $                       63.08 + =  $             63.08 Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 2  $                       63.08 + =  $             63.08 Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3  $                       63.08 + =  $             63.08 Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4  $                       63.08 + =  $             63.08 Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Hours 

per Year

Year 1 100.00% * = 1368.0 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 5

Total 100%  = 1368.0

Year 1  $                       63.08 * =  $      86,296.02 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2  $                       63.08 * =  $                   -   Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3  $                       63.08 * =  $                   -   Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4  $                       63.08 * =  $                   -   Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5  $                       63.08 * =  $                   -   Estimated Hours Year 5

 =  $      86,296.02 

 =  $      86,296.02 

 =  $                   -   Transfer to Page 1

NOTES:
1.

2.

3.

4.

CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES

Mark Thomas & Company

Geer Road Pavement Rehab 2023-109

2.  Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %)

Proposed Escalation 

0%

0%

Direct Labor Subtotal Total Hours

per Cost Proposal  per Cost Proposal

1368

Completed Each Year per Cost Proposal

1368.0

1368.0

1368.0

1368.0

0%

3.  Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Estimated % Total Hours 

0%

 Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase 

This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the % increase, the # of years of the contract, and a 
breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.

An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable. (i.e. $250,000 x 2% x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not 
an acceptable methodology).

This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

1368

0

0

0

0

 Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation

1368.0

Total

4.  Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours
 Cost per Year

(calculated above) (calculated above)



I, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract

are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements:

1.  Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2.  Terms and conditions of the contract

3.  Title 23 United States Code Section 112 - Letting of Contracts

4.  48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 31 - Contract Cost Principles and Proceedures

5.  23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management and Administration of Engineering and

    Design Related Service

6.  48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be retained in the project files

and be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements

are not eligible for reimbursement.  Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency or Caltrans accepted

Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Name:  R. Matt Brogan Title *: Vice President

Signature: Date of Certification: 7/24/2023

Email: mbrogan@markthomas.com Phone number:  (916) 381-9100

Address:  701 University Avenue, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95825

List services the consultant is providing under the proposed contract:

Certification of Direct Costs:

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifying:

* An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no lower than a Vice 
President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish 
the cost proposal for the contract.



Geer Road Rehabiliation
Crawford & Associates, Inc.

P
rin

ci
pa

l *

S
en

io
r P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 *

S
en

io
r P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 *

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 II

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 I

S
en

io
r G

eo
lo

gi
st

S
en

io
r E

ng
in

ee
r

P
ro

je
ct

 E
ng

in
ee

r I
I

P
ro

je
ct

 E
ng

in
ee

r I

S
ta

ff 
E

ng
in

ee
r

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

Fi
el

d 
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

 (P
re

va
ilin

g 
W

ag
e)

 *
*

C
on

cr
et

e 
Te

st
in

g 
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

 
(P

re
va

ilin
g 

W
ag

e)
 *

*

La
bo

re
r T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
(P

re
va

ilin
g 

W
ag

e)
 *

*

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 S
al

ar
y 

In
cr

ea
se

Crawford & Associates Staff (*Key) B. Crawford TBD TBD S. Leyva TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD
Initial Hourly Rate 67.59$        70.39$        56.81$        54.85$        52.88$        46.43$        46.43$        42.00$        37.50$        32.88$        29.75$        40.63$        37.63$        32.69$        $0.00

Fringe Benefits 88.29% 59.68$        62.15$        50.16$        48.43$        46.69$        40.99$        40.99$        37.08$        33.11$        29.03$        26.27$        35.87$        33.22$        28.86$        $0.00
Overhead 116.79% 78.94$        82.21$        66.35$        64.06$        61.76$        54.23$        54.23$        49.05$        43.80$        38.40$        34.75$        47.45$        43.95$        38.18$        $0.00

General & Administrative 20.00% 13.52$        14.08$        11.36$        10.97$        10.58$        9.29$          9.29$          8.40$          7.50$          6.58$          5.95$          8.13$          7.53$          6.54$          $0.00
Fixed Fee 10% 21.97$        22.88$        18.47$        17.83$        17.19$        15.09$        15.09$        13.65$        12.19$        10.69$        9.67$          13.21$        12.23$        10.63$        $0.00

Hourly Rate 241.69$      251.71$      203.15$      196.14$      189.09$      166.03$      166.03$      150.19$      134.10$      117.57$      106.38$      145.29$      134.56$      116.90$      $0.00
TASK NO. 1

Coordination, Field Preparation, Permitting 8.0 18.0 8.0 24.0 12.0 11,160.39$           11,160.39$           
-$                      -$                      

TASK NO. 2 -$                      -$                      
Pavement Conditions Assessment 8.0 22.0 16.0 4.0 9,077.09$             9,077.09$             

-$                      -$                      
TASK NO. 3 -$                      -$                      

Pavement Coring 8.0 8.0 84.0 8.0 26.0 17,924.96$           17,924.96$           
-$                      -$                      

TASK NO. 4 -$                      -$                      
Engineering Analysis 4.0 22.0 32.0 22.0 20.0 8.0 16,240.43$           16,240.43$           

-$                      -$                      
TASK NO. 5 -$                      -$                      

Draft and Final Reports 12.0 16.0 12.0 42.0 18.0 4.0 16,014.65$           16,014.65$           
-$                      -$                      

TASK NO. 6 -$                      -$                      
Plan Review and Comments 16.0 6.0 2.0 4,155.53$             4,155.53$             

-$                      -$                      
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
Mileage (IRS Rate) 655.00$                655.00$                
Per Diem (GSA Rate) 1,760.00$             1,760.00$             
Permit Fees -$                      -$                      
Traffic Control Equipment -$                      -$                      
Traffic Control (Minor) -$                      -$                      
Traffic Control (Major) 17,000.00$           17,000.00$           
Drilling -$                      -$                      
Steel Liners (MCAL) -$                      -$                      
Hand Auger 2,000.00$             2,000.00$             
Wildcat DCP Equipment -$                      -$                      
Wildcat DCP Tips -$                      -$                      
Core Machine with Generator 26,000.00$           26,000.00$           
Core Machine Bit 600.00$                600.00$                
Core Boxes -$                      -$                      
Backfill 432.00$                432.00$                
Laboratory Testing (Crawford 2023 Rates, Attached) 3,500.00$             3,500.00$             

0 -$                      -$                      
0 -$                      -$                      
0 -$                      -$                      
0 -$                      -$                      
0 -$                      -$                      

Subtotal- Hours/Tasks 32.0 0.0 0.0 102.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 76.0 178.0 38.0 38.0 0.0 0.0 26.0 74,573.05$           51,947.00$           

TOTAL LABOR HOURS: 490.0 ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASE: $0.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE: 126,520.05$         

2/10/.23

LA
BO

R 
CO

ST
 P

ER
 T

AS
K

O
TH

ER
 D

IR
EC

T 
CO

ST
S

TO
TA

L 
CO

ST



TASK TASK ACTIVITY
Billing Rates $215.00 $185.00 $155.00 $275.00 Total Hours

 GEER ROAD     

1 Topography 

A Record Data Research 2 8 0 0 10 $1,910.00

B Supplemental Topographic Surveys 8 12 16 80 116 $28,420.00

C Research Data Search 4 16 0 0 20 $10,000.00 $13,820.00

D Legal Descriptions and Plats 0 $0.00

TOTAL 14 36 16 80 146 $44,150.00

 
NOTE:

Land Surveyor 
Assistant / Drafter 

Total HoursLand Surveyor
2-Man                           

Survey Crew                

This proposal includes ten (10) preliminary title reports at $1,000.00 each.

CITY OF TURLOCK

PRIMARY SCOPE TASKS

Estimated Level of Effort

Principal Project 
Manager 

Preliminary Title 
Reports

Geer Road Rehabilitation
Topographic Surveys

14-Feb-23

Totals

rev. 6/29/2023



Project Budget: City of Turlock Geer Road 

Firm Name: Port City 
Direct Labor Costs Other Direct Costs Total Cost

Tasks Dan Kristen Admin

Rate $60.00 $60.00 $22.00

1. Identification of Stakeholders (Stakeholder Database) $618.00 $1,000.00 $1,618.00
a. Develop list of stakeholders 2 1 3

b. Database upload 2 1 2

c. Ongoing management of list 1 4

d. ParcelQuest Database (4 months)  $                1,000.00 

2. Public Information Meetings (4 meetings) $7,352.00 $8,735.00 16,087.00$              
a. Requirements 8 8 8

b. Planning and site selection 4 4 6

c. Develop materials/Agenda 10 8 4

d. Day of Implementation 24 20 24

e. Mailings - Graphic Design 10 3

f. Mailings Postage 1  $                1,500.00 

g. Mailings Printing 1  $                1,500.00 

h. Media Purchase 1

h. Mileage  $                   275.00 

i. Facility Rental 4  $                   500.00 

j. Facility AV 2  $                1,200.00 

k. Facility Materials 1 1 1  $                   800.00 

l. Newspaper Graphic Design and Adverting Costs 2 1  $                2,000.00 

m. Earned Media (Media Pitches, Press Releases) 2

n. Language Interpreter (if needed)  $                   960.00 

Total Direct Labor 51 58 65  $                             7,970.00 

Combined Overhead (96.7) 97%
Fixed Fee (10%) 10%
Total Labor Costs $17,244.69

Other Direct Costs $9,735.00

Total Project Costs $17,244.69 $9,735.00 $26,979.69

Hours


	Agenda 08-22-2023 Regular Meeting.pdf (p.1-3)
	2A - ProclamationKeith Humphries.pdf (p.4)
	2B - Ray Garcia Proclamation.pdf (p.5)
	2C - Mobile Medical Clinic Update.pdf (p.6)
	2D - PARC Commission Appointments.pdf (p.7)
	5A - AP DEMANDS_Payment Register_ 7-28-23 to 8-10-23, EFT Payments and Treasurer's Report.pdf (p.8-41)
	5B - Minutes 08-08-2023 Regular Meeting.pdf (p.42-51)
	5C - Wayside NOC.pdf (p.52-70)
	22-001 Wayside Drive Final CCO & NOC - Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-3)
	22-001 Wayside Drive NOC.D2.pdf (p.4)
	CCO 1 Wayside 22-001&22-017 - SIGNED.D3.pdf (p.5-9)
	CCO 2 (Final) Wayside 22-001&22-017 - SIGNED.D4.pdf (p.10-19)
	CCO 2 (Final) Approval Request Wayside 22-001&22-017.pdf (p.1-6)
	Signed CCO 2 (Final) - Wayside Drive.pdf (p.7-10)


	5D - Crowell SIA.pdf (p.71-109)
	Staff Report SM 21-01 Crowell.pdf (p.1-3)
	Attachment A Reso 2021-017.pdf (p.4-17)
	Attachment B - SIA (current).pdf (p.18-32)
	Attachment B Exhibit A.pdf (p.33-36)
	Attachment C Final Map.pdf (p.37-39)

	5E - Enterprise Park Final Map.pdf (p.110-122)
	Staff Report SM Enterprise Park.pdf (p.1-3)
	Attachment A RESO 2006-15.VTSM 2005-20.1100 W Glenwood.recorded.pdf (p.4-11)
	Attachment B EnterprisePark_AssessorMapRecording_072623.PDF (p.12-13)

	5F - Reaffirming UHC.pdf (p.123-133)
	5G - Redesign - City Hall Server Replacement.pdf (p.134-146)
	5H - Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fund 450 SRWA Operations Budget Adoption.pdf (p.147-151)
	7A - Perfect Union  DA Annual Review.pdf (p.152-157)
	Perfect Union  DA Annual Review Council Staff Report.pdf (p.2-5)
	Perfect Union DA Annual Review CC Resolution.pdf (p.6-7)

	7B - Fire House  DA Annual Review.pdf (p.158-163)
	Fire House  DA Annual Review Council Staff Report.pdf (p.2-5)
	Fire House DA Annual Review CC Resolution.pdf (p.6-7)

	8A - MTCo Geer Task Order.pdf (p.164-211)
	23-052 MTCo Amend 2 for Task Order 2 for Roads Program - Geer - Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-4)
	23-052 MTCo Amend 2 for Task Order 2 for Roads - Geer - Reso.D2.pdf (p.5-6)
	23-052 MTCo Amendment 2 for Task Order 2 for Roads Program - Geer.D3.pdf (p.7-9)
	23-052 Mark Thomas Exhibit C to Amendment 2.D4.pdf (p.10-48)


